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| Goal, Mission and Values Statement

|

Cur Goal
Our goal is to create value for our shareholders, satisfaction for our clients

and opportunity for our employees.

Qur Mission

Our mission is to be the wealth management company of choice for
products and services that help the affluent and high net worth be
financially independent and secure.

We fulfill our mission by:

> Working collaboratively and effectively toward the common purpose
of executing our wealth management strategy;

D> Developing innovative, profitable accumulation, preservation and
transfer products that our clients — advisors, individuals and
institutions — want, need and trust;

D> Expanding and using our in-depth knowledge of the affluent and high
net worth to provide exceptional support and counsel to advisors so
they can become the advisor of choice;

D> Inspiring our employees to offer quality service associated with
providers of exceptional goods and services;

D> Empowering our employees at all levels to be vigilant and disciplined
in making fact-based, intelligent decisions; and

D> Fostering a performance- and merit-based culture in a diverse,
inclusive workplace.

Our Values
We value integrity, honesty, diversity, responsibility, accountability, hard
work, collaboration, respect for others and community involvement.
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Key accomplishments in a challenging year:

Strengthened our balance sheet, achieving &
lower leverage and increased holding
company liquidity with strong statutory

surplus at Phoenix Life Insurance Company

Achieved record sales in our life
insurance business

Realized approximately $29 million and
identified an additional $40 million in
annualized expenses savings

Transitioned to a new senior
management team

Financial Highlights

Expanded our distribution relationship
with State Farm Life Insurance Company,
our third largest life distribution partner

Enhanced operations and established a
number of new distribution relationships in
our annuity business

Completed the acquisition of a majority interest
in Kayne Anderson Rudnick Investment
Management to enhance our position to
number two in the managed accounts business

Completed our largest collaterized bond
obligation offering with the $1 billion
Phoenix-Mistic transaction
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Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2001 and 2000 financial statements to conform with the year-end 2002 presentation.

' Operating income represents net income adjusted for realized gains and for some nonrecurring items that are not indicative of the
ongoing operations of the business segments. The size and timing of realized investment gains are often subject to management’s
discretion. Certain nonrecurring items are removed from net income if, in management'’s opinion, they are not indicative of overall
operating trends. While some of these items may be significant components of our net income, we believe operating income is an
appropriate measure that represents the net income attributable to the ongoing operations of the business. However, operating income
is not a substitute for net income determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), and may be different
from similarly titted measures of other companies. A reconciliation to GAAP earnings is available in the Investor Relations section on our
Web site at PhoenixWealthManagement.com.

2 Per-share earnings are based on 97.9 million weighted-average shares outstanding for 2002 and 104.6 million weighted-average

pro forma shares outstanding for 2001 and 2000.
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2002 was a particularly tough
year for Phoenix — among the
most difficult in our 151-year
history. The harsh economic
environment affected our financial
performance and a number of
internal factors challenged us as
well. Yet, | believe Phoenix
emerged from 2002 a stronger
company, with a clear strategy

and a focused action plan.

SUMMARY OF 2002 RESULTS
Our 2002 results show our progress and
where we must make greater progress.

We focus on cash operating income,
which we believe accurately measures the
fundamental profitability of our operations.
In 2002, our cash operating income,
excluding venture capital, was $78.1 million,
or $0.80 per share, compared with
$86.6 million, or $0.83 per share, in 2001.
We reported a 2002 generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) net loss of
$246.0 million, or a $2.51 loss per share,
compared with a $202.7 million net loss,
or a $1.94 loss per share, in 2001.

The GAAP net loss was primarily
due to the first quarter adoption of an
accounting change for goodwill and an
additional non-cash goodwill impairment
in the third quarter, totaling $192.5 million,
realized investment losses of $39.3 million,
restructuring charges of $28.6 million and
venture capital losses of $38.6 million.

We saw record sales in our life insurance
business and near-record sales in our

annuity and investment management
businesses — underscoring the breadth and
strength of our products and distribution.
While cash operating earnings in our
life insurance business were strong due
to robust sales and solid fundamentals,
we had losses in annuities and lower cash
earnings in investment management.
Weak markets also affected our venture
capital portfolio, contributing to our overall
loss for the year.

YEAR-END PRIORITIES AND ACTIONS
In 2002, we completed a broad senior
management transition, appointing new
chief financial and investment officers,
new heads of wholesaling distribution and
administration and human resources, as well
as a new chief accounting officer. These
appointments represent a great blend of
expertise from within Phoenix and from
other companies.

Late in the year, we began to take a
series of actions to address our problem
areas and to enhance our ability to deliver
consistent, quality earnings and profitable
growth over time.

These actions centered around four
priorities. The first is to intensify our focus
on our core wealth management business.
We strongly reaffirmed our commitment to
our wealth management strategy and our
core businesses — life insurance, annuities
and investment management. As a result,
we dissolved our Hartford-based
international team and began exiting
several small overseas investments.

The second priority is expense
management, which is now a critical on-
going effort. We realized $29 million in
annualized savings in 2002 and identified
an additional $40 million in annualized
savings, with $34 million expected to be
realized by the end of 2003 and the
remainder by 2006.




From left to right: Dona D. Young, President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman-elect, Tracy L. Rich, Executive Vice President
and General Counsel, Coleman D. Ross, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Michael J. Gilotti, Executive Vice
President, Wholesaling Distribution and Marketing, Michael E. Haylon, Executive Vice President and Chief Investment Officer.




Our third priority is to enhance our
capital allocation and management
process. Last year, we took a number of
steps to increase our financial flexibility
and strengthen our capital base.
Specifically, we monetized our sizable
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equity holding in Hilb, Rogal and Hamilton
for a gross realized, pretax investment
gain of $15.3 million in 2002 and a gross
deferred pretax investment gain of

$91.8 million. We also converted our
equity stake in Clark/Bardes to debt for a
pretax gain of about $7 million. We issued
equity units to retire our outstanding bank
debt. And we negotiated a new, undrawn
$100 million bank line of credit.

In January of this year, we announced
the sale of about 23 percent of our venture
capital portfolio, half to a third party and
half to Phoenix Life Insurance Company's
closed block. This transaction reduces our
exposure to venture capital and should
mitigate some earnings volatility while also
improving Phoenix Life's capital ratios and
enhancing the closed block's potential
long-term returns. In addition, for the
approximately 47 percent of our
shareholders who are also policyholders, it
enables us to begin to replicate the
composition of the portfolio that supported
these policies prior to demutualization.

Venture capital, an asset class that has solid
long-term returns, was part of the
investment portfolio funding our
participating life insurance products for
more than 25 years, and contributed to the
dividend performance of these policies.

Redesigning our compensation and
benefits to drive performance is our fourth
priority. We want the right people in the
right jobs, and we want them motivated
by both professional pride and a clear
identification with our shareholders’
interests. As a result, our redesigned
incentive compensation plans will change
the way many at Phoenix will be rewarded
in 2003 and beyond. Specifically,
compensation will be linked to our
Competency Plan, which sets goals,
metrics and objectives for every business
area and staff function, aligned with
creating shareholder value. Rewards will be
tied to these specific operating targets and
based on company-wide, departmental
and individual performance.

Taken together, our year-end actions
and initiatives lead us to target a cash
return on equity (ROE) of 6 to 8 percent,
excluding venture capital, by the end of
2003. This compares to a fourth quarter
ROE of 4.7 percent. We regard this as a
realistic interim target, but not free of risks.

2002 OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

Life Insurance

Our life insurance product line currently
accounts for the majority of our cash
pretax earnings — $99 million in 2002,
up 35 percent from 2001. 2002 sales
were a record $356 million of total
premium and $170 million of annualized
premium, up 60 percent and 43 percent
respectively. Business fundamentals —
mortality and persistency — remain
strong, and we have maintained our




investment margins in the low-interest
rate environment.

We introduced several products and
strategies during the year, from new
variable universal life insurance to our
LifePlan program, which addresses the
high-net-worth’s changing needs. Also,
private placement life sales grew almost
three-fold as we expanded distribution
relationships.

In 2002, State Farm Life Insurance
Company became our third largest life
distribution partner, accounting for
18 percent of wholesaled annualized

During the year, we strengthened our
operational infrastructure and introduced
several new fixed and variable annuity
products to achieve greater balance in
our product portfolio. We also formed
additional distribution relationships,
including with a number of banks —

a new channel for us.

2003 will be a year of repositioning
for our annuity business, with a focus on
introducing new products that meet the
current demand for income and asset
protection and provide an appropriate
return. We will also continue to build

¢ We took steps to

mcrease our financial flexibility and
strengthen our capital base.®®

premium in the fourth quarter. We were
selected by State Farm in 2001 to provide
wealth management strategies for their
high-net-worth customers.

Looking to 2003, we will accelerate
the introduction of life products that
address the demands of our market. We
will also stay tightly focused on about a
dozen key distribution relationships, with a
goal of being the number one, two or
three non-proprietary carrier in each of
these relationships.

Annuities
Several factors contributed to a pretax
operating loss of $21 million in our annuity
business in 2002. These include the weak
equity markets and declining interest rate
environment, along with the negative
impact of our discontinued Retirement
Planner's Edge variable annuity product,
now in run-off.

our distribution relationships selectively.
And we will tightly manage expenses

and capital committed to the business to
generate profitable growth from our
existing platform and build scale over time.

Investment Management

Even in the face of 2002’s difficult market
environment, Phoenix Investment
Partners, our investment management
arm, produced near-record sales and
maintained break-even investment flows.
Although margins are not yet acceptable,
we saw notable improvement by the

end of the year, thanks to effective
management of variable and fixed costs.
Pretax margins before minority interest
in the fourth quarter were 20 percent,
up significantly from their second quarter
low of 11 percent.




During 2002, we closed Phoenix-
Mistic 2002-1 CBO, Ltd., a $1 billion
collateralized bond obligation comprising
primarily investment grade fixed-income
assets. Phoenix-Mistic was our largest
CBO since we entered the structured
product arena in 1998, and one of the
largest deals in the industry last year.
We also strengthened our position in the

¢ Our focus 1s
the future 3°

managed accounts business, completing
the acquisition of a majority interest in
Kayne Anderson Rudnick Investment
Management early in the year. At year
end, we rose to second, from seventh a
year ago, among holding companies in
managed account consulting programs,
as reported by Cerulli Associates, an
industry research and consulting firm.

FOCUSED FORWARD

Our focusis on the future. We are working
hard to realize our full potential so we can
deliver value to all of our stakeholders —
shareholders, clients, employees and the
communities in which we operate.

Our senior management team will
provide the leadership to make Phoenix the
successful company | know it can be. Our
new goal, mission and values statement
will help us do that in order to achieve our
stated goals.

Phoenix is a solid company with great
strengths. We will earn and re-earn your
confidence in our ability to deliver consistent,
quality earnings and profitable growth.

| want to take this opportunity to
acknowledge several of my colleagues
who retired during 2002 after long and
successful careers at Phoenix. First, I'd
like to recognize Bob Fiondella, who after
more than 30 years of service to Phoenix,
retired as Chief Executive Officer and
retires as Chairman on March 31. The
following executives also retired: Dave
Searfoss, former Chief Financial Officer;
Phil McLoughlin, Executive Vice President,
Investments; and Carl Chadburn,
Executive Vice President, Administration
and Human Resources. Simon Tan,
Executive Vice President, will retire at the
end of this year. | know [ speak on behalf
of our Board and our employees in
wishing them well.

| would like to note three of our
directors who will retire from our Board
(on April 28, 2003): J. Carter Bacot,
John Johnstone Jr., and Robert Vizza.
We are all grateful for their many
years of service, which combined total
58 years. | especially want to express
my appreciation to our entire Board of
Directors for their steadfast service and
continued dedication to the company.

| am grateful, too, to advisors, agents
and their clients for continuing to turn to
us for products and services to help them
achieve financial independence and
security. Above all, | thank our employees
for their commitment and perseverance,
and our shareholders for their continuing
confidence in Phoenix.

dna U

Dona D. Young
President, Chief Executive Officer
and Chairman-elect

February 24, 2003




| A Conversation wik Dona B. Young

Q:

A

A lot of companies talk about “wealth management.” What is
Phoenix’s competitive advantage?

Our experience and knowledge give us a real advantage. We aren’t aspiring
to be a wealth management company; we are a wealth management
company. What also sets Phoenix apart is that we manufacture high-quality
accumulation, preservation and transfer products that the affluent and high
net worth want and need, and we deliver these through highly experienced
wholesalers and advisors.

How do you plan to change people’s behavior to drive for
shareholder value?

I have been with the company for 23 years, and I have a passion for it that is
hard to put into words. I recognize that our performance is not where it needs
to be. The benefit of my longevity at Phoenix is that I know where the
changes need to be made to bring Phoenix to the next level. My charge is to
create value for our shareholders, satisfaction for our clients and opportunity
for our employees. To accomplish that, I must create the vision, communicate
that vision broadly and demonstrate that the right behaviors are rewarded.
Cultural change requires vigilance, and driving for shareholder value is the
result of living our values.

Why should shareholders continue to own Phoenix stock?

They should do so because our business fundamentals are strong. This is
evident by our distribution reach, which enabled us to achieve near-record
sales in 2002. However, some significant one-time events affected results
and these related mostly to our transition to a public company and the equity
markets. I would also point to our actions in the last quarter of 2002 to
address many of the issues that have challenged us. Clearly, we have more to
do, but I am confident in our ability to provide long-term sharcholder value.

How do you plan to be profitable in annuities?

2 We can be profitable in our annuity business, but we must demonstrate that

we can be. That is why the management of our annuity operation is
repositioning this business to drive for profitable growth. Having a strong
annuity product line is key, and in 2003 we will introduce products that offer
the greatest profit potential and that meet our clients’ needs.




Q=
B

How are you addressing ratings downgrades?

Last year, approximately 40 percent of the U.S. insurance industry was
downgraded by at least one rating agency. Obviously, we were not immune.
But Phoenix remains financially strong and our ratings are still very good.
We’ve taken a number of actions that strengthened our balance sheet,
improved our financial flexibility and reduced our exposure to venture
capital investments. All of these were viewed positively by the rating
agéncies. Our life operation — our most ratings-sensitive business —
drove operating earnings in 2002, which reflects our strong fundamentals,
experience and knowledge. Nevertheless, I recognize that in a competitive
marketplace, ratings are important, which is why I have made ratings
improvement a top priority over the next 12 to 18 months.

How do you plan to improve performance in your money
management business?

Like many investment management businesses, the equity markets have been
difficult for us. But we saw performance improvement by the end of last year
as a result of our aggressive expense management actions. We have a number
of strengths that position us well for the future, including a strong, broad
investment management product line and a meaningful market presence
across sectors. In 2003, we will complete an assessment of our existing
business with a focus on leveraging our product strengths and the capabilities
of our partner firms, developing an action plan that dovetails with our wealth
management strategy and managing this business for consistent relative
performance and competitive margins.

What is the outlook for “wealth management” given the weak markets
and tough economic environment?

It’s true that we’ve had a difficult financial environment — it’s not just the
equity markets, it’s the economy overall. But recent estimates by Boston
College project the largest inter-generational transfer of wealth in history to
total $41 trillion over the next 50 years. It’s also true that the drop in the stock
market has reduced the number of affluent households. However, since 1997,
the very wealthy — households with more than $5 million in net worth —
have grown at 18 percent annually. Our Wealth Management Survey also
finds that the needs of the high net worth continue to span a full range of
asset accumulation, preservation, and wealth transfer solutions. For example,
80 percent of the high net worth see estate and inheritance planning as a
major concern. There is a tremendous opportunity. Clearly, this is not the time
to abandon our strategy, but to focus even more on its execution.




The Phoenix Companies, Inc. (NYSE:PNX) is a leading provider of
wealth management products and services to individuals and

institutions. Through a variety of advisors and financial services firms,

Phoenix helps the affluent and high net worth accumulate, preserve \
and transfer their wealth with an innovative portfolio of life insurance,
annuity and investment management products and services. With a
history dating to 1851, The Phoenix Companies, Inc. has two principal
operating subsidiaries; Phoenix Life Insurance Company and Phoenix
Investment Partners, Ltd. The company offers trust services through
Phoenix National Trust Company and private placement insurance
products through Philadelphia Financial Group, both subsidiaries.

Phoenix has corporate offices in Hartford, Conn. For more information

on Phoenix, visit PhoenixWealthManagement.com.

@?HQENHX WEALTH MAMNAGEMENT®
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Unless otherwise stated, at all times on and after June 25, 2001, the effective date of Phoenix Home Life Mutual
Insurance Company’s demutualization, "Phoenix”, “we,” “our” or “us” means The Phoenix Companies, Inc.,
“PNX”, and its direct and indirect subsidiaries. At all times prior to June 25, 2001, “we,” “our” or “us” means
Phoenix Home Life Mutual Insurance Company (which has been known as Phoenix Life Insurance Company
since June 25, 2001) and its direct and indirect subsidiaries. Furthermore, “Phoenix Life” refers to Phoenix Life
Insurance Company, “Life Companies” refers to Phoenix Life and its direct and indirect subsidiaries and “PXP”

refers to Phoenix Investment Partners, Ltd. and its direct and indirect subsidiaries.

PARTI

Item 1. Business

Description of Business

We are a leading provider of wealth management products and services offered through a variety of select
advisors and financial services firms to serve the accumulation, preservation and transfer needs of the affluent and
high-net-worth market, businesses and institutions. We refer to our products and services together as our wealth
management solutions. We offer a broad range of life insurance, annuity and investment management solutions
through a variety of distributors. These distributors include affiliated and non-affiliated advisors and financial
services firms who make our solutions available to their clients.

The affluent and high-net-worth market is a growing market with significant demand for customized products and
services. We define affiuent as those households with net worths of $500,000 or greater, excluding their primary
residence. We define high-net-worth, a subset of the affluent category, as those households that have net worth,
excluding primary residence, of over $1,000,000. Our wealth management solutions are designed to assist
advisors and their clients in this target market to achieve three main goals:

o the accumulation of wealth, primarily during an individual's working years;
o the preservation of income and wealth during retirement and following death; and

o the efficient tramsfer of wealth in a variety of situations, including through estate planning, business
continuation planning and charitable giving.

We provide our wealth management solutions through various distribution channels, including:

= non-affiliated financial intermediaries such as national and regional broker-dealers, banks, financial
planning firms, advisor groups and other insurance companies; and

o our affiliated retail producers, most of whom are registered representatives of our wholly-owned retail
broker-dealer WS Griffith Advisors, Inc., or WS Griffith.

Segments

We provide our wealth management solutions through two operating segments — Life and Annuity and
Investment Management. Both segments serve the affluent and high-net-worth market, which presents
opportunities to leverage their capabilities and relationships. In addition to managing third-party assets,
Investment Management, through PXP, manages both the general account of our Life and Annuity business and
many of the separate account portfolios available through Life and Annuity's product line.

We report our remaining activities in two non-operating segments — Venture Capital and Corporate and Other.
Venture Capital includes investments primarily in the form of limited partnership interests in venture capital funds,

3




leveraged buyout funds and other private equity partnerships sponsored and managed by third parties. Corporate and
Other includes unallocated capital and expenses as well as certain businesses not of sufficient scale to report
independently. These segments are significant for financial reporting purposes, but do not contain products or
services relevant to our core wealth management operations.

i

SUMMARY OF OPERATING SEGMENTS

: Market Presence (Dec. 31, 2662) Distribution Channels Products
e — 5 - —sd
Life ard Apnuity o
Non-affiliated distribution: o  Variable universal life insurance
o  $112.8 billion of net life insurance o  National and regional broker-dealers e  Universal life insurance
in force e  Financial planning firms o Term life insurance
e  $5.8 billion annuity assets under o  Advisor groups e  Variable annuities
management e Insurance companies ¢ Fixed annuities
o Banks e Immediate annuities
Principal operating subsidiary: e  Private placement life insurance

Envestiment Mapagement

¢ Phoenix Life

e $54.0 billion assets under
management

Principal operating subsidiary:
o PXP

Opergting Segments

Life and Annuity Segment

Affiliated distribution:

©

®

WS Griffith Advisors, Inc.
Main Street Management Company

" Non-affiliated distribution:

o}

e}

[e]

National and regional broker-dealers
Advisor groups

Institutional investment management
consultants

Financial planning firms

Affiliated distribution:

=}

o

o

WS Griffith Advisors, Inc.
Affiliated asset managers
Main Street Management Company

[s]

and annuities
Executive benefits
Trust services

Private client products:

©

=]

Managed accounts
Mutual funds

Institutional products:

-]

(]

(]
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Institutional accounts
Closed-end funds
Structured products
Phoenix Life general and
separate accounts

Our Life and Annuity segment offers a variety of life insurance and annuity products through affiliated and non-
affiliated distributors. We believe our competitive advantage in this segment consists of five main components:

o our innovative products;
o our diversified asset management capability;
o our distribution relationships with institutions that have access to our target market;

o our ability to combine products and services that distributors and their clients find attractive; and
o our underwriting expertise.

Life and Annuity Products

Life Products

Our life insurance products include variable universal life, universal life, term life and other insurance products.
Because of our target market, we are a leading writer of second-to-die life insurance. Second-to-die products are




typically used for estate planning purposes and insure two lives rather than one, with the policy proceeds paid
after the death of both insured individuals.

Variable Universal Life. Variable universal life products provide insurance coverage and give the policyholder
various investment choices, flexible premium payments and coverage amounts and limited guarantees. The
policyholder may direct premiums and cash value into a variety of separate investment accounts — accounts that
are maintained separately from the other assets of the Life Companies and are not part of the general account of
the Life Companies. In separate investment accounts, the policyholder bears the entire risk of the investment
results. We collect fees for the management of these various investment accounts and the net return is credited
directly to the policyholder's account. With some variable universal products, by maintaining a certain premium
level the policyholder receives guarantees that protect the policy's death benefit if, due to adverse investment
experience, the policyholder's account balance is zero. We retain the right within limits to adjust the fees we
assess for providing administrative services. We also collect fees to cover mortality costs; these fees may be
adjusted by us but may not exceed contractual limits.

Universal Life. Universal life products provide insurance coverage on the same basis as variable universal life
products, except that premiums, and the resulting accumulated balances, are allocated only to our general account
for investment. Universal life products may allow the policyholder to increase or decrease the amount of death
benefit coverage over the term of the policy, and also may allow the policyholder to adjust the frequency and
amount of premium payments. We credit premiums, net of expenses, to an account maintained for the
policyholder. We credit interest to the account at rates that we determine, subject to certain minimums. Specific
charges are made against the account for expenses. We also collect fees to cover mortality costs; these fees may
be adjusted by us but may not exceed contractual limits.

Term Life. Term life insurance provides a guaranteed benefit upon the death of the insured within a specified
time period, in return for the periodic payment of premiums. Specified coverage periods range from one to twenty
years, but not longer than the period over which premiums are paid. Premiums may be level for the coverage
period or may vary. Term insurance products are sometimes referred to as pure protection products, in that there
are normally no savings or investment elements. Term contracts expire without value at the end of the coverage
period. Our term insurance policies allow policyholders to convert to permanent coverage, generally without
evidence of insurability.

Annuity Products
We offer a variety of variable and fixed annuities to meet the accumulation and preservation needs of the affluent
and high-net-worth market. These products enable the contractholder to save for retirement and also provide
options that protect against outliving assets during retirement. Our major sources of revenues from annuities are
mortality and expense fees charged to the contractholder, generally determined as a percentage of the market
value of any underlying separate account balances, and the excess of investment income over credited interest for
funds invested in our general account.

Variable Annuities. Variable annuities are separate account products, which means that the contractholder bears
the investment risk as deposits are directed into a variety of separate accounts. The contractholder typically can
also direct funds to a general account option in which case we credit interest at rates we determine, subject to
certain minimums. Contractholders also may elect certain enhanced death benefit guarantees, for which they are
assessed a specific charge.

While we have written variable annuities since 1982, historically, our product offerings were relatively limited,
with only PXP funds as investment options and sales primarily attributable to our affiliated retail distribution
channel. In 1995, we began to enhance our variable annuity business by adding non-PXP fund managers. In
1999, we began broadening our distribution sources. We also strengthened our management team by adding
experienced management personnel, hiring a dedicated wholesaling team of product specialists to market our
product lines to our distribution sources and expanding our investment options to be competitive in the broker-
dealer market.




Fixed Annuities. Fixed annuities are general account products, which means that we bear the investment risk as
funds are invested in our general account, and a fixed interest rate subject to certain contractual minimums, reset
from time to time, is credited to the contractholder's account. Fixed annuities are useful as accumulation tools and
may also be attractive as income preservation tools for investors who wish to reduce their exposure to equity
market volatility. Our fixed annuity products are designed, not only for insurance distribution, but also for
broker-dealer and bank distribution. The broker-dealer product is invested in our general account but adjusts the
surrender value based on changes in interest rates if the contractholder withdraws funds at any time other than at
specified intervals, subject to guaranteed minimum rates.

Immediate Annuities. Immediate annuities are purchased by means of a single lump sum payment and begin
paying periodic income immediately. We offer fixed and variable options. We believe this product is especially
attractive to those affluent and high-net-worth retirees who are rolling over pension or retirement plan assets and
seek an income stream based entirely or partly on equity market performance.

Other Products and Services
Life and Annuity is focused on the development of other products and distribution relationships that respond to the
affluent and high-net-worth market's demand for wealth management solutions.

Private Placement Life and Annuity Products. Private placement products are individually customized life and
annuity offerings that include Corporate Owned Life Insurance, or COLI, single premium life, second-to-die life
and variable annuity products. These products have minimum deposits of over $500,000, targeting the wealthiest
segment of the high-net-worth market. As part of our strategy to broaden our presence in the high-net-worth
market, we acquired majority ownership of PFG Holdings, Inc., or PFG, a provider of private placement products,
in 1999. The average face amount of life insurance policies sold by PFG in 2002 was $15.2 million and the
average annuity deposit was $4.0 million.

Executive Benefits. Executive benefits are designed for corporations to fund special deferred compensation plans
and benefit programs for key employees. We offer a range of products to the executive benefits market. We view
these products as a source of growing fee-based business.

Trust Services. Through January 8, 2002 we provided trust services on a limited basis through our wholly-owned
Connecticut chartered trust company. On January S, 2002, we converted this company to a national trust bank,
which provides comprehensive trust, custody and other fiduciary services nationwide. Having a nationwide trust
capability has strengthened our relationships with distributors by enabling us to provide them with directed
trustee, custody and other trust-related fiduciary services for their clients who employ trusts as wealth
preservation and transfer tools. We are considering how to develop our trust capabilities to complement the
services we provide to distributors.

Underwriting

Insurance underwriting is the process of examining, accepting or rejecting insurance risks, and classifying those
accepted in order to charge appropriate premiums or mortality charges. Underwriting also involves determining
the amount and type of reinsurance appropriate for a particular type of risk.

We believe we have particular expertise in evaluating the underwriting risks relevant to our target market. We
believe this expertise enables us to make appropriate underwriting decisions, including, in some instances, the
issuance of policies on more competitive terms than other insurers would offer. Phoenix Life has a long tradition
of underwriting innovation. Beginning in 1955, we were among the first insurance companies to offer reduced
rates to women. We believe we were the second company to offer reduced rates to non-smokers, beginning in
1667. Our underwriting team includes doctors and other medical staff to ensure, among other things, that we are
focused on current developments in medical technology.




Our underwriting standards for life insurance are intended to result in the issuance of policies that produce
mortality experience consistent with the assumptions used in product pricing. The overall profitability of our life
insurance business depends to a large extent on the degree to which our mortality experience compares to our
pricing assumptions. Our underwriting is based on our historical mortality experience, as well as on the
experience of the insurance industry and of the general population. We continually compare our underwriting
standards to those of the industry to assist in managing our mortality risk and to stay abreast of industry trends.

Our life insurance underwriters evaluate policy applications on the basis of the information provided by the
applicant and others. We use a variety of methods to evaluate certain policy applications, such as those where the
size of the policy sought is particularly large, or where the applicant is an older individual, has a known medical
impairment or is engaged in a hazardous occupation or hobby. Consistent with industry practice, we require
medical examinations and other tests depending upon the age of the applicant and the size of the proposed policy.

Our group life policies covering multiple lives are issued on a guaranteed issue basis, within specified limits per
life insured, whereby the amount of insurance issued per life on a guaranteed basis is related to the total number
of lives being covered and the particular need for which the product is being purchased. Guaranteed issue
underwriting applies to employees actively at work, and product pricing reflects the additional guaranteed issue
underwriting risk.

Reserves

We establish and report liabilities for future policy benefits on our consolidated balance sheet to reflect the
obligations under our insurance policies and contracts. Our liability for variable universal life insurance and
universal life insurance policies and contracts is equal to the cumulative account balances, plus additional reserves
we establish for policy riders. Cumulative account balances include deposits plus credited interest, less expense and
mortality charges and withdrawals. Reserves for future policy benefits for whole life policies are calculated based
on actuarial assumptions that include investment yields, mortality, lapses and expenses.

Reinsurance

While we have underwriting expertise and have experienced favorable mortality trends, we believe it is prudent to
spread the risk associated with our life insurance products through reinsurance. As is customary in the life
insurance industry, our reinsurance program is designed to protect us against adverse mortality experience
generally and to reduce the potential loss we might face from a death claim on any one life.

We cede risk to other insurers under various agreements that cover individual life insurance policies. The amount
of risk ceded depends on our evaluation of the specific risk and applicable retention limits. Under the terms of
our reinsurance agreements, the reinsurer agrees to reimburse us for the ceded amount in the event a claim is
incurred. However, we remain liable to our policyholders for ceded insurance if any reinsurer fails to meet its
obligations. Since we bear the risk of nonpayment by one or more of our reinsurers, we cede business to well-
capitalized, highly rated insurers. While our current retention limit on any one life is $10 million ($12 million on
second-to-die cases), we may cede amounts below those limits on a case-by-case basis depending on the
characteristics of a particular risk. Typically our reinsurance contracts allow us to reassume ceded risks after a
specified period. This right is valuable where our mortality experience is sufficiently favorable to make it
financially advantageous for us to reassume the risk rather than continue paying reinsurance premiums.

We reinsure 80% of the mortality risk on a block of policies acquired from Confederation Life Insurance
Company, or Confederation Life, in 1997. We entered into two separate reinsurance agreements in 1998 and 1999
to reinsure a substantial portion of our otherwise retained individual life insurance business. In addition, we
reinsure up to 90% of the mortality risk on some new issues. As of December 31, 2002, we had ceded $74.3
billion in face amount of reinsurance, representing 65.9% of our total face amount of $112.8 billion of life
insurance in force.




The following table lists our five principal life reinsurers, together with the reinsurance recoverables on a
statutory basis as of December 31, 2002, the face amount of life insurance ceded as of December 31, 2002, and

the reinsurers' A.M. Best ratings.

Reinsuramnce Face Amoumnt of

Recoverable Life Imsurance A.M. Best
Reinsurer Balances Ceded Rating @
AUSA Life Insurance Co.? ..o $ 5.8 million $ 9.5 billion A+
Swiss Re Life & Health America, Inc. ..o $ 9.4 million $ 13.5 billion A++
Allianz Life Insurance Co. of North America.........ccocoevveecimrennne $ 3.7 million $ 10.4 billion A+
Employers Reinsurance COIp........ccoevmrrvrirrceriemcereecnnnreeneesenneens $ 4.2 million § 8.9 billion A+
XL CAPIAL covorvecvreeeiseesses s sssss s s srissas $ 4.6 million $ 7.3 billion NR-5 @

(1) A.M. Best ratings are as of December 31, 2002.

2) AUSA Life Insurance Co. is a subsidiary of Aegon N.V.

3 The A M. Best rating for the XL Capital group is A+. The NR-5 rating is assigned to insurers that either request not
to be formally rated or were rated in the past and no longer provide financial information to A.M. Best.

Life and Annuity Financial Information

See Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in this Form 10-K
for Life and Annuity segment financial information.

Investment Management Segment

We conduct activities in Investment Management with a focus on two customer groups — private client and
institutional. Through our private client group, we provide investment management services principally on a
discretionary basis, with products consisting of open-end mutual funds and managed accounts. Managed accounts
include intermediary programs sponsored and distributed by non-affiliated broker-dealers, and direct managed
accounts which are sold and administered by us. These two types of managed accounts generally require
minimum investments of $100,000 and $1 million, respectively. Our private client business also provides transfer
agency, accounting and administrative services to most of our open-end mutual funds.

Through our institutional group, we provide discretionary and non-discretionary investment management services
primarily to corporations, multi-employer retirement funds and foundations, as well as to endowment, insurance
and other special purpose funds. In addition, we offer our institutional clients alternative financial products,
including structured finance products and closed-end funds. Structured finance products include collateralized
debt obligations, or CDQGs, and collateralized bond obligations, or CBQs, backed by portfolios of public high
yield bonds, emerging markets bonds, commercial mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities or bank loans.

Affiliated Asset Managers

We provide investment management services through our affiliated asset managers. We provide our affiliated
asset managers with a consolidated platform of distribution and administrative support. Each manager has
autonomy with its investment process while we monitor performance and ensure that each manager adheres to its
stated investment style.




Our affiliated managers, and their respective styles, products and assets under management, are as follows:

Assets Under
Management at

Affiliated Advisor/ December 31, 2002
PXP Ownership/Location Investment Styles Products (in billions)
Goodwin®" Capital Advisers”, or [Fixed Income — utual Funds
Goodwin / 100% / Sector Rotation Institutional Accounts
Hartford, CT Structured Finance Products
[Phoenix Life General Account $18.6
Seneca Capital Management LLC,|Fquities — Mutual Funds
r Seneca / 68.4% / Growth with Controlled Risk  [Sponsored Managed Accounts
San Francisco, CA [Earnings-Driven Growth Direct Managed Accounts
iTax Sensitive Growth * |Institutional Accounts
\Fixed Income — Structured Finance Products
\Value Driven $12.0
ayne Anderson Rudnick \Equities — Sponsored Managed Accounts
Investment Management, LLC, or Quality at Reasonable Price iDirect Managed Accounts
Kayne Anderson Rudnick/ 60% / Institutional Accounts
ILos Angeles, CA Mutual Funds $8.6
Duff & Phelps Investment Fquities — Mutual Funds
Management Co., or DPIM / Core Sponsored Managed Accounts
100% / Chicago, IL Fixed Income — "Institutional Accounts
Core Closed-end Funds $6.2
oger Engemann and Associates, [Equities — Mutual Funds
nc., or Engemann / Classic Growth Sponsored Managed Accounts
100% / Pasadena, CA Direct Managed Accounts $4.0
Zweig Fund Group, or Zweig / quities/Fixed Income - Mutual Funds
100% / New York, NY Tactical Asset Allocation Closed-end Funds
Market Neutral $1.7
Oakhurst™ Asset Managers" or |Equities - Mutual Funds
Oakhurst / 100% / Systematic Value
Scotts Valley, CA $1.5
'Walnut Asset Management LLC, |Equities - Direct Managed Accounts
or Walnut / 76% / Relative Value [nstitutional Accounts
Philadelphia, PA \Fixed Income -
Quality Fixed Income $0.7
Hollister™ Investment Equities — Mutual Funds
Vianagement" / 100% / [Traditional Value Managed Accounts
Sarasota, FL Institutional Accounts $0.5
Capital West Asset Management, Fquities - IDirect Managed Accounts
IL1.C, or Capital West/65% / Quantitative Value Institutional Accounts
IDenver, CO Large Cap Sponsored Managed Accounts
Core Small Cap $0.2
[Total Assets Under Management $54.0

(1) Goodwin, Oakhurst and Hollister are divisions

of PXP.

of Phoenix Investment Counsel, Inc., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary

Investment Management segment also includes our minority investment by Phoenix Life in Aberdeen Asset
Management PLC, or Aberdeen, a Scottish investment management company with institutional and retail clients
in the United Kingdom, as well as in continental Europe, Asia, Australia and the U.S. We acquired 21.8% of the
common stock of Aberdeen in a series of transactions from 1996 through May 2001. Aberdeen has offices in

seven countries, including Scotland, England, Singapore and the U.S.




Investment Management Products

Private Client Products
Managed Accounts. We provide investment management services through participation in 53 intermediary
managed account programs sponsored by various broker-dealers such as Merrill Lynch, Morgan Stanley and
Salomon Smith Barney. These programs enable the sponsor’s client to select one or more of PXP’s affiliated asset
managers as the provider of discretionary portfolio management services, in return for an asset-based fee paid by
the client to the broker-dealer, which then pays a management fee to us. Seven of these programs include more
than one of our affiliated asset managers. As of December 31, 2002 we managed 64,494 accounts relating to such
intermediary managed account programs, representing approximately $9.4 billion of assets under management.
In addition, we offer direct managed accounts which are individual client accounts sold and administered by us.
We managed 3,701 direct managed accounts representing $3.7 billion of assets under management.

Mutual Funds. Qur affiliated asset managers are investment advisers or sub-advisers to 57 open-end mutual
funds, which had aggregate assets under management of approximately $8.3 billion as of December 31, 2002.
These mutual funds are available primarily to retail investors. Thirteen of these funds are included as investment
choices to purchasers of our variable life and variable annuity products.

Institutional Products
Institutional Accounts. We have over 750 institutional clients, consisting primarily of medium-sized pension and
profit sharing plans of corporations, government entities and unions, as well as endowments and foundations,
public and multi-employer retirement funds and other special purpose funds. Our assets under management
totaled $12.3 billion as of December 31, 2002.

Closed-End Funds. 'We manage the assets of five closed-end funds, each of which is traded on the New York
Stock Exchange: DTF Tax-Free Income Inc.; Duff & Phelps Utility and Corporate Bond Trust Inc.; DNP Select
Income Inc.; The Zweig Fund, Inc. and The Zweig Total Return Fund, Inc. Cur assets under management totaled
$4.0 billion as of December 31, 2002.

Structured Finance Products. We manage nine structured finance products, and also act as a sub-adviser to a
structured finance product sponsored by a third party. These products are collateralized debt and bond obligations
backed by portfolios of high yield bonds, emerging markets bonds and/or asset-backed securities. Our assets
under management totaled $3.5 billion as of December 31, 2002.

Life Companies’ General Accounts and Related Assets. PXP manages most of the assets of the Life Companies’

general accounts, as well as assets of Phoenix-related entities. As of year-end 2002, PXP managed $14.5 biliion,
of the Life Companies’ assets.
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PXP Assets under Management

The following table presents information regarding the assets under management by PXP for the years 2002, 2001

and 2000 (in millions):

2002 2061 2000
TOTAL:
DIEPOSIES ..veeerereeeteiessireeetetet ettt seeresseast e sea et besse e et en s et n bt en st sn s eens bt tes et $10,134.4 $ 9,528.7 $11,5104
Redemptions and withdrawals.........c.ccoveciveniiiieinscecree e e (9,950.3) (9,069.7) (12,467.4)
Acquisitions @ and dispositions @..............coovecerirrrercrirenenee o) e 7,755.5 854.4 (3,336.0)
Performance .......ccvveeiire e e (7,863.2) (7,254.5) {(3,856.9)
Other @@ st ssssssesss s st 1,789.0 1,438.4 1413 -
Change in assets uUnder MANAZEMENT..........cocrrierrcmnieiairiereeersreeeissetessseses e seaneesns 1,865.4 (4,502.7) (8,008.6)
Beginning balance ............c.cvcoviiirmeniiinieric st 52,090.1 56,592.8 64,601.4
Ending DRIAICE ...ttt e e et $53,955.5 $52,090.1 $56,592.8
INSTITUTIONAL PRODUCTS:
DIEPOSIES . cvecvverrereesivsesescossns st sesss s ees s bbb st s et st ts st tsere e s bsesssnnnresanes $ 43804 $ 4,989.0 $ 5,5725
Redemptions and withdrawals................ccecveiniiceicieeesc e (4,480.0) (3,766.9) (7,355.6)
Acquisitions” @ and diSpositions @ ............ccoovveeeereereeeeee oo 1,507.7 105.9 (3,206.0)
PErfOIMAnCe ..ottt ettt sttt sb bttt (2,773.1) (1,152.2) 9354
OhET @@ i 1,789.0 1,438.4 141.3
Change in assets Under Management..........c.c.c.evererrireecrennieereeseseseeseneressaerseneenens 424.0 1,614.2 (3,912.4)
Beginning balance .........c.ccovreiirernce et es 32,030.2 30,416.0 34,3284
Ending DRIAMCE ........ oottt et es $32,454.2 $32,030.2 $30,416.0
PRIVATE CLIENT PRODUCTS:
Mutual Funds:
DIEPOSIES...covcecerererereriemsereesteeeesteesee b st re s st ee e s e s aa s eb b b st b na st s et b ebe s $ 1,332.8 $ 18178 $ 2,068.5
Redemptions and withdrawals...........c.cocovcincreiicrncnnicinnn e (2,754.0) (2,756.4) (3,492.0)
ACQUISIHONS™ ...t ese s s see s ss e cseesssesens 3335 - -
PErfOIMANCE ... .o ettt snaa e st b bt e nas s e bt et sers s anaes (1,811.8) (2,556.5) (1,933.2)
Change in assets under management...........cccoooeeevnrernrecrcrnenrernnens JESORROIRRN (2,899.5) (3,495.1) (3,356.7)
Beginning balance ..........ocveiiieii et s 11,221.6 14,716.7 18,073.4
Ending DAIARCE ..ottt st en st e sneeans $ 8,322.1 $18,221.6 $14,716.7
Intermediary Programs:
DIPOSILS . cevevrireririreresi st eeee et et e sttt se et et se b s ta e bat et ettt $ 4,117.0 $ 2,607.7 $ 3,668.9
Redemptions and withdrawals.............ccccccoernnine e - (2,317.9) (2,316.0) (1,408.0)
ACGUISTHONS™ Ot S 4,723.5 10.7 --
PEITOIIMANCE .....oovevierriei ettt es e e ass s ses s pa e esanes (2,903.1) (2,886.9) (2,546.5)
Change in assets under Management..........covccveeuverereerrneierineres st esre s seessesees 3,619.5 (2,584.5) (285.6)
Beginning balance ... e e 5,819.6 8,404.1 8,689.7
Ending balanee. ..ot st $ 9,439.1 $ 5,819.6 $ 8,404.1
Direct Managed Accounts:
DIEPOSILS. .. vvcereniercrcirecres i ettt b sttt s s st b e et erebar st snan $ 3042 $ 1142 $ 2005
Redemptions and withdrawals...........co.ooueeeerninieiennincre e (398.4) (230.4) (211.8)
ACQUISIHONS W C) ettt eoes et 1,190.8 737.8 (130.0)
PErfOrmManCe .......ceveiiieirire ettt s b e e (375.2) (658.9) (312.6)
Change in assets Under MAaNAZEIMENL. ........cccveevvuveereerrirereerrnieereesensbeeresnesessesreanas 7214 (37.3) (453.9)
Beginning Balance ...t 3,018.7 3,056.0 3,509.9
EnGing Balanee........coccooviiiiiincee sttt $ 3,7408.1 $ 3,018.7 $ 3,056.0
) Includes assets of $0.7 billion related to the Walnut acquisition in 2001.
) Includes asset outflows of $3.3 billion in 2000 related to the sale of Cleveland operations.

3) Includes assets of $0.9 billion related to the Phoenix [PO in 2001.
4) Includes assets of $0.1 billion from Capital West in 2001.

(5) Includes assets of $7.8 billion from Kayne Anderson Rudnick in 2002.
(6) Includes net change in the Life Companies’ general account assets.
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Investment Management Financial Information

See Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in this Form 10-K
for Investment Management segment financial information.

Competition

We face significant competition in our life insurance, annuity and investment management businesses from a
wide variety of financial institutions, including insurance companies, other investment management companies,
banks, broker-dealers, and financial planning firms. Qur competitors include larger and, in some cases, more
highly rated insurance companies and other financial services companies. Many competitors offer similar
products, use similar distribution sources, offer less expensive products, have deeper penetration in key
distribution channels and have greater resources than us.

Competition in our life, annuity and investment management businesses is based on several factors including:
ratings, investment performance, the ability to penetrate distribution channels, service to advisors and their
clients, product development that meets the changing needs of advisors and their clients, fees and expense
management.

As we continue to focus on the development of our non-affiliated distribution system, we increasingly must
compete with other providers of life insurance, annuity and private client products to attract and maintain
relationships with productive distributors that have the ability to sell our products. In particular, our ability to
attract distributors for our products could be adversely affected if for any reason our products became less
competitive or concerns arose about our asset quality or ratings.

Distribution
The Team Phoenix Approach

Our strategy is to deepen our market penetration by selling a greater array of products through existing
distribution sources and to broaden our distribution system by developing new relationships. We seek to execute
this strategy through collaborative account development, whereby our life insurance, annuity and investment
management wholesalers introduce one another to distributors with whom they have relationships, and encourage
those distributors to sell additional categories of our products. This Team Phoenix approach, which we initiated in
1699, often involves joint marketing presentations and specialized services to advisors. In mid-year 2002, we
strengthened our commitment to this approach by aligning all three of our wholesaling teams under the leadership
of one individual. We believe having many of the same investment choices available in each of our product lines
contributes to the success of this approach since, in our experience, a distributor already comfortable with our
investment options in one product line is generally more receptive to the idea of selling additional product lines.

In 2001, we focused on account acquisition, opening relationships at new firms or adding additional product lines
within relationships. During 2002, we focused on increasing the number of producers selling Phoenix products
within existing relationships. In life insurance, nine of our top 10 firms had increases in life insurance sold, as
measured by new annualized life insurance premiums. Annuities showed increases at the four largest firms. In
addition, over 6,500 new producers wrote annuity business with us over the course of 2002 and over 9,700 new
producers placed investment management business with us in 2002.

We target a broad range of distribution relationships with advisors and distribution entities that we consider to

have exceptional access to our target market. We seek to build relationships with distributors who are, or who
have access to, advisors to the affluent and high-net-worth market,

12




Non-affiliated Distribution

We began to use non-affiliated distribution in 1954, primarily by selling life insurance products through agents of
other insurance companies. For many years, non-affiliated distribution has represented a significant portion of our
sales and in recent years we increased our emphasis on this distribution source.

Since late 1999, we have significantly strengthened our wholesaling teams, in order to enhance our relationships
with distributors in each of our product areas. As of December 31, 2002, we employed 76 life insurance
wholesalers, 39 variable annuity wholesalers and 50 investment management wholesalers, compared to 42, one
and 24, respectively, as of December 31, 1999,

During the years 2002, 2001 and 2000, 88%, 81% and 70%, respectively, of total life insurance sales, as measured
by new annualized and single premiums, were from non-affiliated distribution sources. Variable annuity sales
through non-affiliated distribution accounted for 87%, 80% and 42% of gross annuity deposits during 2002, 2601
and 2000, respectively. Investment Management sales through non-affiliated distribution accounted for 99% of
sales in all three previous years.

State Farm. In March 2001, we entered into an agreement with a subsidiary of State Farm Mutual Automobile
Insurance Company, or State Farm, to provide various products and services to State Farm and its subsidiaries and
policyholders, including estate, retirement, executive benefits and charitable gift planning. The agreement also
offers us the opportunity to provide to State Farm's affluent customers, through qualified State Farm agents,
additional life and annuity products and services not previously available from those agents. By the end of 2002,
we had completed a national rollout of Phoenix products to State Farm agents and had trained and certified
approximately 7,600, or 76%, of State Farm’s 10,000 securities licensed agents. Our relationship with State Farm
gives us potential access to approximately 30% of the high-net-worth households in the U.S. For 2002, State
Farm ranked third among our distributors in the sale of life insurance and fifth in the sale of annuity products.

National and Regional Broker-Dealers. National and regional broker-dealers are those brokerage firms that
engage individual advisors as employees rather than as independent contractors. To meet the evolving wealth
management needs of their customers, national and regional broker-dealers offer products from third-party
providers such as Phoenix. Simultaneously, many of these firms are seeking to reduce the number of
relationships they have with product providers in favor of those that offer a range of products together with
services designed to support advisors' sales efforts. We believe our ability to offer wealth management solutions
based on a variety of life insurance, annuity and investment management products positions us to benefit from these
trends. For example, in 2002 we ranked second in Merrill Lynch Life Agency's non-proprietary life insurance sales.
Despite virtually no sales in 2000, Merrill Lynch’s sales of our annuity products grew significantly for the second
year in a row. We had the leading non-proprietary annuity sold in Merrill Lynch’s system in 2002. In addition, we
were one of the largest managers of client assets in the "Consults" intermediary managed account program of
Merrill Lynch in 2002,

Financial Planning Firms. Financial planning firms are brokerage firms that engage individual advisors as
independent contractors rather than as employees. Financial planning firms have begun to show significant
interest in expanding their offerings to include wealth preservation and transfer products. To capitalize on this
trend, we focus on the development of relationships directly with the financial planning firm rather than with the
individual financial planners. This entity-focused approach permits us to maximize the number of individual
registered representatives who potentially may sell our products. As an example of our success among financial
planning firms, annualized life premiums through Financial Services Corporation, or FSC, a subsidiary of Sun
America, in 2002 were $2.2 million, up 37% from 2001. This level of production ranked us third among insurance
carriers for the FSC Access Group, an internal FSC producer group.

Advisor Groups. The recent industry trend toward aftiliations among small independent financial advisors has led

to advisor groups becoming a distinct class of distributors. We believe we have a particularly strong position as a
provider of life insurance products through Partners Marketing Group, Inc., or PartnersFinancial, which, since
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1999, has been an important component of the National Financial Partners, or NFP, organization. Overall life
sales with NFP grew 24% in 2002,

Insurance Companies. Insurance companies have been moving their agents into an advisor/planner role, resulting
in a need to provide their agents, particularly their top producers, with a wider selection of life insurance products
to sell. Insurance companies responded to this need, in part, by negotiating arrangements with third party
providers, including other insurance companies. We are taking advantage of this trend by developing distribution
relationships with financial services providers such as AXA Financial Inc., or AXA, and its brokerage outlet for
internal producers, AXA Network. Life sales through AXA Network grew 19% in 2002. In addition, we
continue to maintain relationships with individual agents of other companies and independent agents.

Emerging Distribution Sources. PFG offers private placement life and annuity products through a variety of
distribution sources with access to the high-net-worth market including family offices, financial institutions,
accountants and attorneys. We also offer our life and annuity products through non-traditional sources such as
private banks and private banking groups within commercial banks.

Affiliated Distribution

Cur affiliated retail distribution channel consists primarily of Phoenix Life career producers. Substantially all of
our career producers are licensed securities representatives of our wholly-owned broker-dealer, WS Griffith. Cur
career producers principally sell our Life Companies’ products, but may sell the products of other companies as
well. In 2002, our Life Companies’ products represented 65% of WS Griffith's variable annuity and life sales, 67%
of its total variable annuity deposits and 61% of its total variable universal life premiums. WS Griffith has over 940
affiliated retail producers.

Our affiliated distribution capability also includes Main Street Management Company, a broker-dealer with
approximately 250 registered representatives and a strong focus on variable products and mutual funds. Main
Street Management is one of our majority-owned subsidiaries. -

Institutional Products Distribution

We also have an Institutional marketing group, which markets our institutional product offering to consultants and
other institutional clients. This shared platform, which was first set up in 2000, is complemented by experienced
institutional salespersons at several of our affiliated asset managers.

We direct our institutional marketing efforts primarily toward investment management consultants who are
retained by institutional investors to assist in competitive reviews of potential investment managers. These
consultants recommend investment managers to their institutional clients based on their review of investment
managers' performance histories and investment styles. We maintain relationships with these consultants and
provide information and materials to them in order to facilitate their review of our funds.

Support and Services

We believe we have a competitive advantage due to our practice of providing distributors with a variety of
services, including:

> market education programs designed to help advisors better understand the financial product ownership
patterns of the affluent and high-net-worth market and to assist advisors in marketing to specific
customer segments such as senior corporate executives, business owners and high-net-worth
households;

» marketing programs, including special events, that provide distributors access to the affluent and high-
net-worth market;

14




° customized advice on estate planning, charitable giving planning, executive benefits and retirement
planning, provided by a staff of professionals with specialized expertise in the advanced application of
life insurance and variable annuity products. This staff includes eight attorneys with an average of
approximately twenty years’ experience, who combine their advice with tailored presentations,
educational materials and specimen legal documents;

* separate nationwide teams of life, annuity and investment management product specialists who provide
education and sales support to distributors and who can act as part of the advisory team for case design
and technical support;

° investment management and investment allocation strategies, including our Complementary Investment
Analysis tool, which identifies investment options offered both by us and third parties that are suitable
for an individual's allocation needs;

» an underwriting team with significant experience in evaluating the financial and medical underwriting
risks associated with affluent and high-net-worth individuals, who generally purchase high face-value
policies requiring more extensive underwriting analysis; and

° internet-accessible information that makes it easier for our distributors to do business with us, including

interactive product illustrations, educational and sales tools, and online access to forms, marketing
materials and policyholder account information.

Non-operating Segmernts

Venture Capital Segment

We have invested in the venture capital markets for over 25 years through Phoenix Life’s investment portfolio.
Venture capital represented 1% and 2% of total investments and cash and cash equivalents as of December 31,
2002 and 2001, respectively. The carrying value of partnership investments in the venture capital segment was
$227.8 million as of December 31, 2002.

Our venture capital investments are primarily in the form of limited partnership interests in venture capital funds,
leveraged buyout funds and other private equity partnerships sponsored and managed by third parties. We refer to
all of these types of investments as venture capital. We currently have 110 partnership investments through 55
sponsors. We believe our long-standing relationships and history of consistent participation with many well-
established venture capital sponsors gives us preferred access to attractive venture capital opportunities. These
assets are investments of our life insurance subsidiary.

Historically, we viewed our venture capital investments as an opportunity to enhance returns on our participating
life products. In the past, we allocated between 1.0% and 2.0% of annual investable cash flow to venture capital
investments.

In February 2003, we reached an agreement to sell a 50% interest in certain of our venture capital partnerships to
an outside party and transfer the remaining 50% interest to our closed block. The carrying value of the
partnerships being sold and transferred totaled $53.5 million after realizing a loss of $5.1 million in 2002 to
reflect the proceeds being received. The unfunded commitments of the partnerships being sold and transferred
totaled $28.1 million; the outside party and the closed block will each fund half of these commitments. The
partnerships will constitute less than 0.5% of the assets of the closed block after they are transferred.
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Venture Capital Financial Information

See Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in this Form 10-K
for Venture Capital segment financial information.

Corporate and Other Segment

The Corporate and Other segment includes unallocated capital and expenses as well as certain businesses not of
sufficient scale to report independently. Corporate and Other also includes our international operations other than
our investments in Aberdeen and Lombard International Assurance, S.A., or Lombard. As of December 31, 2002,
we had a total of $50.6 million invested in businesses in six countries through this segment.

Corporate and Other also includes an investment in Hilb, Rogal & Hamilton Company, or HRH, which we
obtained upon our sale of American Phoenix Corporation to HRH in 1999. In November 2002, we sold a portion
of our HRH common stock in a public offering. Concurrently, in a separate public offering, we sold prepaid
forward contracts issued by us that will settle in November 2005 in shares of HRH common stock. To secure our
obligation to deliver these shares, we pledged the maximum number of shares deliverable under the forward
contracts. We continued to own 266,770 shares of HRH common stock which were not so pledged. As of
December 31, 2002, we owned 13.3% of the outstanding HRH common stock, 11.9% on a diluted basis.

Corporate and Other Financial Information

See Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations on this Form 10-K
for Corporate and Other segment financial information.

General Bevelopment of Business o
PNX was incorporated in Delaware in March 2000. Our principal executive offices are located at One American
Row, Hartford, Connecticut 06102-5056. Our telephone number is (860) 403-5000. Our website is located at
PhoenixWealthManagement.com. (This URL is intended to be an inactive textual reference only. It is not
intended to be an active hyperlink to our website. The information on our website is not, and is not intended to
be, part of this Form 10-K and is not incorporated into this report by reference.)

Phoenix Mutual Insurance Company was organized in Connecticut in 1851. In 1992, in connection with its
merger with Home Life Insurance Company, or Home Life, the company redomiciled to New York and changed
its name to Phoenix Home Life Mutual Insurance Company, or Phoenix Home Life.

On June 25, 2001, the effective date of its demutualization, Phoenix Home Life converted from a mutual life
insurance company to a stock life insurance company, became a wholly-owned subsidiary of PNX and changed
its name to Phoenix Life Insurance Company. At the same time, PXP became an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of PNX. All policyholder membership interests in the mutual company were extinguished on the
effective date.

In addition, on June 25, 2001, PNX completed its initial public offering, or IPO, in which 48.8 million shares of
common stock were issued at a price of §17.50 per share. Net proceeds from the IPO were $807.9 million, which
was contributed to Phoenix Life, as required under the plan-of reorganization. On July 24, 2001, Morgan Stanley
& Co. Incorporated exercised its right to purchase 1,395,900 additional shares of the common stock of PNX at the
IPO price of $17.50 per share less underwriter’s discount. Net proceeds of $23.2 million were contributed to
Phoenix Life. Subsequent share repurchases have reduced the total number of our shares outstanding to 94.0
million at December 31, 2002.

16




The following chart illustrates our current corporate structure.

L THE PHOENIX COMPANIES, INC. ]

r I T ]
100% 100% 100% 100%
PHOENIX LIFE PHOENIX INVESTMENT PHOENIX PHOENIX NATIONAL
INSURANCE MANAGEMENT COMPANY, DISTRIBUTION TRUST HOLDING
COMPANY INC. HoLDING Company COMPANY
100% 100%
PM HOLDINGS, INC. PHOENIX INVESTMENT PARTNERS, LTD.
I . T
Various %s Various %s
| . {
OTHER DOMESTIC AND FOREIGN SUBSIDIARIES OTHER DOMESTIC AND FOREIGN SUBSIDIARIES

(1) Direct and indirect subsidiaries of Phoenix Distribution Holding Company include PHL Associates, Inc., Main Street

Management and WS Griffith.

At December 31, 2002, we employed approximately 2,125 people. We believe our relations with our employees

are good.
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ftem 2. Properties

Cur executive headquarters consist of our main office building at One American Row and two other buildings in
Hartford, Connecticut. We own these buildings and cccupy most of the space contained in them. In addition to
these properties, we own offices in Enfield, Connecticut and East Greenbush, New York for use in the operation
of our business. We also lease office space within and out of the United States of America as needed for cur
operations, including use by our sales force. In conjunction with our strategic plan, we have implemented a
comprehensive facilities pian. The plan includes the sale of our Enfield, Conn., offices. Business functions from
Enfield will be relocated to our existing Hartford offices and a yet-to-be identified smaller facility in Hartford or
north of Hartford. )

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

General

We are regularly involved in litigation, both as a defendant and as a plaintiff. The litigation naming us as a
defendant ordinarily involves our activities as an insurer, employer, investment adviser, investor or taxpayer.
Several current proceedings are discussed below. In addition, state regulatory bodies, the Securities and
Exchange Commission, or SEC, the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. and other regulatory bodies
regularly make inquiries of us and, from time to time, conduct examinations or investigations concerning our
compliance with, among other things, insurance laws, securities laws, and laws governing the activities of broker-
dealers. For example, the New York State Insurance Department has recently begun its routine quinquennial
financial and market conduct examination of Phoenix Life Insurance Company and one of its New York
domiciied subsidiaries and the SEC has recently begun a routine examination of the books and records of certain
of our Life Companies’ separate accounts. We are actively cooperating with both regulators.

These types of lawsuits and regulatory actions may be difficult to assess or quantify, may seek recovery of
indeterminate amounts, including punitive and treble damages, and their existence and magnitude may remain
unknown for substantial periods of time. A substantial legal liability or significant regulatory action against us
could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

It is not feasible to predict or determine the ultimate outcome of all pending investigations and legal proceedings
or to provide reasonable ranges of potential losses. We believe that their cutcomes are not likely to have a
material adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition, after consideration of available insurance and
reinsurance and the provisions made in our consolidated financial statements.

However, given the indeterminate amounts sought in certain of these matters and litigation’s inherent
unpredictability, it is possible that an adverse outcome in certain matters could, from time to time, have a material
adverse effect on our operating results or cash flows.

Discontinued Reinsurance Business

During 1999, our Life Companies placed their remaining group accident and health reinsurance business into run-
off, adopting a formal plan to terminate the related contracts as early as contractually permitted and not entering
into any new contracts. As part of the decision to discontinue these reinsurance operations, we reviewed the run-
off block and estimated the amount and timing of future net premiums, claims and expenses.

We established reserves and reinsurance recoverables for claims and related expenses that we expect to pay on
our discontinued group accident and health reinsurance business. These reserves and reinsurance recoverables are
a net present value amount that is based on currently known facts and estimates about, among other things, the
amount of insured losses and expenses that we believe we will pay, the period over which they will be paid, the
amount of reinsurance we believe we will coliect under finite reinsurance and other reinsurance and the likely
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legal and administrative cost of winding down the business. Total reserves were $35.0 million and total
reinsurance recoverables were $65.0 million at December 31, 2002. In addition, in 1999 we purchased finite
aggregate excess-of-loss reinsurance to further protect us from unfavorable results from this discontinued
business. The maximum coverage available is currently $120.0 million. The amount of our total financial
provisions at December 31, 2002 was, therefore, $90.0 million, consisting of reserves, less reinsurance
recoverables, plus the amount currently available from cur finite aggregate excess-of-loss reinsurance.

Our Life Companies are involved in disputes relating to reinsurance arrangements under which they reinsured
group accident and health risks. The first of these involves contracts for reinsurance of the life and health carveout
components of workers compensation insurance arising out of a reinsurance pool created and formerly managed
by Unicover Managers, Inc., or Unicover. In one of those, the arbitration panel issued its decision on October 8,
2002. The financial implications of this decision are consistent with our Life Companies’ current financial
provisions. In addition, Phoenix Life is involved in arbitrations and negotiations pending in the United Kingdom
between multiple layers of reinsurers and reinsureds relating to transactions in which it participated involving
certain personal accident excess-of-loss business reinsured in the London market.

In light of our provisions for our discontinued reinsurance operations through the establishment of reserves and
the finite reinsurance, based on currently available information, we do not expect these operations, including the
proceedings described above, to have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position. However,
given the large and/or indeterminate amounts involved and the inherent unpredictability of litigation, it is not

possible to predict with certainty the ultimate impact on us of all pending matters or of our discontinued
reinsurance operations.

Policyholder Lawsuits Challenging the Plan of Resrganization

Two pending lawsuits seek to challenge Phoenix Life's reorganization and the adequacy of the information provided
to policyholders regarding the plan of reorganization. We believe that each of these lawsuits lacks merit. The first of
these lawsuits, Andrew Kertesz v. Phoenix Home Life Mut. Ins. Co., et al., was filed on April 16, 2001, in the
Supreme Court of the State of New York for New York County. The plaintiff seeks to maintain a class action on
behalf of a putative class consisting of the eligible policyholders of Phoenix Life as of December 18, 2000, the date
the plan of reorganization was adopted. The plaintiff also seeks compensatory damages for losses allegedly
sustained by the class as a result of the demutualization, punitive damages and other relief. The defendants named in
the lawsuit include Phoenix Life and PNX and their directors, as well as Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated,
financial advisor to Phoenix Life in connection with the plan of reorganization. A motion tc dismiss the claims
asserted in this lawsuit has been granted. The plaintiff has filed an appeal. The company will rigorously defend this
suit.

On October 22, 2001, Andrew Kertesz filed a proceeding pursuant to Article 78 of the New York Civil Practice Law
and Rules, Andrew Kertesz v. Gregory V. Serio, et al., in the Supreme Court of New York for New York County.
The Article 78 petition sought to vacate and annul the decision and order of the New York Superintendent, dated
June 1, 2001, approving the plan of reorganization. The petition named as respondents Phoenix Life and PNX and
their directors and the New York Superintendent. A motion to dismiss this lawsuit has recently been granted and the
appeal period has expired.

Two additional lawsuits challenging the plan have been dismissed. We are not aware of any other lawsuits
challenging the reorganization or the plan.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Helders

No matter was submitted to a vote of our security holders during the fourth Quarter of the fiscal year covered by
this report. '
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PARTII

Item 5. RMarket of Registrant’s Commeon Eguity and Related Stockholder Matters

In connection with Phoenix Life’s June 25, 20C1 demutualization, during 2002, we issued 4,201 shares of
common stock to eligible policyholders, effective as of June 25, 2001. In reliance on the exemption under Section
3(a)(10) of the Securities Act of 1933, we issued these shares to policyholders in exchange for their membership
interests without registration under that act.

The following table presents the high and low prices for our common stock on the New York Stock Exchange for
the year 2002 and the period from June 21, 2001 through December 31, 2001. The closing price of our common
stock on December 31, 2002 was $7.60.

2002 2001

High Low High Low
First QUAITET........civeeirieeeeeeerererrraninireressnessesse s seaese s $ 1975 $ 1684 - -
SECONE QUATTET ...ovcivievieeerrrereeteereeenseren b eeere et esebe et ess e $ 2025 $ 1550 $ 18.80 $ 1690
Third QUarter........ccccvirveeenieiriinnr s rre st ee s e senans $ 18.01 $ 13.30 $ 19.35 $ 12.50
Fourth QUATLET ......ccveviviiiecerrieie et st ev e ese s $ 1375 3 6.50 $ 1850 $ 1280

Item 6. Selected Finagncizl Data

Gur selected historical consolidated financial data as of and for each of the five years ended December 31, 2062
follows (dollars in miilions, except earnings per share). We derived the data for the years 2002, 2001 and 2000
from our consolidated financial statements included eisewhere in this Form 10-K. We derived the data for the
years 1999 and 1998 from audited consolidated financial statements not included in this Form i10-K. Prior to June
25, 2001, Phoenix Life was the parent company of our consolidated group. In connection with its
demutualization, Phoenix Life became a subsidiary and PNX became the parent company of our consolidated

group.

We prepared the following financial data, other than statutory data, in conformity with GAAP. We derived the
statutory data from the Annual Statements of our Life Companies filed with insurance regulatory authorities and
prepared it in accordance with statutory accounting practices, which vary in certain respects from GAAP.
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You should read the following in conjunction with "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Condition and Results of Operations” and our consolidated financial statements included in this Form 10-K.

Income Statement Data:

PIemMIUIMIS .....ocvverierieie et eereeaveeneenns
Insurance and investment product fees........
Net investment inCOME ..........cccvevveeererernnnn,
Net realized investment gains (losses).........
Total Fevenues. ..o
Total benefits and expenses.....................

Income (loss) from continuing operations...
Income (loss) from discontinued operations,
net of income taxes® ..............ccoovvvrernnn.
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of
accounting changes........coceoeveeenenrecernens
Cumulative effect of accounting changes®.
Net InCOmMe (10SS).evvvrvererieririerceenieeieereerene

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations(4)

Net income (1088)® .......covrvvvvronrcerircrinenes

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges:
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges ™ ...........
Supplemental ratio of earnings to

fixed charges—including interest credited

on policyholder contract balances ©..........

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and Investments .........cocoevevvvoriivvenereens
TOtal ASSELS ...viivviieere et

Indebtedness ...ccccooovveveeeeii i
Total HabilitieS.....ccovvviiivrereriiiece e

Minority interest in net assets of
consolidated subsidiaries ...........cccoeovrnnee.

Total stockholders’ equity ......c.coevveverenncee
Assets Under Management:'".................

Consolidated Statutory Data:

Premiums and deposits .........cccvcererirecncnenns
Net income (10SS)-.vcveeeriiiiviieirrvereieneeees
Capital and surplus™ ........ooocoooeveeoireenns
Asset valuation reserve (FAVR™)® ............
Total statutory capital, surplus and AVR.....

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
$1,081.9 $1,112.7 $1,147.4 $1,175.7 $1,175.8
563.4 546.4 631.0 574.6 537.5
915.2 847.6 1,141.3 961.5 862.0
(107.6) (72.4) 89.2 75.8 58.2
$2,452.9 $2,434.3 $3,008.3 $2,787.6 $2,633.5
$2,613.0 $2,670.5 $2,839.7 $2,513.5 $2,474.3
$ (115.7) $ (137.3) $ 948 $ 162.1 $ 919
- - (11.5) (72.9) 45.2
(115.7) (137.3) 83.3 89.2 137.1

(130.3) (65.4) - - -
$ (246.0) $ (202.7) S 83.3 $ 892 $ 137.1
$ (118 $ (13D §8 .9l $ 155 $ .88
$ (25) S (1949 $ 80 $ 85 $ 131

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
- - 42 6.9 5.3
0.6 0.3 1.8 2.5 2.0

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
$16,780.3 $14,420.4 $12,597.4 $11,600.7 $11,534.5
$25,245.7 $22,535.9 $20,313.2 $20,287.0 $18,798.0
S 6443 $  599.3 $  425.1 $ 4994 3 4493
$23,203.2 $20,131.4 $18,335.4 $18,430.9 $16,969.4
$ 108 $ 88 $ 1369 $  100.1 $ 920
$ 2,031.7 $ 2,395.7 $ 1,840.9 $ 1,756.0 $ 1,736.6
$63,813.9 $61,212.2 $64,543.6 $73,185.4 $61,206.3
$ 3,919.7 $ 3,144.8 $ 2,344.8 $ 2,330.2 $ 2,578.8
$ (130.7) S (660) 8§ 266.1 $ 1313 $ 1087
$ 8610 $ 1,149.8 $ 1,322.8 $ 1,054.1 $ 9053
147.8 2234 560.4 373.2 300.3
$ 1,008.8 $ 1,373.2 $ 1.883.2 $ 1427.3 $ 12056

(1)  For a summary of our significant accounting policies, refer to the notes to our consolidated financial statements

included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.




)

3)

4

(5)

(6)

7

During 1999, Phoenix Home Life discontinued the operations of three of its businesses which in prior years were
reflected as the following reportable business segments: reinsurance operations, group life and health insurance
operations and real estate management operations.

The discontinuation of these businesses resulted from the sales of several operations and the implementation of
plans to withdraw from the remaining businesses. These transactions do not affect the comparability of the financial
data. The assets and liabilities of the discontinued operations have been excluded from the assets and liabilities of
continuing operations and separately identified in the balance sheet data. Likewise, our income statement data have
been restated for 1998 to exclude from continuing operations the operating results of discontinued operations.
Additional information on discontinued operations is included in Note 13 to our consolidated financial statements
included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

During 2002, we recognized a cumulative effect adjustment for an accounting change for goodwill and other
intangible assets. Effective January 1, 2002, we adopted the new accounting standard for goodwill and other
intangible assets, including amounts reflected in equity-method investments. This adoption resulted in a cumulative
effect adjustment of $130.3 million (after income taxes of $11.4 million). Additional information on this
accounting change is included in Notes 1 and 4 to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this
Form 10-K.

During 2001, we recognized cumulative effect adjustments for accounting changes for venture capital partnerships,
derivative instruments and securitized financial instruments.

We changed our method of applying the equity method of accounting for our venture capital parmerships. We
recorded a charge of $48.8 million (after income taxes of $26.3 million) representing the cumulative effect of this
accounting change on the fourth quarter of 2000. The cumulative effect was based on the actual fourth quarter 2000
financial results as reported by the partnerships. Additional information on this accounting change is included in
Notes 1 and 5 to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K. :

Effective January 1, 2001, we adopted a new accounting pronouncement for derivative instruments. This adoption
resulted in a cumulative effect adjustment of $3.9 million (after income taxes of $2.1 million). Additional
information on this accounting change is included in Notes 1 and 14 to our consolidated financial statements
included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Effective April 1, 2001, we adopted a new accounting pronouncement for recognition of interest income and
impairment on certain investments. This pronouncement requires investors in certain asset-backed securities to
record changes in their estimated yield on a prospective basis and to apply specific valuation methods to these
securities for an other-than-temporary decline in value. Upon adoption, we recorded a $20.5 million charge to net
income as a cumulative effect of accounting change, net of income taxes. Additional information on this
accounting change is included in Notes 1 and 5 to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this
Form 10-K.

We calculated earnings per share for each of the four years from 1998 through 2001 on a pro forma basis, based on
104.6 million weighted-average shares outstanding. The pro forma weighted-average shares outstanding calculation
for 2001 is based on the weighted-average shares outstanding for the period from the demutualization and IPO to
the end of the year.

Due to our losses during 2002 and 2001, the ratio coverages for those periods were less than 1:1. We would need
$88.2 million and $122.3 million in additional earnings for the years 2002 and 2001, respectively to achieve a 1:1
coverage ratio.

Due to our losses during 2002 and 2001, the ratio coverages, including interest credited on policyholder contract
balances were less than 1:1. We would need $88.2 million and $122.3 million in additional earnings for the years
2002 and 2001, respectively to achieve a 1:1 coverage ratio.

Assets under management consist of third party assets managed by our investment management subsidiary PXP,

plus total assets as reflected in our consolidated financial statements, adjusted to reflect total rather than net assets
of discontinued operations.
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(®)

&)

In accordance with accounting practices prescribed by the New York State Insurance Department, Phoenix Life’s

capital and surplus for 1998 and subsequent periods includes $175.0 million of total principal amount of surplus
notes outstanding.

The AVR is a statutory reserve intended to mitigate changes to the balance sheet as a result of fluctuations in asset
values.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analvsis of Financial Condition and Resulés of Operations

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT

The following discussion may contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The company intends these forward-looking statements to be covered by the safe
harbor provisions of the federal securities laws relating to forward-looking statements. These include statements
relating to trends in, or representing management’s beliefs about, the company’s future strategies, operations and
financial results, as well as other statements including words such as “anticipate”, “believe,” “plan,”
“estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “may,” “should” and other similar expressions. Forward-looking statements
are made based upon management’s current expectations and beliefs concerning trends and future developments
and their potential effects on the company. They are not guarantees of future performance. Actual results may
differ materially from those suggested by forward-looking statements as a result of risks and uncertainties which
include, among others: (i) changes in general economic conditions, including changes in interest and currency
exchange rates and the performance of financial markets, (ii) heightened competition, including with respect to
pricing, entry of new competitors and the development of new products and services by new and existing
competitors; (iii) the company’s primary reliance, as a holding company, on dividends and other payments from
its subsidiaries to meet debt payment obligations, particularly since the company’s insurance subsidiaries’ ability
to pay dividends is subject to regulatory restrictions; (iv) regulatory, accounting or tax changes that may affect
the cost of, or demand for, the products or services of the company’s subsidiaries; (v} downgrades in the claims
paying ability or financial strength ratings of the company’s subsidiaries or in its credit ratings; (vi)
discrepancies between actual claims experience and assumptions used in setting prices for the products of
insurance subsidiaries and establishing the liabilities of such subsidiaries for future policy benefits and claims
relating to such products; (vii) movements in the equity markets that affect our investment results, including those
from venture capital, the fees we earn from assets under management and the demand for our variable products;
(viii) the company’s success in achieving planned expense reductions; and (ix) other risks and uncertainties
described in any of the company’s filings with the SEC. The company undertakes no obligation to update or
revise publicly any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

FENY LTS

RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS

Continued peor performance of the equity markets counld adversely affect sales of our investment
management, variable universal life and variable annuity products. Sales of all of our products could also
be adversely affected by a2 general economic downturn.

The U.S. equity markets experienced strong growth followed by substantial declines. From April 1, 2000 through
December 31, 2002, the Nasdaq Composite Index and the Standard & Poor's 500 Index fell 70.79% and 41.29%,
respectively. These market declines have been accompanied by increased volatility.

There are two main ways in which market declines and volatility have affected, or have the potential to affect, our
revenues negatively.

» First, significant market volatility or declines may cause potential purchasers of our products to refrain
from new or additional investments, and current investors to withdraw from the markets or reduce their
rates of ongoing investment. At this time we cannot estimate the impact to date of the market on our sales.

< Second, because the revenues of our investment management and variable products businesses are to a
large extent based on fees related to the value of assets under our management, the poor performance of the
equity markets has limited our fee revenues by reducing the value of the investment assets we manage. Cur
assets under management at December 31, 2002 were 1.3% less than at December 31, 2000. The
possibility of declines in assets under management is heightened by the fact that as of December 31, 2002,
approximately 20% of our variable universal life insurance assets under management excluding our private
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placement business, and approximately 61% of our variable annuity assets under management excluding
our private placement business, were not subject to any surrender penalties. It is also possible that we
could begin to experience increasing surrenders if equity markets continue to perform poorly. The
surrender charges applicable to our variable universal life insurance policies and variable annuities
typically decline over a period of years and generally expire after 10 years. Moreover, surrenders of life
insurance policies and annuities require faster amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs, which
would reduce our profitability. Our total expense for amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs was
$59.2 million in 2002.

In addition to the effects of poorly performing equity markets, a general economic downturn could have a
negative effect on households in our target affluent and high-net-worth market and therefore could hurt sales of
our products.

We experienced sigrificant operating losses in 2002. Continued significant operating losses could impair
our ability to access the capital markets or repay our debt obligations.

We experienced losses from continuing operations before cumulative effect of accounting changes of $115.7
million in 2002. Continuing operating losses could impair our ability to raise debt or equity capital or pay
amounts due under our debt obligations.

Some of our investments outside the closed block have limited liquidity, which could hurt our cash flow.

The plan of reorganization relating to our demutualization in June 2001 required Phoenix Life to establish and
operate an arrangement, known as a closed block, to ensure that the reasonable dividend expectations of
policyholders who own certain individual insurance policies of Phoenix Life are met, and that benefits under such
policies are paid. Phoenix Life must retain within the closed block the cash flows produced by closed block
assets in order to pay policy benefits and dividends to closed block policyholders, which means that these cash
flows are not available to us to meet unexpected cash needs in our other businesses. The assets that are within the
closed block include a substantial portion of our most liquid assets.

As of December 31, 2002, $7.5 billion, or 48% of the invested assets outside the closed block, consisted of
investments in private debt securities, mortgage loans, real estate, policy loans, equity securities and limited
partnership interests, including our venture capital investments, all of which have limited liquidity. If we need to
sell such investments because we require significant amounts of cash on short notice in excess of our normal cash
requirements, as could be the case if we experience unexpectedly sudden and high volumes of non-participating
insurance policy and annuity surrenders, we might have difficulty doing so at attractive prices or in a timely
manner. This could cause a drain on our cash and, therefore, limit the cash we have available to meet our other
obligations.

We might need to fund deficiencies in our clesed block, which would result in a reduction in net income
and could result in 2 reduction in investments in our on-going business.

We have allocated assets to the closed block required by our demutualization in an amount that will produce cash
flows that, together with anticipated revenues from the policies included in the closed block, are reasonably
expected to be sufficient to support obligations and liabilities relating to these policies. These obligations and
liabilities include, but are not limited to, provisions for the payment of claims and certain expenses and taxes, and
provisions for the continuation of the policyholder dividend scales in effect for 2000, if the experience underlying
such scales continues, and for appropriate adjustments in such scales if the experience changes. Our allocation of
assets to the closed block was based on actuarial assumptions about our payment obligations to closed block
policyholders, as well as assumptions about the investment earnings the closed block assets will generate over
time. Since such assumptions are {o some degree uncertain, it is possible that the cash flows generated by the
closed block assets and the anticipated revenues from the policies included in the closed block will prove
insufficient to provide for the benefits guaranteed under these policies. We would have to fund the shortfall
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resulting from such an insufficiency. Moreover, even if these assets, cash flows and revenues are sufficient, we
may choose to support closed block policyholder dividend payments with assets and cash flows from outside of
the closed block.

Venture Capital earnings are dependent on the performance of the equity markets, which means that this
segment's effect on our income from continuing operaticns kas been volatile.

At times in the last five years Venture Capital has represented a large component of our total income or loss from
continuing operations. Venture Capital is a higher risk, less liquid investment, the value of which is prone to
significant fluctuation. Income from Venture Capital represented 190% and 56% of our total income from
continuing operations in 2000 and 1999, respectively. In 2002 and 2001, however, our venture capital
investments decreased our income from continuing operations by $38.5 million and $54.9 million, respectively,
representing 33% and 40% of our total loss from continuing operations in 2002 and 2001, respectively. The
performance of the partnerships depends upon the economic performance of the underlying assets held by the
partnerships, which is difficult to predict.

Our Venture Capital portfolio has a large technology component and includes investments in other sectors such as
telecommunications, the asset values of which tend to move in close relation with the technology sector. The
decrease in this portfolio's income in 2002 and 2001 resulted primarily from equity market declines in the
technology sector and other related sectors. It is possible that we will continue to experience declines related to
our venture capital investments.

In addition, the returns we achieve in Venture Capital depend in large part on the efforts and performance results
obtained by the managers of the partnerships in which we invest. We have neither an active role in the day to-day
management of the partnerships in which we invest, nor the ability to approve the specific investment
management decisions made by the managers of the partnerships. Although we evaluate each potential
partnership investment based on criteria such as the performance history of the partnership and its manager, as
well as the partnership's investment strategies, the past performance of a partnership and its manager may not be a
reliable indicator of future results. Furthermore, the managers, key personnel and investment strategies of a
partnership may change at any time without our consent.

The recent downgrades to PNX’s debt ratings and Phoenix Life's financial strength ratings, as well as the
possibility of future downgrades, could increase pelicy surrenders and withdrawals, adversely affect
relationships with distributors, reduce new sales and earnings from our life insurance products and
increase our future borrowing costs. ‘

Rating agencies assign Phoenix Life claims paying ability ratings, sometimes referred to as financial strength
ratings, and assign us debt ratings, based in each case on their opinions of the relevant company's ability to meet
its financial obligations.

Financial strength ratings indicate a rating agency's view of an insurance company's ability to meet its obligations
to its insureds. These ratings are therefore key factors underlying the competitive position of life insurers. The
current financial strength and debt ratings, including information concerning recent ratings downgrades, are set
forth in the chart below.
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Financial Strength Rating Senior Debt Rating

Rating Agency - of Phoenix Life : : of PNX
A.M. Best Company, Inc. A ("Excellent") bbb+ (“Adequate”) from a
("Strong") on March 7, 2003

Fitch IBCA AA- ("Very Strong") from A- ("Strong") from A
AA ("Very Strong") on ' ("Strong™) on September 19,
September 19, 2002 2002

Standard & Poor's A+ ("Strong") from AA- BBB+ ("Good") from A-
("Very Strong") on October ("Strong™) on October 16,
16, 2002 : 2002

Moody's A3 ("Good") from Aa3 "~ Baa3 ("Adequate") from A3

. : ("Excellent") on November 25, ("Good") on November 25, 2002

2002 :

A.M. Best and Moody's each have a stable outlook for our ratmgs while Fitch IBCA and Standard & Poor's have
a negative outlook.

As a consequence of these ratings downgrades, we may experience increased interest costs in connection with
future borrowings. Such increased costs would decrease our earnings and could reduce our ability to finance our
future growth on a profitable basis. The downgrades did not trigger any defaults or repurchase obligations.

In addition, the downgrades could adversely affect Phoenix Life's relationships with its existing distributors and
its ability to establish additional distributor relationships. If this were to occur, we might experience a decline in
sales of certain products and the persistency of existing customers. At this time, we cannot estimate the impact on
sales or persistency. If there were a significant decline in Phoenix Life's sales or persistency, our results of
operations would be materially adversely affected.

We could have material losses in the future from our discontinued reinsurance business.

In 1999, we sold our individual life reinsurance business and discontinued the operations of our group accident
and health and group life reinsurance business. We adopted a plan to stop writing new contracts covering these
risks and end our existing contracts as soon as those contracts would permit. However, we remain liable for
claims under those contracts.

We have established reserves and reinsurance recoverables for claims and related expenses that we expect to pay
on our discontinued group accident and health reinsurance business. These reserves and reinsurance recoverables
are a net present value amount that is based on currently known facts and estimates about, among other things, the
amount of insured losses and expenses that we believe we will pay, the period over which they will be paid, the
amount of reinsurance proceeds we believe we will collect under finite reinsurance and other reinsurance and the
likely legal and administrative cost of winding down the business. Total reserves were $35 million and total
reinsurance recoverable balances were $65 million at December 31, 2002. In addition, in 1999 we purchased
finite aggregate excess-of-loss reinsurance to further protect us from unfavorable results from this discontinued
business. The maximum coverage available is currently $120 million. The amount of our total financial
provisions at December 31, 2002 was therefore $90 million, consisting of reserves, less reinsurance recoverable
balances, plus the amount currently available from our finite aggregate excess-of-loss reinsurance, and represents
our best estimate of the provisions required for the payment of our entire remaining loss exposure on the
discontinued group accident and health reinsurance business.
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Because we must use estimates in establishing our loss and expense reserves, they are subject to uncertainty. In
the case of our discontinued group accident and health reinsurance business, several factors make estimating the
required provisions more difficult. First, it may take a number of years for the claims on the large majority of the
remaining business to be reporied to us. In many cases, the types of losses involved will develop over a relatively
long period. Further, some of our remaining contracts cover losses that will be incurred in 2003 and subsequent
years. For these reasons, we cannot know today what our actual claims experience will be.

In addition, we are involved in two sets of disputes relating to certain portions of cur discontinued group accident
and health reinsurance business. See Note 17 to our consclidated financial statements for more information.

In establishing our provisions described above for the payment of insured losses and expenses on this
discontinued business, we have made assumptions about the likely outcome of the disputes referred to above,
including an assumption that substantial recoveries would be available from our reinsurers on all of our
discontinued reinsurance business. However, the inherent uncertainty of arbitrations and lawsuits, including the
uncertainty of estimating whether any settlements we may enter into in the future would be on favorable terms,
makes it hard to predict the outcomes with certainty. Given the need to use estimates in establishing loss reserves,
and the difficulty in predicting the outcome of arbitrations and lawsuits, our actual net ultimate exposure likely
will differ from our current estimate. If future facts and circumstances differ significantly from our estimates and
assumptions about future events with respect to the disputes referred to above or other portions of our
discontinued reinsurance business, our current reserves may need to be increased materially, with a resulting
material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.

A challenge to the pian of recrganization is outstanding.

A pending lawsuit seeks to challenge Phoenix Life's reorganization and the adequacy of the information provided
to policyholders regarding the plan of reorganization. We believe that this lawsuit lacks merit, The lawsuit,
Andrew Kertesz v. Phoenix Home Life Mut. Ins. Co., et al., was filed on April 16, 2001, in the Supreme Court of
the State of New York for New York County. The plaintiff seeks to maintain a class action on behalf of a
putative class consisting of the eligible policyholders of Phoenix Life as of December 18, 2000, the date the plan
of reorganization was adopted. Plaintiff seeks compensatory damages for losses allegedly sustained by the class
as a result of the demutualization, punitive damages and other relief. The defendants named in the lawsuit include
Phoenix Life, Phoenix, directors of Phoenix Life, as well as Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated, financial advisor
to Phoenix Life in connection with the plan of recrganization. A motion to dismiss the claims asserted in this
lawsuit has recently been granted. The plaintiff has filed a notice of appeal.

Legislation eliminating or modifying either the federal estate tax or the federal taxatior of investment
income could adversely affect revenues from our life insurance products because some of them are
specifically designed and marketed as policies that help & decedent’s heirs to pay this tax. In addition,
seme of the Bush Administration’s legislative proposals weuld reduce or eﬂnmmme the benefit of deferral of
taxation for our insurance and annuity products.

Legislation elirninating or modifying either the federal estate tax or the federal taxation of investment income
could adversely affect revenues from our life insurance and annuity products. Some of our life insurance products
are specifically designed and marketed as policies that help a decedent’s heirs to pay estate tax. In addition, our
life insurance and annuity products generally benefit from the deferral of federal income taxation on the accretion
of their value.

Legislation enacted in the spring of 2001 increased the size of estates exempt from the federal estate tax, phased
in reductions irt the estate tax rate between 2002 and 2009 and repealed the estate tax entirely in 2010. This
legislation, despite its reinstatement of the estate tax in 2011, could have a negative effect on our revenues from
the sale of estate planning products including in particular sales of second-to-die life insurance policies. These
policies insure the lives of both a husband and wife, with the policy proceeds payable after both spouses have
died. A second-to-die policy effectively enables a couple to pre-fund its heirs’ estate tax obligations by making
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the policy proceeds available to the heirs at the time estate taxes are due. Second-to-die policies are often
purchased by couples whose assets are largely illiquid, and whose heirs otherwise might have to attempt to
liquidate part of the estate in order to pay the tax. Second-to-die policies represented 35% and 22% of our new
life insurance premiums and deposits in 2002 and 2001, respectively, and the repeal, increase in exemption or the
reduction of the rate, of the federal estate tax may reduce the attractiveness of second-to-die policies sold for this
purpose. President Bush and members of Congress have expressed a desire to modify the existing legislation,
which modification could result in faster or more complete reduction or repeal of the estate tax. For example, the
President’s Budget for Fiscal Year 2004 introduced a proposal to make the repeal of the estate tax permanent.
Any such change could have a further negative effect on our revenues from estate planning products.

The attractiveness to our customers of many of our products is due, in part, to favorable tax treatment. Current
federal income tax laws generally permit the tax-deferred accumulation of earnings on the premiums paid by the
holders of annuities and life insurance products. Taxes, if any, are payable on income attributable to a distribution
under the contract for the year in which the distribution is made. Death benefits under life insurance contracts
may be received free of federal income tax. Legislative changes that would have the effect of reducing the taxes
imposed on investment income could reduce or eliminate the relative benefit of such deferral of taxation for our
insurance, annuity and investment products. President Bush’s Fiscal Year 2004 Budget includes changes that
would permit corporations to pay tax-free dividends to shareholders and that would create new and expanded
vehicles for tax-exempt savings, including “Lifetime Savings Accounts” which would permit large annual
contributions and tax-free build-up and distributions. There can be no assurance whether or when any such
proposal would be enacted. However, enactment of one or both of these proposals, either in the form proposed by
President Bush or in a modified form, could have a negative impact on our revenues.

Changes in interest rates could harm cash flow and profitability in our Iife and annuity businesses.

Cash flows relating to, and the profitability of, our life insurance and annuity businesses are sensitive to interest
rate changes. In periods of increasing interest rates, life insurance policy loans and surrenders and withdrawals
may increase as policyholders seek investments with higher perceived returns. This process could result in cash
outflows requiring us to sell invested assets at a time when the prices of those assets are adversely affected by the
increase in market interest rates, which could cause us to suffer realized investment losses.

Conversely, during periods of declining interest rates, a decrease in the spread between interest and dividend rates
to policyholders and returns on our investment portfolio could adversely affect our profitability. During such
periods, life insurance and annuity products may be relatively more attractive investments, resulting in increased
premium payments on products with flexible premium features, repayment of policy loans and increased
percentages of policies remaining in force during a period when we are earning lower returns on our own new
investments. For this reason, a sustained period of declining interest rates could cause cash flow problems for us.
In addition, lower returns on our investments could prove inadequate for us to meet contractually guaranteed
minimum payments to holders of our life and annuity products. We also face the risk in a declining interest rate
environment that borrowers may prepay or redeem mortgages and bonds in our investment portfolio as they seek
to borrow at lower market rates, so that we might have to reinvest proceeds we receive from these prepayments or
redemptions in lower interest-bearing investments.

Our product sales are highly dependent on our relationships with non-affiliated distributors. If these
relationships ended or diminished, our revenues would suffer aceordingly.

We sell our products through our affiliated retail producers and non-affiliated advisors, broker-dealers and other
financial intermediaries. Non-affiliated distribution sources have contributed significantly to our sales in recent
years. For example, Merrill Lynch, with over 15,000 registered representatives, accounted for 42% of our
Investment Management private client asset inflows in 2002. The loss or diminution of our relationships with
non-affiliated distributors could materially reduce our revenues from sales of our products. The risk of such loss
or diminution is significant and ongoing, since we face substantial competition in seeking to convince non-
affiliated distributors to sell our products, rather than those offered by our competitors.
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The independent trustees of our mutual funds and closed-end funds, as well as intermediary program
sponsors, managed account clients and institutional investment management clients, could terminate their
contracts with us. This would reduce our Investment Management fee revenues and could also impair our
intangible assets.

Each of the mutual funds and closed-end funds for which PXP acts as investment adviser or sub-adviser is
registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 and is governed by a board of trustees or board of
directors. The Investment Company Act requires that at least 40% of these board members be unaffiliated with
PXP. Each fund's board has the duty of deciding annually whether to renew the contract appointing PXP to
manage the fund. Board members have a fiduciary duty to act in the best interests of the shareholders of their
funds. Either the board members or the shareholders may terminate an advisory contract with PXP and move the
assets to another investment adviser. The board members also may deem it to be in the best interests of a fund's
shareholders to make decisions adverse to us, including reducing the compensation paid to PXP or imposing
restrictions on PXP’s management of the fund.

Our investment management agreements with institutional clients, intermediary program sponsors (who "wrap,"
or make available, our investment products within the management agreements they have with their own clients),
direct managed account clients and institutional clients are generally terminable by these sponsors and clients
upon short notice without penalty. As a result, there would be little impediment to these sponsors or clients
terminating our agreements if they became dissatisfied with our performance.

The termination of any of the above agreements representing a material portion of assets under management
would adversely affect our Investment Management fee revenues.

We face strong competition in our wealth management businesses from mutual fund companies, banks,
investment management firms and other insurance companies. This competition may impair sur ability to
retain existing customers, attract new customers and maintain our profitability.

We face strong competition in our wealth management businesses, comprising of life insurance, annuities and
investment management. We believe that our ability to compete is based on a number of factors, including
product features, investment performance, service, price, distribution, capabilities, scale, commission structure,
name recognition and financial strength ratings. While there is no single company that we identify as a dominant
competitor in our wealth management business, the nature of these businesses means that our actual and potential
competitors include a large number of mutual fund companies, banks, investment management firms and other
insurance companies, many of which have advantages over us in one or more of the above competitive factors.
Recent industry consolidation, including acquisitions of insurance and other financial services companies in the
United States by international companies, has resulted in larger competitors with financial resources, marketing
and distribution capabilities and brand identities that are stronger than ours. Larger firms also may be able to
offer, due to economies of scale, more competitive pricing than we can. In addition, some of our competitors are
regulated differently than we are, which may give them a competitive advantage; for example, many non--
insurance company providers of financial services are not subject to the costs and complexities of insurance
regulation by multiple states.

Our ability to compete in the investment management business depends in particular on our investment
performance. We may not be able to accumulate and retain assets under management if our investment results
underperform the market or the competition, since such underperformance likely would result in asset
withdrawals and reduced sales. For example, from 1993 through 1999, we experienced net asset withdrawals in
our retail investment management business. We attribute this in part to underperformance in some of our mutual
funds and managed accounts.

We compete for distribution sources in our life, annuity and investment management businesses. We believe that
our success in competing for distributors depends on factors such as our financial strength and on the services we
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provide to, and the relationships we develop with, these distributors. Our distributors are generally free to sell
products from whichever providers they wish, which makes it important for us to continually offer distributors
products and services they find attractive. If our products or services fall short of distributors' needs, we may not
be able to establish and maintain satisfactory relationships with distributors of our life insurance, annuity and
investment management products. Accordingly, our revenues and profitability would suffer.

National banks, with their pre-existing customer bases for financial services products, may increasingly compete
with insurers, as a result of recently enacted legislation removing restrictions on bank affiliations with insurers,
This legislation, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999, permits mergers that combine commercial banks, insurers
and securities firms under one holding company. Until passage of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, prior legislation
had limited the ability of banks to engage in securities-related businesses and had restricted banks from being
affiliated with insurance companies. The ability of banks to increase their securities-related business or to
affiliate with insurance companies may materially and adversely affect sales of all of our products by substantially
increasing the number and financial strength of our potential competitors.

We might be unable to attract or retain personnel who are key to our business, especially in Investment
Management.

The success of our business is dependent to a large extent on our ability to attract and retain key employees. Our
investment management business, in particular, depends on the employment of experienced securities analysts
and portfolio managers. In addition, our wealth management businesses are dependent on the employment of
highly productive sales personnel. Competition in the job market for these types of professionals is generally
intense, and is particularly acute with respect to experienced securities analysts and portfolio managers such as

those needed by PXP. In general, our employees are not subject to employment contracts or non-compete
arrangements.

Changes in insurance and securities regulation could affect our profitability by imposing further
restrictions on the conduct of our business.

Our life insurance and annuity businesses are subject to comprehensive state regulation and supervision
throughout the United States. State insurance regulators and the National Association of Insurance
Commissioners continually reexamine existing laws and regulations, and may impose changes in the future that
put further regulatory burdens on us, thereby increasing our costs of business. This could materially adversely
affect our results of operations and financial condition.

The U.S. federal government does not directly regulate the insurance business. However, federal legislation and
administrative policies in areas which include employee benefit plan regulation, financial services regulation and
federal taxation and securities laws could significantly affect the insurance industry and our costs.

We and some of the policies, contracts and other products that we offer are subject to various levels of regulation
under the federal securities laws administered by the SEC as well as regulation by those states and foreign
countries in which we provide investment advisory services, offer products or conduct other securities-related
activities. We could be restricted in the conduct of our business for failure to comply with such laws and
regulations. Future laws and regulations, or the interpretation thereof, could materially adversely affect our
results of operations and financial condition by increasing our expenses in having to comply with these
regulations,
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIES

Management's discussion and analysis reviews our consolidated financial condition at year-end 2002 and 2001;
our consolidated results of operations for the years 2002, 2001 and 2000; and, where appropriate, factors that may
affect our future financial performance. You should read.this discussion in conjunction with "Selected Financial
Data" and our consolidated financial statements included in this Form 10-K.

Overview

We are a leading provider of wealth management products and services offered through a variety of select
advisors and financial services firms to serve the accumulation, preservation and transfer needs of the affluent and
high-net-worth market, businesses and institutions. We refer to our products and services together as our wealth
management solutions. We offer a broad range of life insurance, annuity and investment management solutions
through a variety of distributors. These distributors include affiliated and non-affiliated advisors and financial
services firms who make our solutions available to their clients.

We provide our wealth management solutions through two operating segments — Life and Annuity and Investment
Management — which include three businesses, life insurance, annuities and investment management. Through
Life and Annuity we offer a variety of life insurance and annuity products, including universal, variable universal,
whole and term life insurance, and a range of annuity offerings. We conduct activities in Investment Management
largely through PXP comprising two lines of business - private client and institutional.

Through our private client line of business, we provide investment management services principally on a
discretionary basis, with products consisting of open-end mutual funds and managed accounts. Managed
accounts include intermediary programs sponsored and distributed by non-affiliated broker-dealers and direct
managed accounts sold and administered by us. Managed accounts sponsored and distributed by non-affiliated
broker-dealers generally require minimum investments of $100,000, and direct managed accounts sold and
administered by us generally require minimum investments of $1 million. Qur private client business also
provides transfer agency, accounting and administrative services to most of our open-end mutual funds.

We report our remaining activities in two non-operating segments — Venture Capital and Corporate and Other.
Venture Capital includes investments primarily in the form of limited partnership interests in venture capital
funds, leveraged buyout funds and other private equity partnerships sponsored and managed by third parties.
These assets are investments of the general accounts of our Life Companies. See "Business—Venture Capital
Segment." Corporate and Other includes indebtedness, unallocated capital and expenses, as well as certain
businesses not of sufficient scale to report independently. See "Business—Corporate and Cther Segment." These
non-operating segments are significant for financial reporting purposes, but do not contain products or services
relevant to our core wealth management operations.

We derive our revenues principally from:

o premiums on whole life insurance;

o ingurance and investment product fees on variable life and annuity products and universal life
products;

o investment management and related fees; and
net investment income and net realized investment gains.

Under generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) premium and deposit collections for variable life,
universal life and annuity products are not recorded as revenues. These collections are reflected on our balance
sheet as an increase in separate account liabilities for certain investment options of variable products. Collections
for fixed annuities and certain investment options of variable annuities are reflected on our balance sheet as an
increase in policyholder deposit funds. Collections for other products are reflected on our balance sheet as an
increase in policy liabilities and accruals.
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Our expenses consist principally of:

e insurance policy benefits provided to policyholders, including interest credited on policyholders'
general account balances;

policyholder dividends;

deferred policy acquisition costs amortization;
intangible assets amortization;

interest expense;

other operating expenses; and

income taxes.
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Our profitability depends principally upon:

e the adequacy of our product pricing, which is primarily a function of our:
o ability to select underwriting risks;
> mortality experience;
o ability to generate investment earnings;
o ability to maintain expenses in accordance with our pricing assumptions; and
>  policies' persistency (the percentage of policies remaining in force from year to year as
measured by premiums);
the amount and composition of assets under management;
the maintenance of our target spreads between the rate of earnings on our investments and dividend
and interest rates credited to customers; and
e our ability to manage expenses.

Prior to the demutualization, we focused on participating life insurance products, which pay policyholder
dividends. As of year-end 2001, 75% of our life insurance reserves were for participating policies. As a result, a
significant portion of our expenses consists, and will continue to consist, of such policyholder dividends. Our net
income is reduced by the amounts of these dividends. Policyholder dividends expense was $401.8 million during
2002, $400.1 million during 2001 and $378.0 million during 2000.

Our sales and financial results over the last several years have been affected by economic and industry trends.
Americans generally have begun to rely less on whole life insurance, defined benefit retirement plans and social
security and other government programs to meet their post-retirement financial needs. Reflecting this trend, sales
of our whole life insurance products have declined in recent years. Concurrently, the baby boom generation has
begun to enter its prime savings years. These factors have had a positive effect on sales of our variable life and
annuity products, mutual funds and managed account products. See "Business—Market Opportunity."

Discentinued Operations

During 1999, we discontinued the operations of several businesses that did not align with our business strategy
including reinsurance, group life and health and real estate management operations. See Note 13 to our
consolidated financial statements for detailed information regarding our discontinued operations.

Purchase of PXP Minority Interest

In 2001, we acquired the minority interest in PXP for $339.3 million. Prior to this acquisition, PXP had been a
publicly-held company listed on the New York Stock Exchange in which we held a 55.1% interest. See Note 4 to

our consolidated financial statements for detailed information regarding our acquisition of the PXP minority
interest.
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Gther Recent Acquisitions

In January 2002, we acquired a 60% interest in Kayne Anderson Rudnick for $102.4 million. In 2001, we
acquired a 75% interest in Walnut for $7.5 million in cash. We also paid $5.5 million in cash for a 65% interest
in Capital West. See Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements for further information regarding Kayne
Anderson Rudnick, Walnut and Capital West.

In July 2002, we acquired the variable life and variable annuity business of Valley Forge Life Insurance Company
(a subsidiary of CNA Financial Corporation). See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements for detailed
information regarding the acquisition of Valley Forge Life Insurance Company.

The Demutualization

Phoenix Home Life demutualized on June 25, 2001 by converting from a mutual life insurance company to a
stock life insurance company, became a wholly-owned subsidiary of PNX and changed its name to Phoenix Life
Insurance Company (Phoenix Life). See Note 7 to our consolidated financial statements for detailed information
regarding the demutualization and closed block. '

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

Goodwill and Other Intangible Asseis. At the beginning of 2002, we adopted a new accounting standard for
goodwill and other intangible assets, including amounts reflected in our carrying value of equity-method
investments. Under this new standard, we discontinued recording amortization expense on goodwill and other
intangible assets with indefinite lives, but we continue recording amortization expense for those assets with
definite estimated lives. See Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements for a comprehensive discussion of
the adoption of the new standard and its effects on our consolidated financial statements. )

Variable Interest Entities: A new accounting standard was issued in January 2003 that interprets the existing
standard on consolidation. It clarifies the application of standards of consolidation to certain entities in which
equity investors do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient equity
at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties
(“variable interest entities”). See Note 8 to our consolidated financial statements for more discussion on this new
standard as it relates to our business.

Stock-based Compensation: A new standard was issued which amends an existing standard on accounting for
stock-based compensation. The new standard provides methods of transition for a voluntary change to fair value
accounting for stock-based compensation. It also requires annual and quarterly disciosures about the method of
accounting for stock-based compensation and tabular information about the effect of the methed of accounting for
stock-based compensation. See Note 10 to our consolidated financial statements for more discussion on the
requirements of the new standard as it relates to our business.

Critical Accounting Policies

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with GAAP. GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Critical accounting policies are reflective of significant judgments, often as a result of the need to make estimates
about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. The following are areas that we believe require
significant judgments, together with references to the footnote(s) where each accounting policy is discussed as it
relates to our business:
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Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs, or DAC, and Present Value of Future Profits, or PVFP

The costs of acquiring new business, principally commissions, underwriting, distribution and policy issue
expenses, all of which vary with and are primarily related to production of new business, are deferred. In
connection with the 1997 acquisition of the Confederation Life business, we recognized an asset for the
present value of future profits (PVFP) representing the present value of estimated net cash flows embedded in
the existing contracts acquired. This asset is included in deferred acquisition costs (DAC).

We amortize DAC and PVFP based on the related policy’s classification. For individual participating life
insurance policies, DAC and PVEFP are amortized in proportion to estimated gross margins. For universal
life, variable universal life and accumulation annuities, DAC and PVFP are amortized in proportion to
estimated gross profits. Policies may be surrendered for value or exchanged for a different one of our
products (internal replacement). The DAC balance associated with the replaced or surrendered policies is
amortized to reflect these surrenders.

The amortization of DAC and PVFP requires the use of various assumptions, estimates and judgments about
the future. Significant assumptions include expenses, investment performance, mortality and policy
cancellations (i.e., lapses, withdrawals and surrenders). These assumptions are reviewed on a regular basis
and are generally based on our past experience, industry studies, regulatory requirements and judgments about
the future. Changes in estimated gross margins and gross profits based on actual experiences are reflected as
an adjustment to total amortization to date resulting in a charge or credit to earnings. Finally, analyses are
performed periodically to assess whether there are sufficient gross margins or gross profits to amortize the
remaining DAC balances.

We regularly evaluate our estimated gross profits, or EGPs, to determine if actual experience or other
evidence suggests that earlier estimates should be revised. Several assumptions considered to be significant
in the development of EGPs include separate account fund performance, surrender and lapse rates, estimated
interest spread and estimated mortality. The separate account fund performance assumption is critical to the
development of the EGPs related to our variable annuity and variable and interest-sensitive life insurance
businesses. The average long-term rate of assumed separate account fund performance used in estimating
gross profits was 7% for the variable annuity business and 8% for the variable life business at December 31,
2002.

See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements and Item 7a, Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
About Market Risk for more information. -

Policy Liabilities and Accruals (Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements and Item 7a, Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk for more information) -

Gooawill and Other Intangible Assets

At the beginning of 2002, we adopted the new accounting standard for gocdwill and other intangible assets,
including amounts reflected in our carrying value of equity-method investments. Under this new standard, we
discontinued recording amortization expense on goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite lives, but
we continue recording amortization expense for those intangible assets with definite estimated lives. For
goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets, we perform impairment tests at the reporting-unit level at least
annually. For purposes of the impairment test, the fair value of the reporting units is based on the sum of: a
multiple of revenue, plus the fair value of the units’ tangible fixed assets. Prior to 2002, we amortized
goodwill principally over 40 years and investment management contracts and employment contracts over five
to 16 years and three to seven years, respectively. All amortization expense has been and continues to be
calculated on a straight-line basis.

See Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements for more information.
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Valuation of Debt and Equity Securities
We classify our debt and equity securities as available-for-sale and report them in our balance sheet at fair
value. Fair value is based on quoted market price, where available. When quoted market prices are not
available, we estimate fair value by discounting debt security cash flows to reflect interest rates currently
being offered on similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality, by quoted market prices of comparable
instruments; and by independent pricing sources or internally developed pricing modeis. Investments whose
value, in our judgment, is considered to be other-than-temporarily impaired are written down to fair value as a
charge to realized losses included in our earnings. The cost basis of these written down investments is
adjusted to fair value at the date the determination of impairment is made. The new cost basis is not changed
for subsequent recoveries in value. For mortgage-backed and other asset-backed debt securities, we recognize
income using a constant effective yield based on anticipated prepayments and the estimated economic lives of
the securities. When actual prepayments differ significantly from anticipated prepayments, the effective yield
is recalculated to reflect actual payments to date and any resulting adjustment is included in net investment
income. For certain asset-backed securities, changes in estimated yield are recorded on a prospective basis
and specific valuation methods are applied to these securities to determine if there has been an other-than-
temporary decline in value. We report mortgage loans at unpaid principal balances, net of valuation reserves
on impaired mortgages. We consider a mortgage loan to be impaired if we believe it is probable that we will
be unable to collect all amounts of contractual interest and principal as scheduled in the Ican agreement. We
do not accrue interest income on impaired mortgage loans when the likelihood of collection is doubtful.

See Note & to our consolidated financial statements, Debt and Equity Securities section of Management’s
Discussion and Analysis and Item 7a, Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk for more
information.

o Valuation of Investments in Venture Capital Parmerships
We record our equity in the earnings of venture capital partnerships in net investment income using the most
recent financial information received from the partnerships and estimating the earnings for any lag in
reporting. In the first quarter of 2001, we changed our accounting for venture capital partnership earnings to
eliminate the quarterly lag in information provided to us. We did this by estimating the change in our share of
partnership earnings for the quarter. This resulted in a $75.1 million charge ($48.8 million after income
taxes), representing the cumulative effect of this accounting change on the fourth quarter of 2000.

To estimate the net equity in earnings of the venture capital partnerships for each quarter, we developed a
methodology to estimate the change in value of the underlying investee companies in the venture capital
partnerships. For public investee companies, we used quoted market prices at the end of each quarter,
applying liquidity discounts to these prices in instances where such discounts were applied in the underlying
partnerships’ financial statements. For private investee companies, we applied a public industry sector index
to roll the value forward each quarter. We apply this methodology consistently each quarter with subsequent
adjustments to reflect market events reported by the partnerships (e.g., new rounds of financing, initial public
offerings and writedowns by the general partners). Our methodology recognizes both downward and upward
change in value of the underlying investee companies, but we do not exceed the last reported value by the
partnerships. In addition, we annually revise the valuations we have assigned to the investee companies to
reflect the valuations in the audited financial statements received from the venture capital partnerships.

See Note 5 to our consolidated financial statements for more information.
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o Valuation of Investments in Affiliates

We evaluate our equity method investments for an other than temporary impairment at each balance sheet
date considering quantitative and qualitative factors including quoted market price of underlying equity
securities, the duration the carrying value is in excess of fair value and historical and projected earnings and
cash flow capacity.

See Note 5 to our consolidated financial statements and the Aberdeen Asset Management section of
Management’s Discussion and Analysis for more information.

Pension and other Post-employment Benefits
See Note 10 to our consolidated financial statements for more information on our pension and other post-
employment benefits.
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Consolidated Results of Operations

The following table and discussion presents surnmary consolidated financial data for the years ended December
31,2002, 2001 and 2000 (in millions).

Changes
2002 2001 2009 2002 /@1 2001 /00

REVENUES:
Premiums ...cocevevienceeneeieie e $ 1,081.9 $ 1,112.7 § 1,1474 $ (308 $ (347
Insurance and investment product fees........ 563.4 546.4 631.0 17.0 (84.6)
Investment income, net of expenses............ 915.2 847.6 1,141.3 67.6 (293.7)
Net realized investment gains (losses) ........ (107.6) (72.4) 89.2 (35.2) (161.6)
Total revenumes.......cc.ovvevveeiivenieesciecree s 2,452.9 2,434.3 3,008.9 18.6 {5§74.6)
BENEFITS AN} EXPENSES:
Policy benefits, excluding policyholder

dividends ... oo 1,436.1 1,406.7 1,409.8 29.4 3.1
Policyholder dividends............cococeervrnenn, 401.8 400.1 378.0 1.7 22.1
Policy acquisition cost amortization............ 59.2 133.0 356.0 (73.8) (223.0)
Intangible asset amortization..............cc....... 325 49.4 36.9 (16.9) 12.5
Intangible asset impairments...........c.cce.c..... 66.3 -- -- 66.3 --
Interest EXPense .....oovvereererrerererernrenssernene 31.4 27.3 32.7 4.1 (5.4)
Demutualization 2Xpenses..........cccceceeverrenne 1.8 259 21.8 (24.1) 4.1
Other operating eXpenses ..........c.c.ccceeeeenee 583.9 628.1 604.5 (44.2) 23.6
Total benefits and expenses..........c.oceenee. 2,613.0 2,670.5 2,839.7 (57.5) (169.2)
Income (loss) from continuing operations

before income taxes and minority interest (160.1) (236.2) 169.2 76.1 (405.4)
Applicable income taxes (benefit)............... (56.8) (106.1) 60.3 49.3 (166.4)
Income (loss) from continuing operations

before minority interest...........ccoevvvevevenenn (103.3) (130.1) 108.9 26.8 (239.0)
Minority interest in net income of

SUDSIAIATIES .. evvvevcereererec e 12.4 7.2 14.1 5.2 (6.9)
Income (loss) from continuing operations (115.7) (137.3) 94.8 21.6 (232.1)
Income from discontinued operations ......... - - 94 -- (9.4)
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations - = (20.9) -- 20.9
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of

accounting changes...........ccvvvvevvrrerernnnns (115.7) (137.3} 83.3 21.6 (220.6)
Cumulative effec: of accounting changes.... (130.3) (65.4) - (64.9) (654
Net income (JOSS) ..ocovvrererevrrecerereirrccrenn $ (246.0) $ (202.7) $ 833 $  (43.3) $ (286.0)

2002 vs, 2001

Premium revenue declined $30.8 million in 2002 primarily as the result of a shift in sales from traditional life
products to variable universal life, universal life and annuity products. Insurance and investment product fees
increased $17.0 million in 2002. Variable universal life and universal life fees increased $9.4 million and $8.6
million, respectively, due to higher funds under management driven by strong sales of universal life and variable
universal life product, particularly in 2001 and 2002. Annuity fees declined $4.8 million as the result of lower
funds under maragement in variable sub-accounts.

The fluctuation in both premiums and insurance and investment product fees reflect our continued emphasis on
variable universal life, universal life and annuity product sales, rather than on traditional life product sales.
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Investment product fees remained constant compared to 2001. The acquisition of a 60% interest in Kayne
Anderson Rudnick in January 2002 increased investment product fees, but was offset by a corresponding decrease
resulting from reductions in other assets under management and changes to fee structures.

Net investment income increased $67.6 million, or 8.0%, in 2002 as compared to 2001, primarily as the result of
an increase of invested assets related to the guaranteed interest account portion of our annuity business,
principally from the late 2001 and 2002 sales of the Retirement Planners Edge (RPE) variable annuity. Smaller
increases in net investment income for variable universal life were offset by a modest decrease in universal life
net investment income coupled with lower new money rates, reinvestment rates and asset defaults. Interest
spread, or the excess of interest earned on guaranteed interest accounts as compared to interest credited on
guaranteed interest accounts, increased by $8.8 million as compared to 2001. Improved interest spread on annuity
guaranteed interest accounts is the result of a $1.2 billion increase in guaranteed interest account balances at
December 31, 2002 as compared to December 31, 2001, offset by lower new money rates and the investment of
related assets in short term, more liquid instruments. We experienced a decline in interest spread in the second
half of 2002 as further described in the General Account section of the Management’s Discussion and Analysis.
The yield on average invested assets, excluding venture capital partnerships, was 6.6% for the year 2002,
compared to 7.3% for the year 2001.

The increase in realized investment losses was primarily due to higher credit related losses in the
telecommunications industry and collateralized debt obligation holdings. The majority of these losses were in the
closed block. ' o

The increase in policy benefits of $29.4 million, or 2.1%, in 2002 as compared to 2001 is primarily due to a $48.2
million increase in interest credited on the guaranteed interest accounts portion of our annuity business, primarily
from late 2001 and 2002 sales of RPE (see General Account section of Management’s Discussion & Analysis). In
addition, expense related to minimum death benefit guarantees on certain of our variable annuity products
increased $8.7 million during 2002 as the result of an increase in net minimum death benefit exposure from $5.8
million at December 31, 2001 to $234.9 million at December 31, 2002. $176.6 million of this exposure increase
was the result of the third-quarter acquisition of a block of annuity business from Valley Forge Life Insurance
Company, with the remaining increase in exposure resulting from the impact of the overall decline in equity
markets on fund balances.

The increase in policyholder dividends was primarily due to the growth of our policyholder dividend obligation
resulting from favorable mortality and persistency experience.

The decrease in policy acquisition cost amortization was primarily due to favorable mortality and persistency
experience on life products, offset by a $13.5 million acceleration of deferred acquisition cost expense related to
our annuity business in the third quarter of 2002. This offset resulted from a revision of our long-term market
return assumption for annuities from 8% to 7% and an impairment charge related to the recoverability of our
deferred acquisition cost asset related to our variable annuities business. The Valley Forge block we acquired at
the beginning of the quarter, which experienced significant declines in assets due to equity market declines,
accounts for $4.5 million of this acceleration. Deferred policy acquisition costs for individual participating life
insurance policies are amortized in proportion to estimated gross margins. The amortization process requires the
use of various assumptions, estimates and judgments about the future. The primary assumptions involve expenses,
investment performance, mortality and contract cancellations (i.e. lapses, withdrawals and surrenders). These
assumptions are reviewed on a regular basis and are generally based on our past experience, industry studies,
regulatory requirements and judgments about the future. In the first quarter of 2002, we revised the assumptions
on traditional life products used in the development of estimated gross margins to reflect favorable experience
and, as a result, the amortization cost expense decreased.

The decrease in intangible asset amortization was due to our adoption of a new standard on goodwill and

intangible assets with indefinite lives which requires that, upon adoption, amortization cease for goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite lives. See Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements for more information.
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As a result of adopting the new standard on goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives, an impairment
charge of $66.3 million was recorded during the third quarter as discussed further in Note 4 to our consolidated
financial statements.

Interest expense increased during the current year due to higher levels of indebtedness in 2002 than in 2001.

The decrease in other operating expenses was due mostly to lower non-recurring charges and Corporate and Other
segment expenses. This decrease was partially offset by increases in Life and Annuity and Investment

«  Management segment expenses. Life and Annuity expenses were higher due primarily to pension costs, slightly
higher compensation and increased corporate overhead absorption. Investment Management expenses were
higher due to the expenses of an acquired company, Kayne Anderson Rudnick. We acquired a majority interest in
Kayne Anderson Rudnick on January 29, 2002, as further described in Note 4 to our consolidated financial
statements.

Cur 2002 effective income tax benefit rate of 35.5% differed from the statutory U.S. federal income tax benefit
rate of 35% as a result of the tax benefits associated with tax advantaged investment income (low income housing
tax credits, non-taxable dividend and interest income) and the recovery of amounts related to an IRS settlement,
offset by the tax on nondeductible goodwill impairment charges. In 2001, the effective income tax benefit rate of
44.9% differed from the statutory income tax benefit rate of 35% as a result of the non-deductible demutualization
expenses offset by the tax benefits associated with tax advantaged investment income and the elimination of the
surplus tax liability.

The increase in minority interest expense was the result of our January 2002 acqulsltlon of a majority interest in
Kayne Anderson Rudnick. :

In 2002, we adopted the new accounting standard related to the accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets
resulting in a $130.3 million cumulative effect of accounting change, as further described in Notes 1 and 4 to our
consolidated financial statements.

2001 vs. 2000

The decrease in premiums in 2001 was primarily due to whole life premiums, which decreased $24.8 million,
reflecting the shift to variable products, for which revenues are recognized through insurance and investment product
fees. There was also a $4.0 million decrease from the runoff of the Confederation Life whole life business.

The decrease in insurance and investment product fees in 2001 was due to the following: Investment Management
fees decreased $66.3 million primarily as a result of decreases in average assets under management, partially due
to negative investment performance and our sale of PXP’s Cleveland operations in 2000. Corporate and Other
fees decreased $15.5 million primarily due to lower fees resulting from our decision to exit our physician practice
management business in the third quarter of 2000. These decreases were slightly offset by the increases in fees in
Life and Annuity of $1.1 million primarily as a result of increased sales of variable universal life products.

Net investment income decreased 26% in 2001 primarily due to the decrease in Venture Capital net investment
income of $361.8 million resulting from equity market performance in the technology sector, which produced
favorable returns in 2000, but suffered significant declines during 2001. During the first quarter of 2001, we
changed our method of applying the equity method of accounting to our venture capital partnerships to eliminate
the quarterly reporting lag (see “Venture Capital Segment" and Note 5 to our consolidated financial statements.)
Corporate and Other net investment income decreased $29.2 million, primarily the result of the sale of assets to
fund the purchase of the PXP minority interest in January 2001, partially offset by the earnings on the IPO
proceeds. These decreases were also partially offset by increases in Life and Annuity net investment income of
$99.5 million due to higher average invested assets. Average invested assets, excluding venture capital
partnerships, were $13 billion in December 2001, an increase of $1.3 billion from $11.7 billion in
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December 2000. The yield on average invested assets, excluding venture capital partnerships, was 7.3% for the
year 2001, compared to 7.5% for the year 2000.

The decrease in net realized gains in 2001 was due primarily to credit-related realized losses of $78.8 million,
mostly attributable to the impairment of Enron and related entities, Argentine issuers, Global Crossing Ltd. and
several collateralized debt obligations. Also in 2001, a $4.7 million loss was recorded due to a subsequent price
adjustment on the 2000 sale of our Cleveland office. In 2000, we recorded non-recurring gains of $130.2 million
on the sale of common stock. Offsetting these were non-recurring interest-related losses on debt securities of
$33.8 million. :

In 2001, the increase in policyholder dividends was primarily due to higher dividend payments on participating
whole life policies and an increase of $10.7 million in the policyholder dividend obligation because of favorable
mortality and persistency in the closed block.

The decrease in policy acquisition cost amortization in 2001 was primarily a result of a one-time adjustment to
deferred policy acquisition costs of $218.2 million in our participating block in 2000.

The increase in intangible asset amortization in 2001 was primarily due to the increase in Investment
Management amortization. This increase in amortization resulted from our purchase of the PXP minority interest
in 2001, our acquisition of a 75% interest in Walnut in 2001 and our payment of $50.0 million in 2000 related to
the Roger Engemann and Associates, Inc., or Engemann, acquisition.

The increase in other operating expenses in 2001 was primarily due to an increase of $100.7 million in non-recurring
items, including expenses of $84.9 million related to the acquisition of the PXP minority interest and of $23.8
million related to an early retirement program. This increase was partially offset by the decrease in Corporate and
Other segment expenses of $57.9 million related to decreases of $23.3 million in compensation and related
expenses, decreases of $14.1 million in special charitable contributions given in 2000 and our decision to exit our
physician practice management business in the third quarter of 2000. Investment Management other operating
expenses also decreased $10.4 million primarily as a result of reduced incentive compensation for certain
subsidiaries that, in accordance with their respective operating agreements, receive compensation directly related
to earnings or revenues, which declined as a result of investment performance.

Income taxes applicable to continuing operations in 2001 decreased 276% from 2000. This change reflects a tax
benefit from operating losses for the year end 2001, compared to a tax expense on operating gains for the year end
2000. The effective tax rate increased to 44.9% for the year ended December 31, 2001 compared to a nominal tax
rate of 35%, primarily due to the elimination of the surplus tax liability.

The decrease in minority interest in net income of subsidiaries in 2001 was due to our purchase of the PXP
minority interest in 2001,

In 2001, we adopted new accounting standards related to the accounting for derivative instruments and securitized
financial instruments as further described in Notes 1, 5 and 14 to our consolidated financial statements.

In 2001, we also changed our accounting for venture capital partnerships to remove the lag in reporting their
operating results and we recorded the effect of this change as a charge to earnings as further described in Notes 1 and
5 to our consolidated financial statements.

Effects of Inflation

For the years 2002, 2001 and 2000, we do not believe inflation had a material effect on our consolidated results of
operations, except insofar as inflation may have affected interest rates.
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Results of Operations by Segmemnt

We evaluate segment performance on the basis of segment operating income. Realized investment gains and
some non-recurring items are excluded because we do not consider them when evaluating the financial
performance of the segments. The size and timing of realized investment gains are often subject to our discretion.
The non-recurring items are removed from segment after-tax operating income if, in our opinion, they are not
indicative of overall operating trends. While some of these items may be significant components of net income
reported in accordance with GAAP, we believe that segment-operating income is an appropriate measure that
represents the earnings attributable to the ongoing operations of the business. Also, all interest expense is
included in the Corporate and other segment, as well as several smalier subsidiaries and investment activities,
which do not meet the thresholds of reportable segments. These include international operations and the run-off
of our group pension and guaranteed investment contract businesses.

The criteria used to identify a non-recurring item and to determine whether to exclude it from segment operating
income include: whether the item is infrequent and is material to the segment’s operating income; or if it resuits
from a business restructuring, or from a change in the regulatory environment, or relates to other unusual
circumstances (e.g., litigation). We include information on non-recurring items allocated to our operating
segments in their respective notes for information only. Non-recurring items excluded from segment operating
income may vary from period to period. Because these items are excluded based on ocur discretion,
inconsistencies in the application of cur selection criteria may exist. Segment operating income is not a substitute
for net income determined in accordance with GAAP and may be different from similarly titled measures of other
companies.

Segment Allocations

We allocate capital to our Life and Annuity segment based on risk-based capital (RBC) for our insurance
products. We used 300% RBC levels for 2002 and 250% RBC levels prior thereto. Capital within our Life
Companies that is unallocated is included in our Corporate and Other segment. We allocate capital to our
Investment Maragement segment on the basis of the historical capital within that segment. We allocate net
investment income based on the assets allocated to the segments. We allocate certain costs and expenses to the
segments based on a review of the nature of the costs, time studies and other methodologies.

The following table presents a reconciliation of segment after-tax operating income (loss) to consolidated income
(loss) from continuing operations for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 (in millions).
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SEGMENT OPERATING INCOME:

(2) In 2001, we offered special early retirement programs that enhanced the retirement benefits of employees who accepted

(3) Reduction in pension plan cost due to a change in the corridor used to amortize deferred gains and losses.
(4) Represents non-recurring expenses related to the demutualization.
(5) Asa mutual life insurance company, Phoenix Life was subject, in the periods mdlcated to a surplus tax limiting the

(6) Related to insurance recovery for reimbursements made to two mutual fund investment portfolios in 2000.

(7) Represents one-time expenses related to sublease transactions on certain office space.

(8) Represents gains related to distributions from PXP partnership investments.

(9) Represents expenses related to the purchase of the PXP minority interest including: PXP’s accrual of non-recurring

(10) Represents a charge related to a litigation settlement with former clients of PXP and its former financial consulting

(11) Represents costs related primarily to organizational, employment-related and work force reduction costs.

2002 2001 2000

Life and ANNUILY .......cooeiricnriinieiee e sttt sttt st ens $ 510 § 516 $ 132
Investment Management..........ooveeieirineeticie ettt et en e (54.0) (5.8) 35.6
Venture €Capital.......cccoveririiiini et e et e (38.6) (54.9) 180.2
Corporate and OhEr ......c.c.cccevriiininininncerc et e e (20.1) (19.3) (29.8)
Total segment after-tax operating income (§08S) ... (61.7) {28.4) 199.2
ADJUSTMENTS:

Net realized investment gains (10SS€s).......cooveceervirenen. e ea ettt atebenrs (39.3) (43.0) 62.0
Deferred policy acqu1smon costs adjustment 1 15.1 -- (141.8)
Early retirement pensnon adjustment’ ) ettt -- (15.5) -~
Pension adjustment @ ..., - 29 -
Demutualization expense( ) ettt s st s b (1.3) (23.9) (14.1)
Mutual life su%)plus 18X e .- 21.0 (10.4)
POTOLI0 BAIN .......ooovveeievirec st = - 3.1
Loss on sublease transactxon ) s seeees s ss st -- -- ) ( 7
Partnership gains ®..........ccoooooievieie e e -- 24

Expenses of purchase of PXP minority interest ®............coccoovirererieres -- (52.8) ( 7
Litigation settlement ', ..........coo..ooiiieiee e - -- : (1.8)
Management restructuring charge " ............ccoocooririereeeeeeee s (28.5) - -- --
Total after-tax adjustimEnts ..o e (54.9) (108.9) (104.4)
Income (loss) from continuing OPErations ..........c.ccooveveiiivereisierecree s $ (115.7) $ (137.3) $ 948

(1) The 2002 adjustment rejates primarily to a revision of the mortality assumptions used in the development of estimated
gross margins for the traditional participating block of business to reflect favorable experience. This revision resulted in
a non-recurring decrease in deferred policy acquisition cost amortization of $22.1 million ($14.4 million after income
taxes). In 2000, an increase to deferred policy acquisition costs amortization resulting from a change in estimated future
investment earnings due to a reallocation of assets supporting the participating life policies.

the offer.

ability of mutual insurance companies to deduct the full amount of policyholder dividends from taxable income.
Phoenix Life was not and will not be subject to such a surplus tax for 2001 and future years, as a result of its
demutualization in June 2001. Re-estimation of the surplus tax liability for prior years at September 30, 2001, resulted
in the elimination of the liability.

compensation expenses of $57.0 million to cash out stock options, $5.5 million of related compensation costs, non-
recurring retention costs of $19.7 million, and non-recurring transaction costs of $3.9 million. Income taxes of $33.3
million were calculated using an effective tax rate of 38.8%.

subsidiary.
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Life and Annuity Segment

The following table and discussion presents summary financial data relating to Life and Annuity for the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 (in millions).

S Changes
2002 2601 2009 2002 / 01 2001 /00

Results of Operations
PremiUmsS ...cccu.ceveevevirvenienereseeveeneeneereeseeneeens $ 1,081.9 $ 1,112.7 $ 1,1474 $ (30.8) $ G4
Insurance and investment product fees........ 316.2 303.8 302.7 12.4 1.1
Net investment inCome ..........cccvreruereevernennee 947.6 890.9 7914 56.7 99.5
Total segment reveMmBEs . ......ccovvvvrerererrrerenes 2,345.7 2,307.4 2,241.5 38.3 65.9
Policy benefits, including policyholder

dividends............ ettt 1,867.6 1,812.6 1,775.8 55.0 36.8
Policy acquisition cost amortization............. 88.5 122.5 148.5 (34.0) (26.0)
Intangible asset amortization...........ccc........ -- 0.4 0.9 0.4) 0.5
Other operating eXpenses............cooceeveveveenes 310.3 292.1 295.9 18.2 - (3.8)
Total segment benefits and expenses........ 2,266.4 2,227.6 2,221.1 38.8 6.5
Segment operating income before income

taxes and minority interest............ccccvvr.nee. 79.3 79.8 20.4 (0.5) 594
Allocated incomie taxes........ccevevereecrrencrrnn 27.7 27.9 7.2 (0.2) 20.7
Segment operating income before minority ,

INEETESE 1evvvreni et ree e et eees 51.6 51.9 13.2 (0.3) 387
Minority interest in segment operating .

INCOIMIE «oeurienernsvertreasuasaersnaraaasvarssnaseesssnanssess 0.6 0.3 -- 0.3 0.3
Segment operating iRCOME ...........ccorrneee. $ 510 $ 516 $ 132 $ (0.6) $ 384

2002 vs. 2001

Premium revenue declined $30.8 million, or 2.8%, in 2002 as compared to 2001 primarily as the result of a shift
in sales from traditional life products to variable universal life, universal life and annuity products. Insurance and
investment product fees increased $12.4 million, or 4.1% in 2002 as compared to 2001. Variable universal life
and universal life fees increased $9.4 million and $8.6 million, respectively, due to higher funds under
management driven by strong sales of universal life and variable universal life product, particularly in 2001 and
2002. Annuity fees declined $4.8 million as the result of lower funds under management in variable sub-
accounts.

Net investment income increased $56.7 million, or 6.4%, in 2002 as compared to 2001, primarily as the result of
an increase of invested assets related to the guaranteed interest account portion of our annuity business,
principally from the late 2001 and 2002 sales of the Retirement Planners Edge (RPE) variabie annuity. Smaller
increases in net investment income for variable universal life were offset by a modest decrease in universal life
net investment income coupled with lower new money rates, reinvestment rates and asset defauits. Interest
spread, or the excess of interest earned on guaranteed interest accounts as compared to interest credited on
guaranteed interest accounts, increased by $8.8 million as compared to 2001. Improved interest spread on annuity
guaranteed interest accounts is the result of a $1.2 billion increase in guaranteed interest account balances at
December 31, 2002 as compared to December 31, 2001, offset by lower new money rates and the investment of
related assets in short term, more liquid instruments. We experienced a decline in interest spread in the second
half of 2002 as further described in the General Account section of the Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

The increase in policy benefits and dividends of $55.0 million, or 3.0%, in 2002 as compared to 2001 is primarily
due to a $48.2 million increase in interest credited on the guaranteed interest accounts portion of our annuity
business, mostly from late 2001 and 2002 sales of RPE (see General Account section of Management’s
Discussion & Analysis). Our policyholder dividend obligation decreased by $4.6 million as a result of realized
losses partially offset by continuing favorable mortality and persistency experience. In addition, expense related
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to minimum death benefit guarantees on certain of our variable annuity products increased $8.7 million during
2002 as the result of an increase in net minimum death benefit exposure from $5.8 million at December 31, 2001
to $234.9 million at December 31, 2002. $176.6 million of this exposure increase was the result of the third-
quarter acquisition of a block of annuity business from Valley Forge Life Insurance Company, with the remaining
increase in exposure resulting from the impact of the overall decline in equity markets on fund balances.

The decrease in policy acquisition cost amortization was primarily due to favorable mortality and persistency
experience on life products, offset by a $13.5 million acceleration of deferred acquisition cost expense related to
our annuity business in the third quarter of 2002. This offset resulted from a revision of our long-term market
return assumption for annuities from 8% to 7% and an impairment charge related to the recoverability of our
deferred acquisition cost asset related to our variable annuities business. The Valley Forge block we acquired at
the beginning of the quarter, which experienced significant declines in assets due to equity market declines,
accounts for $4.5 million of this acceleration. Deférred policy acquisition costs for individual participating life
insurance policies are amortized in proportion to estimated gross margins. The amortization process requires the
use of various assumptions, estimates and judgments about the future. The primary assumptions involve
expenses, investment performance, mortality and contract cancellations (i.e. lapses, withdrawals and surrenders).
These assumptions are reviewed on a regular basis and are generally based on our past experience, industry
studies, regulatory requirements and judgments about the future. In the first quarter of 2002, we revised the
assumptions on traditional life products used in the development of estimated gross margins to reflect favorable
experience and, as a result, the amortization cost expense decreased.

The increase in other operating expenses was primarily due to higher benefit costs, mainly pension-related costs.
The segment also experienced slightly higher compensation expense and corporate overhead absorption costs.

Minority interest expense relates to our 67% owned subsidiary, PFG Holdings.

2001 vs. 2000

The decrease in premiums in 2001 was primarily due to whole life premiums, which decreased $24.8 million. The
decline reflects the shift to variable products, for which revenues are recognized through insurance and investment
product fees. There was also a decrease from the run-off of the Confederation Life whole life business.

The increase in net investment income during 2001 was primarily the result of higher average invested assets.
The decrease in policy acquisition cost amortization in 2001 was primarily due to a one-time adjustment to
deferred acquisition costs in 2000 of $218.2 million in our participating block. Whole life amortization expenses
declined $25.5 million in 2000 mostly because of lower deferred acquisition expenses caused by decreased sales

volume and $8.0 million related to the runoff of the Confederation Life whole life business.

See Note 3 10 our consolidated financial statements for more information.

45




Investment Management Segment

The following table and discussion presents summary financial data relating to Investment Management for the
years 2002, 2001 and 2000 (in millions).

Changes
2062 2001 2000 2002 /61 2001 /00

Results of Operations
Investment product fees.......o.coovvveveirirennens $ 238.1 $ 2581 $ 3244 3 - $ (66.3)
Net investment inCome ........ccoceververercreernenee 10.9 10.1 12.3 0.8 (2.2)
Total segment FEVENUESS .....ccovveerreeverereeenees 269.0 268.2 336.7 0.8 {68.5)
Intangible asset amortization ..........cc.ceceeeeee 325 490 31.8 (16.5) 17.2
Intangible asset impairments ...........cooevenee 66.3 - - 66.3 -
Other operating eXPenses.........ceerervevvreernes 2183 - 2125 222.9 5.8 (10.4)
Total segment eXPenses ................oe.cveeene. 3171 261.5 254.7 55.6 6.8
Segment operating income before income '

taxes and minority interest............c.covveueeee (48.1) 6.7 82.0 (54.8) (75.3)
Allocated income taxes (benefit) ................. (6.0) 5.6 354 (11.6) (29.8)
Segment operating income before minority .

INTETEST 1. (42.1) 1.1 46.6 (43.2) . (45.5)
Minority interest in segment operating

INCOMIE .eeiiiiviictiinee et 11.9 6.9 11.0 5.0 4.
Segment operating income (10ss} .............. 3 (54.09) § (58 $§ 356 § (48.2) $ (414

2002 vs. 2001

Investment prcduct fees remained constant compared to 2001. The acquisition of a 60% interest in Kayne
Anderson Rudnick in January 2002 increased investment product fees by $41.2 million. A corresponding
decrease resulted from reductions in other assets under management and changes to fee structures. Excluding
Kayne Anderson Rudnick, total average assets under management decreased by $4.6 billion. Average assets
under management for the private client line of business, excluding Kayne Anderson Rudnick, decreased $5.1
billion, decreasing investment product fees by $34.1 million. Although assets under management for the
institutional line of business increased by $0.5 billion, a change in the Phoenix general account fee structure
effective July 1, 2001 contributed primarily to a $6.9 million decrease in institutional investment product fees. At
December 31, 2002, Investment Management had $54.0 billion in assets under management, an increase of $1.9
billion, or 4%, from December 31, 2001. This increase consisted of $7.7 billion from the acquisition of Kayne
Anderson Rudnick, net asset inflows of $0.2 billion, including the issuance of a $1.0 billion CDQ in August 2002,
and $1.8 billion of increased annuity deposits in our Phoenix general account offset, in part, by a decrease of $7.9
billion resulting from investment performance.

Sales of private client products in 2002 were $5.8 billion, including $3.1 billion from Kayne Anderson Rudnick,
an increase of 27% from the same period in 2001, and redemptions from existing accounts were $5.5 billion,
including $0.9 billion from Kayne Anderson Rudnick, an increase of 3% from the same period in 2001. Sales of
institutional accounts in 2002 were $4.4 billion, including $0.3 billion from Kayne Anderson Rudnick, a decrease
of 12% from the same period in 2001, and lost accounts and withdrawals from existing accounts were $4.5
billion, including $0.3 billion from Kayne Anderson Rudnick, an increase of 19% from the same period in 2001.

The decrease in intangible asset amortization was primarily due to the elimination of approximatety $20.7 miilion of
amortization on goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets in accordance with SFAS No. 142. Additional
intangible amortization of $4.2 million in 2002 compared to 2001 resulted from the acquisition of our interest in
Kayne Anderson Rudnick.
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Intangible asset impairments is the result of a $66.3 million impairment of goodwill taken in the third quarter of
2002.

The increase in other operating expenses in 2002 was primarily due to $24.6 million from Kayne Anderson
Rudnick, for the eleven months of 2002. This increase was offset, in part, by an $8.9 million decrease in
compensation expense of which $7.6 million related to incentive compensation. Other operating expense
decreased $9.9 million primarily related to reductions in consulting, professional, and travel charges.

The increase in minority interest in net income of subsidiaries in 2002 was due primarily to our purchase of Kayne
Anderson Rudnick. 4 : '

2001 vs. 2000

The decrease in investment product fees in 2001 was primarily the result of decreases in average assets under
management. Average assets under management for the private client line of business decreased $8.5 billion. -
Average assets under management for the institutional line of business decreased $1.4 billion. Our sale of PXP’s
Cleveland operations in 2000 accounted for approximately $1.7 billion of the decrease in average institutional
assets under management. At December 31, 2001, Investment Management had $52.1 billion in assets under
management, a decrease of $4.5 billion, or 8%, from December 31, 2000. This decrease consisted of a $7.3
billion decrease due to investment performance, offset, in part, by net asset inflows of $0.5 billion, a $0.8 billion
increase as a result of our IPO, a $0.6 billion increase in deposits to the Phoenix general account, and increases of
$0.7 billion and $0.1 billion resulting from the acquisition of a 75% interest in Walnut and a 65% interest in
Capital West in 2001.

Sales of private client products in 2001 were $4.5 billion, a decrease of 24% from the same period in 2000, and
redemptions from existing accounts were $5.3 billion, an increase of 4% from the same period in 2000. Sales of
institutional accounts in 2001 were $5.0 billion, a decrease of 10% from the same period in 2000, and lost
accounts and withdrawals from existing accounts were $3.8 billion, a decrease of 49% from the same period in
2000.

The increase in intangible asset amortization was due to the payment of $50.0 million in 2000 for the Engemann
acquisition and our acquisition of an interest in Walnut in 2001.

The decrease in other operating expenses in 2001 was primarily the result of reduced incentive compensation for
certain subsidiaries that, in accordance with their respective operating agreements, receive compensation directly

related to earnings, which have declined as a result of investment performance.

The decrease in.minority interest in net income of subsidiaries in 2001 was due primarily to our purchase of the PXP
minority interest in 2001,

See Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements for more information.
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Venture Capital Segment

Qur investments in Venture Capital are primarily in the form of limited partnership interests in venture capital
funds, leveraged buyout funds and other private equity partnerships sponsored and managed by third parties. We
refer to all of these types of investments as venture capital. We record our investments in venture capital
partnerships in accordance with the equity method of accounting. (See Venture Capital Partnerships in the
Critical Accounting Policies section of the Management’s Discussion & Analysis.) Venture capital is an
investment of thz general account of our life insurance subsidiary.

In the first quarter of 2001, we recorded a charge of $48.8 million (net of income taxes of $26.3 million)
representing the cumulative effect of our venture capital partnership accounting change on the fourth quarter of
2000. The cumulative effect was based on the actual fourth quarter 2000 financial results as reported by the
partnerships.

In February 2003, we reached an agreement to sell a 50% interest in certain of our venture capital partnerships to
an outside party and transfer the remaining 50% interest to our closed block. The carrying value of the
partnerships being sold and transferred totaled $53.5 million after realizing a loss of $5.1 million in 20602 to
reflect the procezds being received.  The unfunded commitments of the partnerships being sold and transferred
totaled $28.1 million; the outside party and the closed block will each fund half of these commitments. The
partnerships will constitute less than 0.5% of the assets of the closed block after they are transferred.

The following table and discussion presents summary financial data relating to Venture Capital for the years
2002, 2001 and 2000 (in millions).

Changes
2002 2001 28060 2002 /91 2001 / 09

Net realized gains (losses) on partnership :

cash and stock d:stributions...........c..ceevn. § @7 $ 178 § 2233 $ (22.5) $ (205.5)
Partnership operaling expenses.................... (7.4) (6.4) (7.7) (1.0) 1.3
Net unrealized gains (losses) on partnership

INVESTMENTS .. cveceeceecccenenerre e neeere s (47.2) (95.9) 61.7 48.7 (157.6)
Segment net investment income (loss)...... (59.3) (84.5) 277.3 25.2 (361.8)
Income tax expense (benefit).......ccocvvvenneen. (20.7) (29.6) 97.1 8.9 (126.7)
Segment operating income (loss).............. $ (38.6) $  (54.9) S 180.2 $ 163 $ (235.1)

2002 vs. 2001

The reduction in net investment loss in 2002 was primarily due to a reduced impact of industry sector indices on
lower partnership holdings balances in 2002 compared to 2001. The loss in 2002 was primarily driven by stock
market performance, most notably in technology and related sectors.

2001 vs. 2000

The decrease in net investment income was primarily driven by stock market performance in technology and
related sectors, which produced very favorable returns in 2000 but suffered significant declines during 2001.

See Note 5 to our consolidated financial statements for more information regarding our Venture Capital segment.
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Corporate and Other Segment

The following table and discussion presents summary financial data relatmg to Corporate and Other for the years
2002, 2001 and 2000 (in millions).

. Changes

2002 2001 2000 2802 /01 2001 /00

INterest eXPense .......c.cveveerererererereeraerencens $ (314 $ (27.3) $ 327 $ @1 $ 54

Other expenses, Net.........cccceververivriecrrenen. (18.4) (15.9) (37.7) (2.5) 21.8
Corporate and Other segment pre-tax

operating income (10S8)............covervrrnnnns (49.8) (43.2) (708.4) (6.6) 27.2

Income tax expense {benefit).........c...cce.c.... (29.7) (23.9) (40.6) (5.8) 16.7

Segment operating income ({ess)............ $ (20.) $ (19.3) $ (29.8 $ (0.8 $ 185

2002 vs. 2001
Interest expense increased due to higher levels of indebtedness in 2002 than in 2001.

The increase in other expenses, net is due to a decrease in net investment income caused mainly by a decrease in
invested assets in 2002, including a re-allocation of assets to the Life and Annuity segment which was effective
January 1, 2002. The decrease was partially offset by our equity in increased earnings of unconsolidated
affiliates, including HRH, in 2002. This was further offset by a decrease in other operating expense was due
primarily to our exit from our physician practice management business during 2001 and lower unallocated
corporate expenses in 2002. We also experienced modestly higher technology-related costs allocated to this
segment.

2001 vs. 2000
The decrease in interest expense in 2001 was due to a decrease in corporate borrowings.

The decrease in other expenses, net was primarily due to lower operating expenses of $62.1 million offset by
lower investment income of $28.1 million and lower fee income of $15.5 million. The decrease in other operating
expenses in 2001 was primarily due to decreases of $23.3 million in compensation and related expenses, $14.1
million of special charitable contributions made in 2000, which were not repeated in 2001, and the effect of our
decision to exit our physician practice management business in the third quarter of 2000.

General Account

The invested assets in the Life Companies’ general accounts are generally of high quality and broadly diversified
across asset classes, sectors and individual credits and issuers. Our Investment Management professionals
manage these general account assets in investment segments that support specific product liabilities. These
investment segments have distinct investment policies that are structured to support the financial characteristics of
the specific liability or liabilities within them. Segmentation of assets allows us to manage the risks and measure
returns on capital for our various businesses and products.

Separate Account Investments and Investment Trusts
Separate account assets are managed in accordance with the specific investment contracts and guidelines relating
to our variable products. We generally do not bear any investment risk on assets held in separate accounts.

Rather, we receive investment management fees based on assets under management. Generally, assets held in
separate accounts are not available to satisfy general account obligations.
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Investment trusts are assets held for the benefit of those institutional clients which have investments in structured
finance products offered and managed by our investment management subsidiary.

See Note 8 to our consolidated financial statements for more information.
Asset/Liability and Risk Management

Our primary investment objective is to maximize after-tax investment return within defined risk parameters. Our
primary sources of investment risk are: ‘

o credit risk, which relates to the uncertainty associated with the ongoing ability of an obligor to make
timely payments of principal and interest;

o intersst rate risk, which relates to the market price and cash flow variability associated with changes in
market interest rates; and ‘

* equity risk, which relates to the volatility of prices for equity and equity-like investments.

We manage credit risk through fundamental analysis of the underlying obligors, issuers and transaction structures.
We employ a staff of specialized and experienced credit analysts who review obligors’ management, competitive
position, financial statements, cash flow, coverage ratios, liquidity and other key financial and non-financial
information. These specialists recommend the investments needed to fund our liability guarantees within
diversification and credit rating guidelines. In addition, when investing in private debt securities, we rely upon
broad access to management information, negotiated protective covenants, call protection features and collateral
protection. We review our debt security portfolic regularly to monitor the performance of obligors and assess the
integrity of their current credit ratings.

We manage interest rate risk as part of our asset/liability management process and product design procedures.
Asset/liability management strategies include the segmentation of investments by product line, and the
construction of investment portfolios designed to satisfy the projected cash needs of the underlying liabilities. We
identify potential interest rate risk in portfolio segments by modeling asset and liability durations and cash flows
under current and projected interest rate scenarios. We use these projections to assess and control interest rate
risk.

We offer a variety of variable and fixed annuities to meet the accumulation and preservation needs of the affluent
and high-net-worth market. Our major sources of revenues from separate account variable annuities are mortality
and expense fees charged to the contractholder, generally determined as a percentage of the market value of the
underlying assets under management. Our major source of profit from fixed annuities and general account
variable annuities is from the interest rate spread, or the excess of investment income earned over interest credited
to guaranteed interest accounts.

In 2000, we began selling Retirement Planners Edge (RPE), a no-load variable annuity. Commissions on these
sales were 1% to 1.25% per year depending on the distribution outlet. RPE was desigred to attract contributions
into variable sub-accounts on which we earn mortality and expense fees. During the second half of 2002, as
planners and their clients sought refuge from stock market volatility and as interest rates dropped to historically
low levels, policyholders allocated their deposits to general account guaranteed interest accounts carrying the
regulatory required minimum crediting rate of 3%. In September 2002, we stopped accepting applications for
RPE, although existing policyholders have the right to make subsequent deposits up to a maximum of $1 million
per contract. :
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Amounts held by our policyholders in variable annuity guaranteed interest accounts, or GIAs, including RPE and

fixed annuities, as of year-end 2002 and 2001 follow {in millions):

Policyholder Deposit Funds 2002 2081

Retirement Planners Edge GIAS ..ottt v s $ 1,345.6 $ 3699
Other variable annuity GIAS.......coovovveeriiiiiieee ettt et et es et b s b et bassanan 810.6 585.1
Variable annuity GIAS........cooiiiiiieiie ettt O 2,156.2 955.0
FIXEd GNMUILIES. .. .cveiiierieiiecieeriese et ee sttt bes b b st esas et b e s st e e resba e ans 509.1 56.6
Total variable annuity GIAs and fixed annuities..............c.coooiiinn $ 2,665.3 $ 1.011.6

As interest rates declined during the second half of 2002, we experienced reduced interest spreads on RPE
guaranteed interest account liabilities as we invested related cash inflows in shorter-term, lower yielding,
primarily publicly traded, investment-grade debt securities to correspond with what we believe to be short
duration liabilities. To the extent short-term interest rates remain below the regulatory required minimum
crediting rate of 3%, we expect to continue to experience spread compression on our variable guaranteed
investment account annuity liabilities, particularly on the RPE guaranteed investment account fund balances. In
addition, we anticipate that, to the extent RPE guaranteed interest account balances do not lapse or transfer to
variable sub-accounts, spread compression and additional commission payments on RPE fund balances will result
in losses on our RPE variable annuity during the next 12 to 24 months.

We also manage interest rate risk by emphasizing the purchase of securities that feature prepayment restrictions
and call protection. Our product design and pricing strategies inciude the use of surrender charges or restrictions
on withdrawals in some products. In addition, we selectively apply derivative instruments, primarily interest rate
swaps, to reduce the interest rate risk inherent in our portfolios. These derivatives are transacted with highly rated
counterparties and monitored for effectiveness on an ongoing basis. We use derivatives exclusively for hedging
purposes.

We manage equity risk, as well as credit risk, through industry and issuer diversification and asset allocation.
Maximum exposure to an issuer is defined by quality ratings, with higher quality issuers having larger exposure
limits. We have an overall limit on below investment-grade rated issuer exposure.

For further information about our management of interest rate risk and equity risk, see "Management's Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Quantitative and Qualitative Information About
Market Risk."

Debt and Equity Securities

Our debt securities portfolio consists primarily of investment-grade publicly traded and privately placed corporate
bonds, residential mortgage-backed securities, commercial mortgage-backed securities and asset-backed securities.
As of December 31, 2002, debt securities with a carrying value of $11,841.4 million represented 75% of total
investments. Public debt securities represented 76% of total debt securities, with the remaining 24% represented by
private debt securities.

Fach year, the majority of cur net cash flows are invested in investment grade debt securities. However, we
maintain a portfolio allocation between 6% and 10% of debt securities in below investment grade rated bonds.
Allocations are based on our assessment of relative value and the likelihood of enhancing risk-adjusted portfolio
returns. The size of our allocation to below investment grade bonds is constrained by the size of our net worth. We
are subject to the risk that the issuers of the debt securities we own may default on principal and interest payments,
particularly if a major economic downturn occurs. Our investment strategy has been to invest the majority of our
below investment grade rated bond exposure in the "BB" rating category, which is equivalent to a Securities
Valuation Office, or SVO, securities rating of 3. The BB rating category is the highest quality tier within the
below investment grade universe, and BB rated securities historically experience lower defaults compared to B or
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CCC rated bonds. As of December 31, 2002, our total below investment grade securities totaled $1,069.0 million,
or 9% of our total debt security portfolio. Of that amount, $785.7 million, or 7% of our debt security portfolio
was invested in the BB category. Our debt securities having an increased risk of default (those securities with an
SVO rating of four or greater) totaled $283.3 million, or 2% of our total debt security portfolio.

Our debt and equity securities are classified as available-for-sale and are reported at fair value with unrealized
gains or losses included in equity. Accordingly, the carrying value of such securities reflects their fair value at the
balance sheet date. Investments whose value, in our judgment, is considered to be other-than-temporarily
impaired are written down to fair value as a charge to realized losses included in our earnings. The cost basis of
these written down investments is adjusted to fair value at the date the determination of impairment is made. The
new cost basis is not changed for subsequent recoveries in value.

Fair value is based on quoted market price, where available. When quoted market prices are not available, we
estimate fair value for debt securities by discounting projected cash flows based on market interest rates currently
being offered on similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality, by quoted market prices of comparable
instruments and by independent pricing sources or internally developed pricing models.

The following table presents the SVQ ratings for our debt security portfolio as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 (in
millions), along with an equivalent Standard & Poor’s, or S&P, rating agency designation. The majority of our
bonds are investment grade, with 91% invested in Categories 1 and 2 securities as of December 31, 2002.

Debt Securities by Credit Quality

SYO S&:P Equivalent Total Debt Securities Public Debt Securities Private Debt Securities
Rating Designation . 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001

1 AAA/AATA $7.960.9 $6,104.5 $6,549.8 $4,984.5 §1411.1 $1,120.0

2 BBB 2,811.5 2,686.7 1,767.1 1,667.9 1,044 4 1,018.8

Total investment grade 10,772.4 8,791.2 8,316.9 6,652.4 2,455.5 2,138.8

3 BB 785.7 581.6 577.4 452.9 208.3 128.7
4 B 105.4 ©173.0 82.2 150.4 23.2 22.6
5 CCC and lower 118.5 38.6 533 18.0 652 20.6
6 In or near default 59.4 23.3 254 19.8 34.0 3.5

Total debt securities $11,841.4 $ 9,607.7 $ 9,055.2 $ 7,293.5 $2,786.2 $2,314.2
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The following tables present our debt security portfolio by investment type as of December 31, 2002 (in millions),
along with a breakout of credit quality based on equivalent S&P rating agency designation.

Gross Gross Net
Fair Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized

Tvpe of Debt Security by Type Value Cost Gains Losses Gains (Losses)
U.S. government and agency ......coovieverennns $ 4616 $ 4313 $30.5 $ 0.2) $§ 303
State and political subdivision....................... 5347 481.9 53.1 (0.3) 52.8
Foreign government.........c.cocoovcervernreecnensnnenns 183.9 168.4 20.2 4.7 15.5
COTPOTALE ..cveeeiiier et e 5,432.5 5,081.0 442.8 (91.3) 351.5
Mortgage-backed.......c..oocviiiinienicrcieneen, 3,099.9 2,901.9 198.5 (0.5) 198.0
Other asset-backed.........cc.ccconmviieniinnaninaes 2,128.8 2,122.1 85.0 (78.3) 6.7
Total debt securities.............cocovivienrieinonan, $11,841.4 $11,186.6 $ 830.1 $ (175.3) $ 654.8
Outside of the closed block:

Unrealized gains .......c.ocovevevverecenrcerorniennenen, $4,331.1 $4,553.1 $ 2780 $ -- $ 2780

Unrealized 10SSES ....veceveeneinricnrcicne 592.3 693.7 -- (101.4) (101.4)

Total outside the closed block .................. 5,4234 5,246.8 278.0 (101.4) 176.6
Closed block:

Unrealized gains .......cocooveeecnnncnnennennn, 5,907.2 5,355.1 552.1 -- 552.1

Unrealized 10SS€S .......ccoovveiiicnnicine, 510.8 584.7 -- (73.9) (73.9)

Total closed block.........coieiveiiviie, 6,418.0 5,939.8 552.1 (73.9) 478.2
Total debt securities...............ccccov e, $11,841.4 $11,186.6 $ 830.1 $ (175.3) $ 654.8

Credit Quality
Investment Grade Below Investment Grade

Type of Debt Security by Type and Credit Quality Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost
U.S. government and agency ..........ccocoevvvnvevcreeceiieieeniree e, $ 4616 $ 4313 5 - -
State and political SubdiviSion ..........ccccoocvveieiiviii i 534.7 481.9 -- --
Foreign gOVErnMeNt.........cvvivivereeririeriererieseiieseeressseesraensione e 60.8 52.0 123.1 116.4
COPOTALE ...ovveieit ittt ettt ettt sae e et sr et b easarene e 4,729.2 4,347.9 703.2 733.1
Mortgage-backed.........ccooveveiiiiiieiiiireecsee e 3,013.6 2,826.8 86.3 75.1
Other asset-backed. ..........coooviiiie e 1,972.5 1,955.6 156.4 166.5
Total Aebt SECUTHES. .....oiieeee e $10,772.4 $10,095.5 $1,069.0 $1,091.1
Percentage of total debt securities.............c.ocooveeniiiinnn, %1% 50% 9% 10%
Investment Grade Debt Securities (Fair Value) Total AAATAAIA BBB
U.S, 20vernment and AZENCY ....v.evrrereermrrieienrinsasressee e seessesessenssssnsnerees § 4616 $ 4616 $ -
State and political SubdIVISION ....c..coivvirieiireiiriiie e 534.7 522.6 12.1
FOreign gOVEIMMENT.........ovviiviiiiiieitie e eie et ta e e stae e s e e sesraeseeeraesiees 60.8 27.6 332
COIPOTALE ...ttt ettt ettt st e et se st e seesne e se et ene 4,729.2 2,437.5 2,291.7
Mortgage-backed ..o e 3,013.6 2,794.7 218.9
Other asSet-DACKEd. ......ccocoviieiiie et eas e 1,972.5 1,716.9 255.6
Total debt SECUITHES......c.cccvei et e e e e $ 10,772.4 $ 7.960.9 $ 2,811.5
Percentage of total debt secUrities...........coocvoveirvieerieciee e 91% 67% 24%
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Below Investment Grade Debt Securities CCoor In or Near
(Fair Value) Total BB B Lower Default

Foreign gOVEIrnment............ccoverevevereererererneeens $ 1231 $ 1203 $ 2.8 $ - $ -
COMPOTALe ...ttt 703.3 513.1 87.1 63.1 40.0
Mortgage-backed.........orvrrvrrorerrirrorirreieieinn 86.3 83.8 22 3 --
Other asset-backed...........cocevceeriveciiiniiienen 156.3 68.5 13.3 55.1 194
Total debt securities.......ocvenveerireveererereenene. $ 1,06%.0 $ 785.7 $ 1054 § 1185 § 594

Percentage of total debt securities............... 9% 7% 1% 1% %

We manage credit risk through industry and issuer diversification. Maximum exposure to an issuer is defined by
quality ratings, with higher quality issuers having larger exposure limits. Our investment philosophy has been to
create a high level of industry diversification. The top five industry holdings as of December 31, 2002 in our debt
securities portfolio are banking (3%), financial services (2%), leasing/rental (2%), grocery (2%} and electric
utilities (2%). -

Our corporate bond exposure to recently troubled industries including telecommunication equipment, telephone
utilities, airlines, and media, publishing and broadcasting comprise less than 4% of the debt securities portfolio.
In addition, within the asset-backed securities sector our exposure to securitized aircraft receivable securities
comprises approximately 1.5% of the debt securities portfolio, with less than one third of that exposure rated
below investment grade.

The following table presents certain information with respect to realized investment losses (in millions). Losses
from "other than temporary impairment” charges are reported separately. These impairment charges were
determined based on our assessment of factors to be enumerated below, as they pertain to the individual securities
determined to be other than temporarily impaired. Sources and types of net realized investment gains (losses) for
the years 2002, 2001 and 2000 follow:

Investment Type 2002 2001 2000

Debt SECUTILES ...ooveiveieciii e § (122.9) $ (72.6) $ (79
EQUILY SECUTTLIES ..vvvvvriereericeiniierirsie st sesne s sssss s sieniesssasesssarnsssanes (9.8)

Mortgage loans 0.6) (6.1) (1.8)
Real ESLALE....vviiceicee et st es -~ -- 6.1)
Venture capital partnerships (5.1) -- -
Other INVESTE ASSEIS....cuovevrereiiciecteee ettt aenseans . (22.0) @37 --
ImpPairment IOSSES .. ..ovviriei et (160.9) (82.4) (15.4)
DEDE SECUTITIES ..vveivireieiiitieticc ettt ettt ss et aabe st sa et sba et nreens 48.4 21.7 (46.9)
EQUILY SECUIILIES c..vovvveiiiiieciieieiec e satsses ettt ens st ns s ssssanens 2.1 (8.8) 146.8
Mortgage loans 0.2 7.1 4.8
REAL ESLALE. ....cvivieeii ettt ettt et 4.0 2.5) 1.8
Other INVESLE @SSELS....ccovivrrrieiiirrenteirtreeinneee bt ss s sssess 1.9 (7.5 (1.9
Net transaction GaIMS ... ...ocovv et s ee 52.8 10.6 104.6
Net rezlized investment gains (JOSSES) ..o $ (107.6) $ (724 $ 892

Net realized investment gaing (10SSES)......vovvvvevrvirirrernererneirseeesereseeenennaas $ (107.6) $ (724 § 892
Closed block applicable policyholder dividend obligation (reduction) ........ (40.3) (15.4) --
Applicable deferred acquisition Costs (BENEfit) ..........ovvveevvrevereeereerreeerrereecns (7.2) 10.5 (10.7)
Applicable deferred income taxes (benefit) .......ccocvvrovirncrnnnieineronnenn, (20.8) (24.5) 32.9
Cffsets to realized investment gains (10SSES).....covvvrerriiriireceririerisereeenan, (68.3) (29.4) 222

Net realized investrnent gains (losses) included in net income................. S (39.3) S (43.0 S 670




Gross and net unrealized gains and losses from debt and equity securities at year-end 2002 follow (in millions):

Total Qutside Closed Block Closed Block

Gains Losses Gains Lesses Gains Losses
Debt securities ....oocoervnneneiereenens § 830.1 $(1753) $ 2780 § (1014) § 5524 $ (73.9)
Equity securities .......oocveereirvieereiennes 144.4 {15.4) 1444 (15.4) -- --
Total unrealized gains (108s€s).......ccovvnne. 974.5 $ (190.7 4224 $ (116.8) 552.1 § (73.9
Net unamortized gains........cocveeveveerieernnn. 783.8 305.6 478.2
Applicable policyholder dividend obligation 478.2 -- 478.2
Applicable deferred policy acquisition costs
(credit) ........ ettt e 1065 106.5 -
Applicable deferred income taxes............... 69.7 69.7 --
Total offsets to net unrealized gains............ 654.4 ' 176.2 478.2
Net unrealized gains .........cccoocvvvvvcinrennnnas $ 1294 § 1294 $ -

Total net unamortized gains were $783.8 million. Of that amount, $305.6 million was outside the closed block
($129.4 miilion after applicable deferred policy acquisition costs and deferred income taxes) and $478.2 million
was in the closed block ($0.0 million after applicable policyholder dividend obligation).

At the end of each reporting period we review all securities for potential recognition of an “other-than-temporary”
impairment. We maintain a watch list for the identification and monitoring of securities in default, near default or
otherwise considered by our investment professionals as being distressed, potentially distressed or requiring a
heightened level of scrutiny. As validation of our watch list process, at December 31, 2002, we reviewed all
securities whose amortized cost basis is in excess of carrying value on a continuous basis for durations of zero to
six months, six to 12 months, 12 to 24 months and greater than 24 months. This analysis is further broken down
as to investment grade and non-investment grade securities and closed block and outside of closed block
securities. Using this analysis coupled with our watch list, we review all securities whose fair value is less than
80% of amortized cost (“significant unrealized loss™) with emphasis on below investment grade securities with a
continuous significant unrealized loss in excess of six months. In addition, we review securities that have
experienced lesser percentage declines in value on a more selective basis using many of the previously discussed
factors that we consider in making a determination that a security is other than temporarily impaired.

Our assessment of whether an investment by us in a debt or equity security is other than temporarily impaired is
primarily based on whether the issuer has:

defaulted on payment obligations;

declared that it will default at a future point outside the current reporting period;
announced a restructure will occur outside the current reporting period;

severe liquidity problems that cannot be resolved; ‘

filed for bankruptcy; and/or

financial condition such that future payments are highly unlikely.

@ © % © & @

The following tables present certain information with respect to our gross unrealized losses with respect to our
investment in debt securities outside of the closed block and in the closed block, as of December 31, 2002 (in
millions, except number of positions). We separately present the information in the following tables between that
applicable to outside the closed block and that applicable to the closed block as we believe it is unlikely that there
would be any effect on our net income related to the realization of the closed block unrealized investment losses
due to the sufficiency of the policyholder dividend obligation liability in the closed block. See Note 7 to our
consolidated financial statements presented elsewhere in this Form 10-K. Applicable deferred policy acquisition
costs and income taxes, which are excluded from these tables, would further reduce the effect on our net income.
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Gross unrealized losses on debt securities outside of the closed block at December 31, 2002 by duration of
unrealized loss and by credit quality follow (in millions, except number of positions):

0-6 6-12 12-24 Over 24

Total Meonths Months Moeonths Months
Total debt securities:
Number of poSItions ......c.ccovvuveeeerirrenveeens 170 101 16 35 18
Total fair value .......cooovevvirreneencernineieen, $§ 5923 $ 3337 § 453 $ 1304 $ 829
Total amortized cost .........oovvvvevvcieriicrerennn, 693.7 3854 52.5 160.5 95.3
Unrealized 10SS .....covveveicrirorniiieirccnirnininas $ (101.4) $§ (51.7) $ (7.2) § 30y § (1249
Investment grade debt securities:
Number of POSIHONS ..veovievecaeeineereereenneens 119 79 10 18 12
Total fair value .ocooveeeiieer e $ 4589 $ 2819 $ 306 $ 781 $ 683
Total amortized COSt ......ccoevvreivrecevirerereiiene 520.3 316.7 33.0 92.5 78.1
Unrealized [0SS ....cooveviccrienecnenn e $ (614) § (34.8) $ 2.4 $ (144 $ (9.8)
Below investment grade debt securities:
Number of poSItions ........cocoeevervencecienenne 51 22 6 17 6
Total fair Value .......coovveeieeeeiiirevcces e $§ 1334 $ 518 § 147 $ 523 i 14.6
Total amortized COSt ..........rrrveerrvrrirrrernnnre 173.4 68.7 C195 68.0 172
Unrealized 1088 ...cocvvvvvocrcrreiecvnircieesnirennnas $ (40.0) $ (169 $ (4.8) § (157 3 (2.6)

For below investment grade debt securities outside the closed block at December 31, 2002, 17 securities have had
gross unrealized losses greater than 20% of cost continuously for the durations that follow (in millions, except
number of positions):

0-6 6-12 12-24 Over 24

Total Momnths Months Months Months
Number of positions ......ccoeceeerrcrirriinnenen: 17 15 0 1 1
Total fair Value.......c.occovvivievieiiecrieiieiieee § 290 $ 274 $ -- $ 1.6 $ --
Total amortized Cost ...vveveevvvvevire e, 61.4 534 - 8.0 --
Unrealized 1085 ....oovoveviveeciceicveeeneeene, $ (324 $ (26.0) $ - $ (6.4) $ -

As indicated in the above tables, there were 30 investment grade debt security positions held outside the closed
block that have been in an unrealized loss position for more than 12 months as of December 31, 2002 (12 of
which have been in an unrealized loss position for more than 24 months). The aggregate unrealized loss relating
to these positions was $24.2 million as of that date ($9.8 million of which relate to holdings in an unrealized loss
position for more than 24 months). None of the 30 investment grade debt securities held outside the closed block
were considered to be other than temporarily impaired as of December 31, 2002. Six individual public issues
aggregated $19.0 million in unrealized losses, all of which continue to, and in our opinion, are expected to
continue to perform to their original contractual terms as of December 31, 2002. One security acquired before
2000 is a AAA-rated security structured to receive coupon payments indexed to the performance of the S&P 500.
The security has declined in fair value due to the drop in the S&F 500 index but is defeased with U.S. treasury
strips. One security acquired in 1998 is a AAA-rated interest-only security that has declined in fair value due to
the drop in interest rates. Two securities are A-rated bank issues that have declined in fair value due to an
increase in required credit spreads for these securities. One security is an A2/AA- rated issue that has declined in
fair value due to the default of the servicer of the pool of manufactured housing loans that are collateral for the
transaction. One security is collateralized by oil receivables and has declined in fair value due to a recently ended
strike by oil workers in Venezuela. The remaining 24 investment grade debt securities held outside the closed
block that have been in an unrealized loss position for more than 12 months as of December 31, 2002 have
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$5.2 million in unrealized losses. Each of the remaining 24 securities have unrealized losses less than $0.8
million. These securities represent holdings in collateralized bond obligations, mortgage-backed securities, asset-
backed securities as well as holdings in the energy, banking, and transportation sectors. We are of the opinion
that these unrealized losses are temporary in nature and are primarily related to temporary market conditions
affecting the overall equity, credit and interest rate markets, as well as the energy sector. In addition, our analysis
of the issuers’ financial strength and our analysis of underlying collateral supported the conclusion that these
securities were not other than temporarily impaired. Finally, as of December 31, 2002, we have the ability and
intent to hold these securities until their value has fully recovered.

There were 23 below-investment grade debt security positions held outside the closed block that have been in an
unrealized loss position for more than 12 months as of December 31, (six of the previously mentioned securities
have been in an unrealized position for more than 24 months). The aggregate gross pre-tax unrealized loss
relating to these 23 positions was $18.3 million ($6.8 million after offsets for applicable deferred acquisition costs
and taxes). $2.6 million ($0.9 million after offsets) of these unrealized losses have been in an unrealized loss
position for more than 24 months. Two of the previously mentioned 23 securities with unrealized losses of $6.4
million (82.6 million after offsets) had unrealized losses greater than 20% of cost continuously for greater than 12
months. None of the 23 previously mentioned securities held outside the closed block were considered to be
other-than-temporarily impaired as of December 31, 2002. Of the 23 below-investment grade securities, six
individual publicly-traded issues comprised approximately $14.5 million of the gross unrealized loss ($5.3 million
after offsets), all of which continue to and, in our opinion, are expected to continue to perform as to their original
contractual terms. Two of these holdings are in collateralized airline pass-through certificates, three are in energy
sector issues, and one holding is a Latin American-related finance investment. The remaining 17 below
investment grade debt securities held outside the closed block that have been in an unrealized loss position for
more than 12 months as of December 31, 2002 have $3.8 million in unrealized losses ($1.5 million after offsets).
Each of the remaining 17 holdings has gross unrealized losses less than $0.8 million. These securities represent
holdings in airline pass-through certificates and in the energy, telecommunications and retail sectors. We believe
that these unrealized losses are temporary in nature and are primarily related to temporary market conditions
affecting the overall equity, credit and interest rate markets as well as the airline, energy and Latin American
sectors. In addition, our analysis of the issuers’ financial strength and our analysis of underlying collateral
supported the conclusion that these securities were not other than temporarily impaired. Finally, as of

December 31, 2002, we have the ability and intent to hold these securities until their value has fully recovered.
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Gross unrealized losses on debt securities in the closed block at December 31, 2002 by duration of unrealized loss
and by credit quality follow (in millions, except number of positions):

0-6 6-12 12-24 Over 24

Total Months Months Months Months
Total debt securities: ' ,
Number of poSitions .......ccovceeeevrreninercanene 121 76 7 36 2
Total fair value ......ccocoovvnvvrcneccrrrcenee $ 5108 § 2890 $ 316 $ 1799 3§ 103
Total amortized COSt.......ovevriervririrniriiienne 584.7 3059 40.7 226.2 11.9
Unrealized 10SS ...o.coocvevieeeeececrecrcccreeees $ (739 § (169 $  ©.D $ (46.3) $ Q.6
Investment grade debt securities: v
Number of positions .........ccoceereverrciernnnenns 77 53 3 20 1
Total fair value ..o $ 3208 $ 1882 $ 138 $ 1114 $ 7.4
Total amortized oSt ......cveviiverrererriiieene 350.0 193.0 16.5 132.1 8.4
Unrealized 1088 ....cvvveeeeveeiieneeiecserernene $ (29.2) $ (4.8) § @7 $ (207 $ (1.0
Below investment grade debt securities: ,
Number of PoSItIONS .......ccccvvvvirerinierennene 44 23 4 16 1
Total fair value .....ccooeveereecnneirreens $ 1900 $ 1008 $ 178 § 685 $ 29
Total amortized COSt ......coovvercieninicireiennen 234.7 1129 24.2 941 3.3
Unrealized loss ............ SOOI § (44.7) $ (12.1) $ 6.4) $§ (25.6) $ 0.6)

For below investment grade debt securities in the closed block at December 31, 2002, 17 securities have had gross
unrealized losses greater than 20% of cost continuously for the durations that follow (in millions, except number

of positions): ‘
¢-6 T 612 12-24 Over 24
Total Months Momnths Meomnths Meonths
Number of positions 17 11 3 3 0
Total fair value ....ocvevveviicicee e, $§ 599 $ 421 $ 6.9 $ 109 $ --
Total amortized coSt .........ccoovvvecviierniiinenen, 94 .4 65.7 129 15.8 -
Unrealized 10SS ....oovvevvieiiieeeee e e $ (345 $ (23.6) $ 6.0) $ (4.9) $ --
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As indicated in the above tables, there were 21 investment grade debt security positions held in the closed block
that have been in an unrealized loss position for more than 12 months as of December 31, 2002 (one of which has
been in an unrealized loss position for more than 24 months). The aggregate unrealized loss relating to these
positions was $21.7 million as of that date ($1.0 million of which relates to a security in an unrealized loss
position for more than 24 months). None of the 21 investment grade securities held in the closed block were
considered to be other than temporarily impaired as of December 31, 2002. Nine individual public issues
aggregated $18.0 million in unrealized losses, all of which continue to, and in our opinion, are expected to
continue to perform to their original contractual terms as of December 31, 2002. One issue is an A-rated lumber-
collateralized holding that has declined in fair value due to a decline in the price of lumber. Two securities are A-
rated bank issues that have declined in fair value due to an increase in required credit spreads for these securities.
Four issues are collateralized aircraft financings that have declined in fair value due to airline bankruptcies,
reduced travel and higher risk premiums required for aircraft-related investments. One issue is a Latin American
energy company that has declined in fair value due to an increase in required credit spreads, while another issue
declined in fair value due to an increase in required credit spreads for the underlying issuer. The remaining 12
investment grade debt securities held in the closed biock that have been in an unrealized loss position for more
than 12 months as of December 31, 2002 have $3.7 million in unrealized losses. Each of the remaining 12
securities has unrealized losses less than $0.8 miilion. These securities represent holdings in mortgage or asset-
backed securities and holdings in airlines other transportation, energy, paper products and banking sectors. We
are of the opinion that these unrealized losses are temporary in nature and are primarily related to temporary
market conditions affecting the overall equity, credit and interest rate markets, as well as the energy sectors. In
addition, our analysis of the issuers’ financial strength and cur analysis of underlying collateral supported the
conclusion that these securities were not other than temporarily impaired. Finally, as of December 31, 2002, we
have the ability and intent to hold these securities until their value has fully recovered.

There were 17 below investment grade security positions held in the closed block that have been in an unrealized
loss position for more than 12 months as of December 31, 2002 (one of which has been in an unrealized loss
position for more than 24 months). The aggregate gross pre-tax unrealized loss relating to these positions was
$26.2 million ($0.6 million of which relates to a security in an unrealized loss position for more than 24 months).
None of the 17 previously mentioned securities held in the closed block were considered to be other-than-
temporarily impaired as of December 31, 2002. Three of these securities with unrealized losses of $4.9 million
had unrealized losses greater than 20% of cost continuously for greater than 12 months.

Of the 17 below investment grade positions, ten individual public issues comprise approximately $23.7 million of
the gross unrealized loss, all of which continue to and, in our opinion, are expected to continue to perform as to
their original contractual terms. One issue is a European media company for which required credit spreads have
increased since purchase. One issue is a muiti-line insurance company holding that has declined in fair value due
to financial losses. One issue is a media company holding whose fair value has declined due to rating
downgrades and weakness in the theater market. Two issues are energy/power generation related holdings that
have declined in fair value due to downgrades, bankruptcies and weakness in the energy market. One issue is a
collateralized airplane lease related holding that has declined in fair value due to airline bankruptcies, reduced
travel and higher risk premiums required for aircrafi-related investments. One issue is a security that has declined
in fair value due to the default of the servicer of the pool of manufactured housing loans that are collateral for the
transaction and potential reductions in future cash flows. The remaining seven below investment grade debt
securities held in the closed block that have been in an unrealized loss position for more than 12 months as of
December 31, 2002 have $2.5 million in unrealized losses. Each of the remaining seven holdings has gross
unrealized losses less than $0.8 million. These securities represent holdings in airline pass-through certificates,
other asset backed securities, and in the energy and consumer products sectors. We are of the opinion that these
unrealized losses are temporary in nature and are primarily related to temporary market conditions affecting the
overall equity, credit and interest rate markets as well as the airline and energy sectors. In addition, our analysis
of the issuers’ financial strength and our analysis of underlying collateral supported the conclusion that these
securities were not other than temporarily impaired. Finally, as of December 31, 2002, we have the ability and
intent to hold these securities until their value has fully recovered.
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Gross unrealized losses on equity securities as of December 31, 2002 were as follows (in millions, except number
of positions):

0-6 6-12 12-24 . Over 24
Total Months Momnths Months Months
Total equity securities
Number of POSItIONS ....c.coccvvvverriiieirnenenns 216 175 5 29 7
Total fair value .........cooveevveveerrvciivseernerenines $ 1209 $ 1016 $ 0.3 § 166 b 2.4
TOtal COSE...ooviviniiiiirieeere et 136.3 108.2 0.4 24.9 " 238
Unrealized 1085 ....c.covevviveereeneieeieeiesneens $ (154 $§ (6.6) § (O 83 § (04

As indicated above, $8.7 million (85.7 million after income taxes) of our gross unrealized losses in equity
securities were continuously in an unrealized loss position for more than 12 months as of December 31, 2002
($0.4 miliion relates to securities in an unrealized loss position for more than 24 months). $6.8 million ($4.4
million after taxes) of the $8.7 million in unrealized losses relates to two individual heldings representing seed
monies invested in mutual fund offerings of our Investment Management operations which, as of December 31,
2002, are long-term holdings of our life insurance subsidiary’s general account. Accordingly, we do not consider
our investments in these seed monies as being other than temporarily impaired at December 31, 2002.

In determining that the securities giving rise to the previously mentioned unrealized iosses were not other than
temporarily impaired, we evaluated the factors cited above, which we consider when assessing whether a security
is other than temporarily impaired. In making these evaluations, we must exercise considerable judgment.
Accordingly, there can be no assurance that actual results will not differ from our judgments and that such
differences may require the future recognition of other than temporary impairment charges that could have a
material affect on our financial position and results of operations. In addition, the value of, and the realization of
any loss on, a debt security or equity security is subject to numerous risks, inciuding; interest rate risk, market
risk, credit risk and liguidity risk. The magnitude of any loss incurred by us may be affected by the relative
concentration of our investments in any one issuer or industry. We have established specific policies limiting the
concentration of our investments in any single issuer and industry and believe our investment portfolio is
prudently diversified. At December 31, 2002, no single non-affiiiated issuer constituted more than $7.2 million of
our gross unrealized losses.

Aberdeen Asset Management PLC

Qur ownership of Aberdeen common stock included 4% of the company’s outstanding shares that we purchased
in May 2001 for $46.8 million and 18% of its outstanding shares that we purchased between 1996 and 1999 for
$62.3 million. The carrying value of our equity investment in Aberdeen was $119.3 million and $103.9 million at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The fair value, based on qucted market price of underlying shares, of
our equity investment in Aberdeen was $43.6 million and $221.1 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Included in our carrying value of Aberdeen was approximately $49.8 million of goodwill as of
December 31, 2002 related to acquisition of Aberdeen common stock

During the second half of 2002, the value of Aberdeen’s publicly traded shares experienced a significant decline
due to a general decline in valuations of U.K. asset managers as well as regulatory matters related to the UK.
split-capital trust sector, including Aberdeen’s managed funds. In late 2002, Aberdeen announced the results of a
strategic review, which concluded with an announcement of a decision to divest itself of a business segment that
actively manages property investments and of a conditional agreement to dispose of its rights to manage certain
retail funds. Aberdeen anticipates utilizing the related proceeds to paydown existing debt. Subsequent to these
transactions, Aberdeen will be an independent asset management group with approximately £15 billion
(approximately $24 billion) of assets under management, featuring a diverse range of investment vehicles catering
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to some 400,000 investors worldwide. On February 21, 2003, Aberdeen announced the closing of the retail funds
transaction, which resulted in proceeds of £86.8 million (or $138.0 million).

We evaluated the carrying value of our equity method investment in Aberdeen for other-than-temporary
impairment, considering quantitative and qualitative factors including quoted market price for the underlying
securities, the duration carrying value is in excess of fair value and historical and projected earnings and cash flow
capacity. ~

Considerations in our analysis included the following:

e the fair value of our equity in Aberdeen was below our carrying value for less than six months as of
December 31, 2002; .

e Aberdeen continued to report net income and positive cash flow from operations as of its fiscal year
ended September 30, 2002 (last publicly available data);

e the retail funds and proposed property management transactions are anticipated to substantially
increase the book value of Aberdeen through the monetization of the underlying fair values of the
businesses to be disposed;

e proceeds from the retail funds and proposed property management dispositions are anticipated to be
used to paydown debt, resulting in an improvement of Aberdeen’s leverage ratios; and

¢ expense reduction efforts have been implemented to better align Aberdeen’s cost structure with
revenues from its remaining businesses.

We will continue to evaluate our carrying value in Aberdeen for other than temporary impairment, taking into
account Aberdeen’s underlying business fundamentals during 2003. A significant deterioration of Aberdeen’s
underlying business fundamentals, or financial performance, a materially adverse regulatory development related
to the split capital trusts, or a prolonged period where our carrying value is in excess of fair value could lead us to
determine that an other-than-temporary impairment exists. Should we make such a determination, we would

write down the carrying value of our equity investment to fair value as a charge to realized investment losses for
the period that we make the determination.

See Notes 4 and 5 to our consolidated financial statements regarding our Aberdeen holdings.

Hilb, Rogal & Hamilton Company

Our investment in HRH, a Virginia-based property and casualty insurance and employee benefit products

distributor, includes primarily common stock. See Notes 5 and 6 to our consolidated financial statements for

detailed information regarding our investment in HRH.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

In the normal course of business, we enter into transactions involving various types of financial instruments such
as debt securities and equity securities. These instruments have credit risk and also may be subject to risk of loss

due to interest rate and market fluctuations.

Liquidity refers to the ability of a company to generate sufficient cash flow to meet its cash requirements. The

following discussion combines liquidity and capital resources as these subjects are interrelated. Consistent with

the discussion of our results of operations, we discuss liquidity and capital resources on both consolidated and

segment bases.

The Phoenix Companies, Inc. (holding company)

PNX’s primary uses of liquidity include dividend payments on its common stock, loans or contributions to its
subsidiaries, debt servicing and general corporate expenses.
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PNX’s primary source of liquidity has been from dividends from Phoenix Life. Under New York Insurance Law,
Phoenix Life can pay stockholder dividends to PNX in any calendar year without prior approval from the New
York Superintendent of Insurance (Superintendent) in the amount of the lesser of 10% of Phoenix Life's surplus to
policyholders as of the immediately preceding calendar year or Phoenix Life's statutory net gain from operations
for the immediately preceding calendar year, not including realized capital gains. Phoenix Life will be able to pay
$44.5 million in dividends in 2003 without special permission from the Superintendent. Any amount in excess of
this is subject to the discretion of the Superintendent. See Note 15 to our consolidated financial statements for
more information on Phoenix Life statutory financial information and regulatory matters.

PNX does not expect to receive dividends from PXP in the near term because we expect that during this time PXP
will use a substantial portion of its cash flows from operations to pay contingent consideration from prior
acquisitions and to pay down its outstanding debt and meet interest obligations to PNX and to Phoenix Life.

PNX has a 364-day unfunded unsecured senior revolving credit facility, or revolving credit facility, under which
it has direct borrowing rights, as do Phoenix Life and PXP with PNX’s unconditional guarantee. We expect
dividend payments from Phoenix Life, debt servicing from PXP and borrowing capacity under PNX’s revolving
credit facility to be sufficient to enable PNX to make dividend payments on its common stock, pay its operating
expenses, service its outstanding debt, make contributions to its subsidiaries and meet its other obligations if
required. See Note 6 to our consolidated financial statements for more information on the revolving credit
facility.

See Note 18 to our consolidated financial statements for more information on PNX.
Consolidated F inancial Condition

The following table presents selected consolidated balance sheef data as of December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000
for the purpose of discussing significant changes in our consolidated financial condition {(in millions):

Changes
2002 2001 2000 2002 /01 2001 /60

Assets:
Total iINVeStMENtS.....ccovvveereerrerereereieenrienes $15,721.8 $13,604.9 $11,877.4 §2.1169 $1,7273
Cash and cash equivalents..........c...ccooeecenenn. 1,058.5 815.5 720.0 243.0 95.5
Deferred policy acquisition costs................. 1,234.1 1,123.7 1,019.0 . 1104 104.7
Goodwill and other intangible assets........... 762.0 858.6 582.6 (96.6) 276.0
Liabilities:
Policy liabilities and accruals ............ce.ee.. 12,680.0 11,846.4 11,372.6 833.6 473.8
Policyholder deposit funds ........c.coceeeeneneen. 3,395.7 1,515.2 678.4 1,880.5 836.8
Indebtedness ................... e e 644.3 599.3 425.1 45.0 174.2
Stock purchase contracts .................. v 147.2 -- -- 147.2 -
Other general account liabilities .................. 542.9 605.6 4733 (62.7) 132.3
Minority interest in net assets of '

SUDSIIATIOS vveveiieie e 10.8 8.8 136.9 2.0 (128.1)

2002 vs. 2001

Invested assets and cash and cash equivalents increased $2.1 billion and $243.0 million as of December 31, 2002
when compared to December 31, 2001. The increase in invested assets and cash and cash equivalents was the
result of net insurance cash inflows, particularly from the annuity product line. Cash inflows related to the
Retirement Planners Edge guaranteed interest account have been invested in shorter duration investments to
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correspond with the anticipated duration of the liabilities, resulting in an increase in cash and cash equivalents
during 2002. See the General Account section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis for more information.

The decrease in goodwill and other intangible assets was primarily due to the adoption of the new standard on
goodwill and other intangible assets, which resulted in a before tax cumulative effect of accounting change charge
of $141.7 million and a $66.3 million impairment charge. This was offset by $102.1 million of goodwill and
other intangible assets recorded pursuant to the acquisition of Kayne Anderson Rudnick. See Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements for a detailed discussion of goodwill and other intangibles and the acquisition of
Kayne Anderson Rudnick.

The $110.4 million increase in the deferred policy acquisition cost asset during 2002 is the result of capitalized
costs related to 2002 sales in excess of 2002 amortization of prior years costs. See Note 3 to our consolidated
financial statements for more information.

The increase in policy liabilities and accruals was due to additional life insurance reserves and a $10.4 million
increase in the policyholder dividend obligation. The increase in the policyholder dividend obligation was
primarily due to continued favorable mortality. See Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements for more
information.

The increase in policyholder deposit funds was the result of increased sales of variable annuity products, primarily
Retirement Planners Edge (RPE), and fixed annuity products. See Management’s Discussion & Analysis —
General Account for further discussion.

Indebtedness increased during the year as a result of the issuance of equity units during the fourth quarter, most of
the proceeds of which was used to pay down our previous bank credit facility. The increase was also due to an
increase in the carrying value of fixed rate debt as a result of a fair value hedge. See Notes 6 and 14 to our
consolidated financial statements for further discussion on our financing activities and hedging activities,
respectively.

Stock purchase contracts represents delivery obligations under stock purchase contracts related to the third quarter
HRH transaction. See note 6 to our consolidated financial statements for further information.

2001 vs. 2000
The increase in total investments in 2001 was due to our IPO and debt offering proceeds, growth in our annuity
business and the market appreciation recorded on the transfer of Aberdeen and HRH convertible subordinated

notes from held-to-maturity to available-for-sale.

The increase in goodwill and other intangible assets in 2001 was primarily due to $297.5 million related to the
purchase of the PXP minority interest.

The increase in policy liabilities and accruals in 2001 was primarily due to increased life insurance reserves and
the establishment of the policyholder dividend obligation.

The increase in policyholder deposit funds in 2001 was due to an increase in annuity deposits to the guaranteed
interest account option during 2001. Annuity deposits increased primarily as a result of successful product
launches.

The increase in long-term debt in 2001 was due to our public debt offering during the fourth quarter of 2001.

The decrease in minority interest in net assets of consolidated subsidiaries in 2001 was due to our purchase of the
PXP minority interest, which resulted in PXP becoming our wholly-owned subsidiary.
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Life Companies

The Life Companies’ liquidity requirements principally relate to: the liabilities associated with various life
insurance and annuity products, the payment of dividends by Phoenix Life to PNX, operating expenses,
contributions to subsidiaries and payment of principal and interest on outstanding debt obligations. Liabilities
arising from life insurance and annuity products include the payment of benefits, as well as cash payments in
connection with policy surrenders, withdrawals and loans. The Life Companies also have liabilities arising from
the runoff of the remaining group accident and health reinsurance discontinued operations.

Historically, the Life Companies have used cash flow from operations and investment activities to fund liquidity
requirements. Their principal cash inflows from life insurance and annuities activities come from premiums,
annuity deposits and charges on insurance policies and annuity contracts. In the case of Phoenix Life, cash
inflows also include dividends, distributions and other payments from subsidiaries. Their principal cash inflows
from investment activities result from repayments of principal, proceeds from maturities, sales of invested assets
and investment income.

Additional sources of liquidity to meet unexpected cash outflows are available from the Life Companies’ portfolio
of liquid assets. These liquid assets include substantial holdings of U.S. government and agency bonds, short-
term investments and marketable debt and equity securities. The cash Phoenix Life received as consideration for
the transfer of shares of common stock of PXP and other subsidiaries following the demutualization was a non-
recurring source of liquidity. Pursuant to the plan of reorganization, this cash payment was $659.8 million.

Phoenix Life's current sources of liquidity also include a revolving credit facility under which Phoenix Life has
direct borrowing rights, subject to our unconditional guarantee (see "Debt Financing™). Since the
demutualization, Phoenix Life’s access to the cash flows generated by the closed block assets has been restricted
to funding the closed block.

A primary liquidity concern with respect to life insurance and annuity products is the risk of early policyholder
and contractholder withdrawal. The Life Companies closely monitor their liquidity requirements in order to
match cash inflows with expected cash outflows, and employs an asset/liability management approach tailored to
the specific requirements of each product line, based upon the return objectives, risk tolerance, liquidity, tax and
regulatory requirements of the underlying products. In particular, the Life Companies maintain investment
programs generally intended to provide adequate funds to pay benefits without forced sales of investments.
Products having liabilities with relatively long lives, such as life insurance, are matched with assets having similar
estimated lives, such as long-term bonds, private placement bonds and mortgage loans. Shorter-term liabilities
are matched with investments such as short-term and medium-term fixed maturities.

The following table summarizes the Life Companies’ annuity contract reserves and deposit fund liabilities in
terms of contractholders' ability to withdraw funds as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 (in millions):
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Withdrawal Characteristics of Annuity Contract
Reserves and Deposit Fund Liabilities”

20602 2061
Amount Percent Ameunt Percent

Not subject to discretionary withdrawal provision.................. § 168.1 3% § 1739 3%
Subject to discretionary withdrawal without adjustment®..... 2,073.3 35% 1,054.8 21%
Subject to discretionary withdrawal with market value

AQJUSHINENT ...oiiiiiiicreeicciiiies e ceetrsie et 649.7 11% 239.1 5%
Subject to discretionary withdrawal at contract value less

Surrender charge.......cccccoiviviieves e 701.5 11% 4533 9%
Subject to discretionary withdrawal at market value.............. 2,386.5 40% 3,087.5 62%
Total annuity contract reserves and deposit fund liability §$ 5,979.1 100% $ 5,008.6 100%

(1) Contract reserves and deposit fund liability amounts are reported on a statutory basis, which more accurately reflects the
potential cash outflows. Amounts include variable product liabilities. Annuity contract reserves and deposit fund
liabilities are monetary amounts that an insurer must have available to provide for future obligations with respect to its
annuities and deposit funds. These are liabilities on the balance sheet of financial statements prepared in conformity

with statutory accounting practices. These amounts are at least equal to the values available to be withdrawn by
policyholders.

(2) The increase in amounts subject to discretionary withdrawal without adjustment has resulted from sales of a short
maturity guaranteed rate contract without surrender charges. Assets supporting this product consist of high quality
commercial paper and high quality short maturity fixed income instruments. Asset and liability cash flows are monitored
on a frequent basis. See General Account section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

Individual life insurance policies are less susceptible to withdrawals than annuity contracts because policyholders
may incur surrender charges and be required to undergo a new underwriting process in order to obtain a new
insurance policy. As indicated in the table above, most of the Life Companies’ annuity contract reserves and
deposit fund liabilities are subject to withdrawals.

Individual life insurance policies, other than term life insurance policies, increase in cash values over their lives.
Policyholders have the right to borrow from the Life Companies an amount generally up to the cash value of their
policies at any time. As of December 31, 2002, the Life Companies had approximately $10.7 billion in cash
values with respect to which policyholders had rights to take policy loans. The majority of cash values eligible
for policy loans are at variable interest rates that are reset annually on the policy anniversary. The Life

Companies’ amount of policy loans has not changed significantly since 1999. Policy loans at December 31, 2002
were $2.2 billion.

On July 23, 2002, Phoenix Life, through a wholly-owned subsidiary, acquired the variable life and variable
annuity business of Valley Forge Life Insurance Company (a subsidiary of CNA Financial Corporation), effective
July 1, 2002. See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements for further discussion.

The primary liquidity concerns regarding the Life Companies’ cash inflows from its investment activities are the
risks of default by debtors, interest rate and other market volatility and potential illiquidity of investments. The
Life Companies closely monitor and manage these risks.

We believe that the Life Companies’ current and anticipated sources of liquidity are adequate to meet their
present and anticipated needs.
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PXP

PXP’s liquidity requirements are primarily to fund operating expenses and pay outstanding debt and interest
obligations. PXP also will require liquidity to fund the costs of acquisitions or any contingent payments for
previous acquisitions. Historically, PXP's principal source of liquidity has been cash flows from operations. We
expect that cash flow from operations will continue to be PXP's principal source of working capital. PXP,
together with PNX and Phoenix Life, has entered into a revolving credit facility. Under this facility, PXP has
direct borrowing rights, subject to PNX’s unconditional guarantee. We believe that PXP's current and anticipated
sources of liquidity are adequate to meet its present and anticipated needs. See Note 6 to our consolidated
financial statements for further details on our financing activities.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments
As of December 31, 2002, we had $683.5 million cutstanding related to contractual obligations, excluding

derivative instruments, and $165.3 million in commercial commitments. The following table presents the fiscal
periods in which our contractual obligations and commercial commitments will come due.

Payments Due by Fiscal Period

Contractual Obligations : Total 2003 2004 - 2005 2006 — 2007 Thereafter
Indebtedness(D..... e ereeseesesereen $ 6287 $ - $ - $ 1750 $ 4537
Future Minimum Lease Payments®................ 54.8 15.3 26.3 5.4 7.8
Total Contractual Obligations.................. $ 6835 $ 153 $ 263 $ 1804 $ 4615

Commitment Expiration
Commercigl Commitments Total 2603 2004 — 2605 2006 — 2007 Thereafter
Standby Letters of Credit®).......n $ 106 $ 106 $ - $ - $ -
Other Commercial Commitments™).. 154.7 29 6.8 12.9 132.1
Total Commercial Commitments.............. $ 1653 $ i13.5 $ 6.8 $ 12.9 $ 132.1

(1) Amounts include principal only. See Note 6 to our consolidated financial statements for more information on our
financing activities. : '

@ See Note 16 to our consolidated financial statements for more information on our lease obligations.

3) All of our standby letters of credit automatically renew on an annual basis.

@ These represent off-balance sheet commitments related to venture capital partnerships. These unfunded commitments
can be drawn down by the various private equity funds (which numbered 78 at December 31, 2002) as necessary to fund
their portfolio investments through the end of the funding period as stated in each agreement. The amount collectively
drawn down by the private equity funds in our portfolio over the year 2002 was $43.0 million, including $11.2 million in
the fourth quarter of 2002. The amounts collectively drawn down by the private equity funds in our portfolio over the
previcus three years were $47.0 million in 2001, $96.9 miilion in 2000 and $108.5 million in 1999. During that same
three-year period, the private equity funds in our portfolio have made cash and stock distributions to us of $63.0 million
in 2001, $245.0 in 2000 and $101.4 in 1999. Cash and stock distributions to us for the year 2002 were $41.7.

Reinserance
We maintain life reinsurance programs designed to protect against large or unusual losses in our life insurance

business. Over the last several years in response to the reduced cost of reinsurance coverage, we increased the
amount of individual mortality risk coverage purchased from third party reinsurers. Based on our review of their
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financial statements and reputations in the reinsurance marketplace, we believe that these third party reinsurers are
financially sound and, therefore, that we have nc material exposure to uncollectible life reinsurance.

Statutory Capital and Sdrplus and Risk Based Capital

Phoenix Life’s consolidated statutory basis capital and surplus (including asset valuation reserve) decreased from
$1,373.2 million at December 31, 2001 to $1,008.8 million at December 31, 2002. The principal factors resulting
in this decrease include:

e a$177.7 milliondecrease in carrying value of our common stock holdings in Aberdeen reflecting a decrease
in Aberdeen’s stock price from 399 pence at December 31, 2001 to 71 pence at December 31, 2002;
a $116.1 million increase in an admitted deferred tax asset;
a $94.8 million statutory loss from operations principally driven by the growth in our annuity business and the
acquisition of a block of variable annuity business from Valley Forge Life Insurance Company for which
acquisition costs are immediately expensed under statutory accounting rules;

e $73.1 million in unrealized losses on other equity securities;

o  $59.4 million in unrealized losses on venture capital partnership investments; and

e $49.1 million in net realized investment losses.

Effective December 31, 2002, Phoenix Life adopted Statutory Statement of Accounting Practices No. 10, Income
Taxes, or SSAP No. 10, for statutory accounting purposes. Prior to December 31, 2002, New York domiciled
insurance companies were precluded from recording deferred tax assets as admitted assets. Recently enacted
legislation provides for the admission of deferred tax assets as calculated under SSAP No. 10 effective
December 31, 2002, at which point Phoenix Life recorded a deferred tax asset to the extent that federal income
taxes paid in prior years were recoverable through loss carrybacks and to the extent that any additional deferred
tax assets were expected to be realized by December 31, 2003. Based upon the results through December 31,
2002, $53.1 million of the total admitted deferred tax asset was attributable to federal income taxes paid in prior
years available for recovery through net operating loss carrybacks.

Section 1322 of the New York Insurance Law requires that New York life insurers report their RBC. RBC is
based on a formula calculated by applying factors to various asset, premium and statutory reserve items. The
formula takes into account the risk characteristics of the insurer, including asset risk, insurance risk, interest rate
risk and business risk. Section 1322 gives the Superintendent explicit regulatory authority to require various
actions by, or take various actions against, insurers whose total adjusted capital does not exceed certain RBC
levels. As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, Phoenix Life's total adjusted capital was in excess of each of these
RBC levels. Each of the insurance subsidiaries of Phoenix Life is also subject to these same RBC requirements.
Each of the Life Subsidiaries’ RBC was in excess of 300% of Company Action Level (the level where a life
insurance enterprise must submit a comprehensive plan to state insurance regulators) as of December 31, 2002
and 2001.

See Note 15 to our consclidated financial statements regarding the Life Companies’ statutory financial
information and regulatory matters.

Net Capital Requirements

Our broker-dealer subsidiaries are each subject to the net capital requirements imposed on registered broker-
dealers by the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Each is also required to maintain a ratio of aggregate
indebtedness to net capital that does not exceed 15 to 1. The largest of these subsidiaries had net capital of
approximately $7.0 million. This amount exceeded the regulatory minimum of $0.9 million. The ratio of
aggregate indebtedness to net capital for that subsidiary was 2.0 to 1. The ratios of aggregate indebtedness to net
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capital for each of the other broker-dealer subsidiaries were also below the reguiatory ratio at December 31, 2002,
and their respective net capital each exceeded the applicable regulatory minimum.
Consolidated Cash Flows

The following table presents summary consolidated cash flow data for the years 2002, 2001 and 2000 (in
millions): :

2802 2001 2060
Cash from OPEratioNS........c...ovvveeevevererererereeiitst st eteseaeasae s et sesereresasasesasesesnss § 2837 $ 4441 $ 3751
Cash for discontinued OPerations............evevieeeiiieiiiieereere e eeee e 43.7) (75.1) (264.6)
Cash for inVesting aCHIVILIES. .....ccoceeeiieiereesrtrreieree e eern e ereee e (1,690.7) (1,927.5) (1.9)
Cash from investing activities of discontinued operations .............cococvererrnes. 43.7 77.5 2595
Cash from financing activities ..........veevvvrrerrierieieninie e seeeeseeiesee s 1,650.0 1,576.5 . 352

The decrease in cash provided from operations for 2002 compared to 2001 was primarily due to higher operating
expenses, principally policy acquisition costs, and slightly higher benefit payments, offset by lower cash used by
discontinued operations. The increase in net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations in 2001
over 2000 is primarily due to a reduction in income tax payments in 2001, refunds in 2001 of income taxes paid in
prior years, offset by higher non-recurring expenses due to the purchase of the PXP minority interest and lower
insurance and investment product fees. The increase in net cash used for operating activities of discontinued
operations for 2000 as compared to 2001 resulted primarily from the payment of cash settlements in 2000 associated
with the runoff of our group accident and health reinsurance block and from the remaining operating activities of our
discontinued operations.

The decrease in cash used for investing activities for 2002 compared to 2001 is due primarily to higher acquisition
costs of subsidiary purchases in 2001. The increase in net cash used for investing activities for 2001 was primarily
due to the IPO proceeds and a portion of the debt proceeds, offset by expenses related to purchase of the PXP
minority interest in January 2001. The increase in net cash provided by investing activities of discontinued
operations for 2000 as compared to 2001 was primarily due to proceeds from the sale of our group life and health
operations. :

The increase in cash from financing for 2002 compared to 2001 is due to proceeds from the equity units and stock
purchase contract transactions, plus increases in policyholder deposit fund receipts. This was offset by the proceeds
from our IPO and debt offering in 2001. The increase in net cash provided by financing activities in 2001 compared
to 2000 was due to our [PO and common stock issuance, our debt offering and an increase in policyholder deposit
funds.

Related Party Transactions
State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Company (State Farm) currently owns of record more than 5 percent of
our outstanding common stock. In 2002, our subsidiaries paid approximately $10.7 million, as compensation for

the sale of our insurance and annuity products, to entities which were either subsidiaries of State Farm or owned
by State Farm employees.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market Risk Exposures and Risk Management

We must effectively manage, measure and monitor the market risk generally associated with our insurance and
annuity business and, in particular, our commitment to fund insurance liabilities. We have developed an
integrated process for managing risk, which we conduct through our Corporate Portfolio Management
Department, Actuarial Department, Corporate Finance Department and additional specialists at the business
segment level. These groups confer with each other regularly. We have implemented comprehensive policies and
procedures at both the corporate and business segment level to minimize the effects of potential market volatility.

Market risk is the risk that we will incur losses due to adverse changes in market rates and prices. We have
exposure to market risk through both our insurance operations and our investment activities. Our primary market
risk exposure is to changes in interest rates, aithough we also have exposures to changes in equity prices and
foreign currency exchange rates. We also have credit risk in connection with our derivative contracts.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that we will incur economic losses due to adverse changes in interest rates. Our
exposure to interest rate changes primarily results from our commitment to fund interest-sensitive insurance
liabilities, as well as from our significant holdings of fixed rate investments. Cur insurance liabilities largely
comprise dividend-paying individual whole life and universal life policies and annuity contracts. Our fixed
maturity investments include U.S. and foreign government bonds, securities issued by government agencies,
corporate bonds, asset-backed securities, mortgage-backed securities and mortgage loans, most of which are
mainly exposed to changes in medium-term and long-term U.S. Treasury rates.

We manage interest rate risk as part of our asset/liability management process and product design procedures.
Asset/liability strategies include the segmentation of investments by product line and the construction of
investment portfolios designed to specifically satisfy the projected cash needs of the underlying product liability.
We manage the interest rate risk inherent in our assets relative to the interest rate risk inherent in our insurance
products. We identify potential interest rate risk in portfolio segments by modeling asset and product liability
durations and cash flows under current and projected interest rate scenarios.

One of the key measures we use to quantify this interest rate exposure is duration. Duration is one of the most
significant measurement tools in measuring the sensitivity of the fair value of assets and liabilities to changes in
interest rates. For example, if interest rates increase by 100 basis points, or 1%, the fair value of an asset with a
duration of five years is expected to decrease by 5%. We believe that as of December 31, 2002, our asset and
liability portfolio durations were well matched, especially for the largest segments of our balance sheet (i.e. whole
life and universal life). Since our insurance products have variable interest rates (which expose us to the risk of
interest rate fluctuations), we regularly undertake a sensitivity analysis that calculates liability durations under
various cash flow scenarios.

The selection of a 100 basis point immediate, parallel increase or decrease in interest rates is a hypothetical rate
scenario used to demonstrate potential risk. While a 100 basis point immediate, parallel increase or decrease does
not represent our view of future market changes, it is a reasonably possible hypothetical near-term change that
illustrates the potential impact of such events. Although these fair value measurements provide a representation
of interest rate sensitivity, they are based on our portfolio exposures at a point in time and may not be
representative of future market results. These exposures will change as a result of on-going portfolio transactions
in response to new business, management's assessment of changing market conditions and available investment
opportunities.
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To calculate duration, we project asset and liability cash flows and discount them to a net present value using a
risk-free market rate adjusted for credit quality, sector attributes, liquidity and any other relevant specific risks.
Duration is calculated by revaluing these cash flows at an alternative level of interest rates and by determining the
percentage change in fair value from the base case.

We also employ product design and pricing strategies to manage interest rate risk. Product design and pricing
strategies include the use of surrender charges or restrictions on withdrawals in some products.

The tables below show the interest rate sensitivity of our fixed income financial instruments measured in terms of
fair value as of December 31, 2002 (in millions). Given that our asset and liability portfolio durations were well
matched for the periods md1cated we would expect market value gains or losses in assets to be largely offset by
corresponding changes in liabilities.

-100 Basis +100 Basis
Carrying Pofmt Point
Value Change Fair Value Change
Cash and cash equivalents .........ccoeeeevireevieeeireieeesieas $ 1,058.5 $ 1,059.3 $ 1,058.5 $1,057.7
Available-for-sale debt SECUTItIES .....cvvevveeviriecniiie e 11,841.4 12,387.9 11,8414 11,311.7
Commercial MOTTZAZES ....ovvvreiveeeireicareereiareeniererneierresiaseesenes 468.8 505.5 488.2 471.4
TOUALS .ottt et et et $13,368.7 $13,952.7 $13,388.1 $12,840.8

We use derivative financial instruments, primarily interest rate swaps, to manage our residual exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates. We enter into derivative contracts only with highly rated financial institutions to
reduce counterparty credit risks and diversify counterparty exposure.

We enter into interest rate swap agreements to reduce market risks from changes in interest rates. We do not enter
into interest rate swap agreements for trading purposes. Under interest rate swap agreements, we exchange cash
flows with another party at specified intervals for a set length of time based on a specified notional principal
amount. Typically, one of the cash flow streams is based on a fixed interest rate set at the inception of the
contract and the other is based on a variable rate that periodically resets. Generally, no premium is paid to enter
into the contract and neither party makes payment of principal. The amounts to be received or paid on these swap
agreements are accrued and recognized in net investment income.

The tables below show the interest rate sensitivity of our interest rate derivatives measured in terms of fair value
as of December 31, 2002 (dollars in millions). These exposures will change as our insurance liabilities are
created and discharged and as a result of ongoing portfolio and risk management activities.

Weighted ~100 ‘ +160
Average Basis Basis
Notional Term Point Fair Point
Amount (Years) Change Value Change
Interest Tate SWaPS ..ovvvceveeeivreiireernrcrnnns § 540.0 11.4 .8 382 $§ 253 $ 125
Other....oooooiiccnrn e 135.0 5.0 1.3 ‘ 0.9 0.6
TORBES v $ 675.0 § 395 $ 262 $ 131

See Note 14 to our consolidated financial statements for more information on derivative instruments.
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Equity Risk

Equity risk is the risk that we will incur economic losses due to adverse changes in equity prices. Our exposure to
changes in equity prices primarily results from our commitment to fund our variable annuity and variable life
products, as well as from our holdings of common stocks, mutual funds and other equities. We manage our
insurance liability risks on an integrated basis with other risks through our liability and risk management and
capital and other asset allocation strategies. We also manage equity price risk through industry and issuer
diversification and asset allocation techniques. We held $391.2 million in equity securities on our balance sheet
as of December 31, 2002. A 10% decline or increase in the relevant equity price would have decreased or
increased, respectively, the value of these assets by approximately $39.1 million as of December 31, 2002.

Certain annuity products sold by our Life Companies contain guaranteed minimum death benefits. The
guaranteed minimum death benefit feature provides annuity contract holders with a guarantee that the benefit
received at death will be no less than a prescribed amount. This minimum amount is based on the net deposits
paid into the contract, the net deposits accumulated at a specified rate, the highest historical account value on a
contract anniversary, or more typically, the greatest of these values. To the extent that the guaranteed minimum
death benefit is higher than the current account value at the time of death, the company incurs a cost. This
typically results in an increase in annuity policy benefits in periods of declining financial markets and in periods
of stable financial markets following a decline. As of December 31, 2002, the difference between the guaranteed
minimum death benefit and the current account value (the “net amount at risk™) for all existing contracts was
$234.9 million, including $176.6 million related to our third quarter variable life and annuity business acquisition
from Valley Forge Life Insurance Company. '

The following analysis represents an estimated sensitivity of our deferred acquisition cost asset and guaranteed
minimum death benefit liability to equity market changes, based on their December 31, 2002 carrying values (in
millions):

-10% +10%
Equity Carrying Equity
Market Value Market
Deferred policy acquisition costs (variable annuities) § 2592 - § 2633 $ 266.0
Deferred policy acquisition costs (variable universal life) 308.2 309.6 309.8
Guaranteed minimum death benefit liability (variable annuities) 13.1 8.7 7.4

See Note 3 to our consolidated financial statements for more information regarding deferred policy acquisition
costs.

We sponsor defined benefit pension plans for our employees. For GAAP accounting purposes, we assumed an
8.5% long-term rate of return on plan assets in 2002 compared to 9% in 2001. To the extent there are deviations
in actual returns, there will be changes in our projected expense and funding requests. As of December 31, 2002,
the projected benefit obligation for our defined benefit plans were in excess of plan assets by $209.3 million. As
of December 31, 2002, we anticipated having minimum funding requirements of $132.0 million through 2007,
including $1.7 million in 2003 and $8.6 million in 2004. See Note 10 to our consolidated financial statements for
more information on our employee benefit plans.

Foreign Exchange Risks
Foreign exchange risk is the risk that we will incur economic losses due to adverse changes in foreign currency

exchange rates. Our functional currency is the U.S. dollar. Our exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates
against the U.S. dollar results from our holdings in non-U.S. dollar-denominated fixed maturity securities and
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equity securities and through our investments in foreign subsidiaries and affiliates. The principal currencies that
create foreign exchange rate risk for us are the British pound sterling, due to our investments in Aberdeen and
Lombard, and the Argentine Peso, due to our investment in EMCO. During the year ended December 31, 2002, -
we recorded a foreign currency translation adjustment gain of $17.7 million and a loss of $10.8 million in other
comprehensive income related to changes in valuation of the British pound sterling and Argentine peso,
respectively.

Item 8: Kimancial Statements and Supplementary Data
See Table of Contents.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

PART HI

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by Items 401 and 405 of Regulation S-K, except for Item 401 with respect to the
executive officers as disclosed below, is incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth in the
section of our definitive proxy statement (which will be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act
within 120 days after the close of its fiscal year) entitled “The Board of Directors,” under the following
subsections: “The Audit Committee,” “Compensation of Executive Officers,” “Compensation of Directors,”
“Compensation Committee Report,” and “Performance Graph”.

Set forth below is a description of the business positions during at least the past five years for the executive
officers of Phoenix:

ROBERT W, FIONDELLA, age 60', has been: Chairman of PNX since 2000 and of Phoenix Life since 1994;
Chief Executive Cfficer of PNX from 2000 until 2003 and of Phoenix Life from 1994 until 2003; President of
Phoenix Life from 1987 until 2000; Principal Operating Officer of Phoenix Life from 1992 and 1994; and Chief
Operating Officer of Phoenix Life from 1989 until 1992. Mr. Fiondella is also a Director of PXRE Group Ltd.
and Hilb, Rogal & Hamilton Company.

DONA D. YOUNG, age 49, has been: Chief Executive Officer of PNX and Phoenix Life since January 2003;
‘President and a Director of PNX since 2000 and Chief Operating Officer from 2001 until 2003; Director of
Phoenix Life since 1998, its President since 2000 and its Chief Operating Officer from 2001 until 2003; Executive
Vice President, Individual Insurance and General Counsel of Phoenix Life from 1994 until 2000; and Senior Vice
President and General Counsel of Phoenix Life from 1989 until 1994. Mrs. Young also serves as a
Director/Trustee of Phoenix Edge Series Fund and as a Director of Sonoco Products Company, Wachovia
Corporation and Foot Locker, Inc.

MICHAEL J. GILOTTI, age 55, has been: Executive Vice President of PNX and Phoenix Life since August 2002,
with responsibility for life, annuity and investment management distribution and marketing across all product
lines. He joined Phoenix Life in 1999 as a Vice President and became a Senior Vice President in 2000. From
1994 until 1999, Mr. Gilotti was director of bank and broker/dealer operations at Aetna Financial Services.

MICHAEL E. HAYLON, age 45, has been: Executive Vice President and Chief Investment Officer of PNX and
of Phoenix Life since July 2002. He also serves as President of Phoenix Investment Counsel, Inc., one of the
Company’s investment advisors and heads the Company’s Alternative Financial Products division. Mr. Haylon

' All ages are as of March 1, 2003.

72




was Executive Vice President, PXP, and President of Phoenix Mutual Counsel, Inc. from 1994 until 2002. He
joined Phoenix Life in 1990, as a Vice President, and became Senior Vice President in 1993.

BONNIE J. MALLEY, age 41, has been: Senior Vice President, Corporate Services, of PNX and of Phoenix Life
since August, 2002; Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting Cfficer from 2001 to 2002; and Vice President
and Chief Accounting Officer from 1995 until 2001.. Mrs. Malley joined Phoenix Life in 1985 as a corporate
auditor. J

TRACY L. RICH, age 51, has beén: Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Assistant Secretary of PNX
and Phoenix Life since 2002; Senior Vice President and General Counsel of PNX and Phoenix Life from 2000 to

2002; and Senior Vice President and Deputy General Counsel of Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Company
from 1996 until 2000.

COLEMAN D. ROSS, age 59, has been Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of PNX and
Phoenix Life since joining the companies in April 2002. From 2000 until March 2002, he was Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of Trenwick Group Ltd. Prior to then, he was a partner at
PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP, where he worked for 34 years.

SIMON Y. TAN, age 51, has been: Executive Vice President of PNX and Phoenix Life since 2000; and Senior
Vice President of Phoenix Life from 1994 until 2000. He joined Phoenix Life in 1982 as an actuarial associate.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a code of ethics that is applicable tc our principal executive officer, principal financial officer
and principal accounting officer, as well as to all other company employees. A copy of this code may be
reviewed on our web site at PhoenixWealthManagement.com, in the Investor Relations section of the web-site.
(This URL is intended to be an inactive textual reference only. It is not intended to be an active hyperlink to our
website. The information on the website, which might be accessible through a hyperlink resulting from this URL,
is not and is not to be part of this report and is not incorporated herein by reference). In the event we ever waive
compliance by our principal executive officer, principal financial officer or principal accounting officer with the
code, we will disclose the waiver on this website.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 402 of Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by reference to the information set
forth under the sections entitled: “Compensation of Executive Officers,” “Compensation of Directors,”
“Compensation Committee Report,” and “Performance Graph” of PNX’s definitive proxy statement, which will
be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or the Exchange Act, within 120
days after the close of its fiscal year.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The information required by Item 403 of Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by reference to the information set
forth under the section entitled “Ownership of Common Stock™ of PNX’s definitive proxy statement, which will
be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act within 120 days after the close of its fiscal year.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by Item 404 of Regulation S-K is incorporated herein by reference to the information set
forth under the section entitled “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” of PNX’s definitive proxy
statement, which will be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act within 120 days after the close
of its fiscal year.

73

]




Item 14. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disciosure Controls and Procedures. We have developed controls and procedures to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by us in reports we file or submit pursuant to the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the SEC. Based -
on their review within 90 days prior to the filing of this report, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer each concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures, as in effect on the date hereof, are effective,
both in design and operation, for achieving the foregoing purpose.

Changes in Internal Controls. During the calendar quarter ended on December 31, 2002, there were no significant
changes in our internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect these controls subsequent to the
date of their most recent evaluation, mciudmg any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses.

PART IV

item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K

(a) Documents filed as part of this Form 10-K.

i. Financial Statements. The financial statements listed in Part II of the Table of Contents to this Form 10-K

are filed as part of this Form 10-K.

2. Financial Statement Schedules. All financial statement schedules are omitted as they are not applicable or
the information is shown in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits. The exhibits filed as part of this Form 10-K are listed on the Exhibit Index immediately

preceding such exhibits and incorporated herein by reference.
(b The following reports on Form 8-K were filed during the last quarter covered by this Form 10-K:
o dated December 24, 2002, Item 9 — containing:
o anew $100 million 364-Day Unfunded Unsecured Senior Revolving Credit Facility.
e dated December 16, 2002, Item 7 - containing:

o Underwriting Agreement General Terms and Conditions, dated December 16, 2002, including the
Pricing Agreement, dated December 16, 2002 (equity units of PNX});

e Subordinated Indenture, dated as of December 20, 2002 between PNX and Sun Trust Bank as
Trustee;

e Supplemental Indenture No. 1, dated as of December 20, 2002, to the Subordinated Indenture
filed as Exhibit 4.1 hereto, between PNX and Sun Trust Bank as Trustee;

© Purchase Contract Agreement, dated as of December 20, 2002, between PNX and Sun Trust Bank

as Purchase Contract Agent;

o Pledge Agreement, dated as of December 20, 2002, by PNX and Sun Trust Bank as Collateral
Agent, Custodial Agent, Securities Intermediary and Purchase Contract Agent;

o Remarketing Agreement, dated December 20, 2002, by and among PNX, Morgan Stanley & Co.
Incorporated as Remarketing Agent, and Sun Trust Bank as Purchase Contract Agent.

e  Opinion of Debevoise & Plimpton.

‘o dated December 16, 2002, Items 5 and 7.— containing:
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e news release regarding the pricing of an offering of $150 million of equity units;

e news release regarding the closing of the offering of $150 million of equity units and actions to
lower annualized expenses.

e dated December 12, 2002, Item S — containing:

e lowered debt and financial strength ratings by Moody’s Investors Service, potential closed block
securitization and expense reductions.

s dated November 7, 2002, Items 7 and 9 — containing:

e third quarter 2002 results;

e the pricing of PNX’s offering of 3,150,000 stock purchase contracts to be settled in common
shares of HRH.

e dated September 30, 2002, Item 5 ; containing:

press release dated September 30, 2002;
Retirement and Transition Agreement between Robert W. Fiondella and PNX, September 27,
2002;

e Statement of Clarification and Intent between Car! T. Chadburn and PNX, dated August 30,
2002;

e (eneral Release by Carl T. Chadburn in favor of PNX dated August 29, 2002;

e Election Form for Carl T. Chadburn, dated August 29, 2002;
Deferred Compensation Agreement and Acceptance and Election Form for Carl T. Chadburn,
dated August 29, 2002;

e Statement of Clarification and Intent between Phillip R. McLoughlin and PNX, dated September
4,2002, »

o  General Release by Philip R. McLoughlin in favor of PNX, dated September 4, 2002;

o Election Form for Philip R. McLoughlin, dated September 3, 2002,

o Statement of Clarification and Intent between David W. Searfoss and PNX, dated September 5,
2002; ' :

o  General Release by David W. Searfoss in favor of PNX, dated September 5, 2002;

e Election Form for David W. Searfoss, dated August 29, 2002;

o Deferred Compensation Agreement Election Form for David W. Searfoss, dated August 29, 2002.

We make our periodic and current reports available, free of charge, on our website, at
PhoenixWealthManagement.com, in the Investor Relations section, as soon as reasonably practicable after the
material is electronically filed with, or furnished to, the SEC. (This URL is intended to be an inactive textual
reference only. It is not intended to be an active hyperlink to our website. The information on the website, which
might be accessible through a hyperlink resulting from this URL, is not and is not to be part of this report and is
not incorporated by reference).

75



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; the Registrant has
duly caused this report tc be signed on its behaif by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

THE PHOENIX COMPANIES, INC.
(Registrant)

Dated: March 14,2003 /s/Dona B. Young
Dona D. Young,
President, Chief Executive Officer,
and Chairman-elect

Dated: March 14, 2003 /s/Coleman D. Ross
Coleman D. Ross
Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below, dated
March 14, 2003, by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated.

/s/Sal H. Alfiero /s/iohn E. Haire

Sal H. Alfiero, Director John E. Haire, Director

/s/J. Carter Bacot /s/Jerry J. Jasinowski

J. Carter Bacot, Director Jerry J. Jasinowski, Director
/s/Peter C. Browning /s/Thomas S. Johnson

Peter C. Browning, Director Thomas S. Johnson, Director
/s/Arthur P. Byrne /s/John W. Johnstone

Arthur P. Byme, Director John W. Johnstone, Jr., Director
/s/Sanford Cloud /s/Marilyn E, LaMarche
Sanford Cloud, Ir., Director Marilyn E. LaMarche, Director
/s/Richard N, Cooper /s/Robert F. Vizza

Richard N. Cooper, Director Robert F. Vizza, Director
/s/Gordon J. Davis /s/Robert G. Wilson

Gordon J. Davis, Director Robert G. Wilson, Director
/s/Robert W. Fiondella /s/Dona D. Young

Robert W. Fiondella, Director Dona D. Young, Chairman-elect

{s/Ann M. Gray
Ann M. Gray, Director
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Certifications

Chief Executive Officer certification, pursuant to Section 302 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, of the Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 of The Phoenix Companies, Inc.

I, Dona D. Young, certify that:

1.

2.

Date: March 14, 2003

/sfDona D. Young

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of The Phoenix Companies, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements and other financial information included in this annual
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and have;

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90
days prior to the filing of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely effect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the
registrant’s auditors any material weakness in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have indicated in this annual report whether there were
significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls
subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to
significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Dona D. Young
President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman-elect

77




Chief Financial Officer certification, pursuant to Section 302 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, of the Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 of The Phoenix Companies, Inc.

I, Coleman D. Ross, certify that:
1. Thave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of The Phoenix Companies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements and other financial information included in this annual
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and have;

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90
days prior to the filing of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c) presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely effect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the
registrant’s auditors any material weakness in internal controls; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officer and T have indicated in this annual report whether there were
significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls
subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to
significant deficiencies and materlal weaknesses.

Date: March 14, 2003

/s/Coleman D. Ross
Coleman D. Ross
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
The Phoenix Companies, Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and the related consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in stockholders’ equity present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of The Phoenix Companies, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the Company) at December 31, 2002 and
2001, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management; our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for
goodwill and other intangible assets in 2002 and for venture capital partnerships, securitized financial instruments
and derivative instruments in 2001.

LLP

Hartford, Connecticut
February 5, 2003
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THE PHOENIX COMPANIES, INC,
Consolidated Balance Sheet
($ amounts in millions, except per share data)
December 31, 2002 and 2001

2002 2001
ASSETS:
Available-for-sale debt securities, at fair VAIUE .......ccoeivvieiireeeee et $11,841.4 $ 9,607.7
Equity securities, at fair VAIUE ..ot 391.2 290.9
Mortgage loans, at unpaid principal balances............ccovereiiireniii 468.8 535.8
Real estate, at lower Of COSt OF FAIF VAIUE ... ..vviiiciieieeiie et 69.6 83.1
Venture capital partnerships, at eqUity inl NEL @SSELS .....ccevvervrveveeeeriirirrere e reeseeeesnsieseesnonis 228.6 291.7
Affiliate equity and debt SECUTIHIES .......cvivviieiiiirerieii et bee e 187.4 330.6
Policy loans, at unpaid principal Balances ........cecceoriiennenininieresesreeree et sens 2,195.9 2,1722
Other IMVESIIMENLS ....eevtiieieitieis ettt eete et ee e st eit et et e et et es e sen e reesbeme et t bt ebesatesrnaneseeane e 338.9 292.9
TOtA] TVESTITIEIES ...ttt ee et e e et e et eeteesestae s e erareessabeseseaseesartreesstaseeeeansnesernnnaas 15,721.8 13,604.9
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENLS ......ccviveierisieecceeei ettt 1,058.5 815.5
Accrued iNVESIMENTE INCOITIE ..c.ivveeietirireesererieseeeeteeetarseeesbeaaeseessesees e eseetanaesseseasaeseseseerenne 192.3 203.1
Premiums, accounts and Notes reCeIVADIE........c.oivv et 194.9 147.8
Reinsurance recoverable Dalances .........coovveiereiiiiiiniinen e 224 213
Deferred policy aCqUISIHION COSIS.....ccvirietereririnietreriie st teiereneiete e s esetese s sesbesenenennn 1,234.1 1,123.7
Deferred INCOMIE tAXES ..c.eoviiiieriiiriiriiceritert ettt ettt bt sr et r e 41.4 1.8
Goodwill and other INtaN@IbIe ASSELS......co.viciiiiirireeiii et eec e eetre et rre e e seeeenes 762.0 858.6
Net assets of discoOntinued OPErAIONS ........ovcviieriviiiriieererete ettt erere s seeresresseresenseseseatens 20.8 20.8
Other general ACCOUNT BSSELS. ... iroeirireieeiiaererie e ctrasieaeiesaesresssessasseencasssasesasnesssessssseones 204.4 168.4
Separate account and INVEStMENt tTUSE @SSELS.....ccceviieeiirierienere it erese e s seenes 5,793.1 5,570.0
OB BSSRES ..ottt e e st e et tbe st e b A stbesenbeeabe s et e e rreentaeeabes $ 25,245.7 $ 22,535.9
LIABILITIES:
Policy liabilities and aCCTUALS .......cccevieeie it $ 12,680.0 $11,846.4
Policyholder deposit funds .........cooicuiiiiiiieii e 3,395.7 1,515.2
StOCK PUICHASE CONITACES .....eeiviiiiiriiecei it rtenie st ee et e e st et eebaan s ssse st aesraeseen reaanreereesens 147.2 --
INAEDEEANESS ...t et e s 644.3 599.3
Other general account liabilities .......c.oovicviviiiiiiiieieiee et s seeees 542.9 605.6
Separate account and investment trust Habilities ..........coveeveiviriinionieee e, 5,793.1 5,564.9
Total HEBAITILS ....ocoieiiiiie ittt et bbb bbb e e 23,203.2 20,131.4
MINORITY INTEREST:
Minority interest in net assets of subsidiaries ... 10.8 8.8
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Common stock, $.01 par value: 106,374,510 shares issued ........ccceiviveevcninineesnieienen 1.0 1.0
Additional paid-1n CAPItAl .........coveeeiieiie it eraae e rere e ba b ne et asba e enre s 24215 2,4104
Accumulated defiCit. ..o e (292.6) (30.8)
Accumulated other comprehensive INCOME ........cceiiiieireiiieriereeeiece e e 97.5 81.1
Treasury stock, at cost: 12,330,000 and 4,458,500 Shares.........cccccovemcrevececarinierncrnnens, (195.7) {66.0)
Total stockholBers” @QUILY ... e 2,831.7 2,395.7
Total lizbilities, minority interest and stockholders’ eguity ......ccoovvvvviiccciincnnne, $ 25,245.7 $ 22,535.9

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE PHOENIX COMPANIES, INC.
Consolidated Statement of Income and Comprehensive Income
($ amounts in millions, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

2002 2008 2900

REVENUES:
PLEMIUITIS .oveivirieeieciire it esa s s eresasbes e b s e a e st e a s bs e s b e e besnane $ 1,081.9 $ 1,127 $ 1,1474
Insurance and investment product fees........cvvviiieiiiiivcneicece e 563.4 546.4 631.0
Investment income, net of eXPENSeS.......cccevviriinennriinnrrereinee e 915.2 847.6 1,141.3
Net realized investment gains (I0SS€S) .....cevverrreerineeeniinerene e (107.6) (72.4) 89.2
TOLAL FEVEIMUES......cverieiiiiietrereeeieetene ettt s s st tasbeebeseaanseaereeebars 2,452.9 2,434.3 3,008.9
BENEFITS AND EXPENSES:
Policy benefits, excluding policyholder dividends........ccccooeerreriirennnene. 1,436.1 1,406.7 1,409.8
Policyholder dividends.........ccccociervecriiimennicenenirie e 401.8 400.1 378.0
Policy acquisition cost amOTtiZation..........ccccevevrerrererenriesunereeeereenennes 59.2 133.0 356.0
Intangible asset AMOTTZALON . .....c.ocvveireerree s reereeereee e sirere e eeresesreseesvens 32.3 494 36.9
Intangible asset IMPAIIMENTS . cviveivveeiriiere it e 66.3 -- --
INEEIESt EXPEINSE ...vviiiiiiieiiiriiiiresiie ettt st ettt et re st ereees 31.4 273 32.7
Demutualization eXPemSES......ccoiuimiiiciiiniciiniceciiereseseeenrce e 1.8 259 21.8
Other Operating EXPEINSES .......c.veeevererrereererrererserierietereseerereestsrereseesessenennens 583.9 628.1 604.5
Total benefits AN EXPEMSES ...ovviviriieiiicen e 2,613.0 2,670.5 2,839.7
Income (loss) from continuing operations "

before income taxes and minority iNLErest .......c.covvvverreirevcireninieeenn (160.1) (236.2) 169.2
Applicable income taxes (benefit)..........cocoviniiiin, (56.8) (106.1) 60.3
Income (loss) from continuing operations before minority interest ......... (103.3) (130.1) 108.9
Minority interest in net income of subsidiaries .........cccovveneceiivcneienenn. 12.4 7.2 14.1
Income (loss) from continuing OPerations ......cevverineieereiiec e (115.7) (137.3) 94.8
Income from discontinued OPErations .........cc.veeeeercimseenieernesienreieseeneneene - -- 9.4
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations..........cc.coeirveceminnieenarennes -- -- (20.9)
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting changes ........... (1187 (137.3) 83.3
Cumulative effect of accounting changes:
Goodwill and other intangible aSSeLS........ccevevirirrrrererrnrrerreeienrircrienees (130.3) - -
Venture capital partnerships........coeevcvrerririentrereniesnesreneseeresese oo ene - (48.8) --
Securitized financial INSIUMENTS ........cocverrieieeirerrercee e -- (20.5) --
Derivative INSITUMENES ......ooviciiriireiiie et teresseserereeseesessesaecssenssesensens -- 3.9 --
Net ineome (I0SS) ..ot $  (246.0) s (2027 $ 83.3
BASIC AND BILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE:
Income (loss) from continuing OPETatioNS..........ocvcrverinenearscerercercsensnans $ (1.18) $ (1.31) $ 091
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting changes................ $  (1.18) $ (13D $ 0.80
NEt iNCOME (J0S8) vrvevvireriiriiiteiriie ettt et e ne 3 (2.51) § (199 $ 0.80
Weighted average common shares outstanding (in thousands)................ 97,854 104,578 104,578
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:
Net INCOIME (JOSS)....ciiireiiiii e et $  (246.9) $  (202.7) $ 83.3
Net unrealized investment gains (10SS€8) ......cevvecervcrininencvenirieiiinene 29.2 65.9 (1.3)
Net unrealized derivative inStruments gains. ..........o.ecocverimuniisosncsnnnins 34 5.0 --
Net unrealized foreign currency translation adjustment...............ccoevenee 1.2 (1.7) (4.6)
Minimum pension liability adjustment.............ccovrvnvccnnnioeceiicenen 17.4) 8.3 1.6
Other comprehensive income (108S).....ccvnes ettt bt 16.4 60.9 4.3)
Comprehensive INCoOme (I0SS) .......cccovrervcriicin i $ (229.6) $  (141.8) $ 79.6

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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The Phoenix Companies, Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
($ amounts in millions)
Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000

2002 2001 2000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Income (loss) from continuing OPerations..........c.eceiecerrererevererrersesesssarernennes $ (115.7) $ (137.3) $ 948
Net realized investment (gains) 10SS6S .......oovvvvvrievinrenriecriercrreecieeeans 107.6 72.4 (89.2)
Amortization and Aepreciation ........cueevivvrerernnierimsreereseerereeeeseseeesesann 122.4 70.2 56.8
Investment 108S (INCOMEY ...vevvierireiriirieieeereirre e sere e seesie ettt sres e s 67.2 974 (297.7)
Securitized financial instruments and derivatives ........cocvvemvcnnervncinnnens -- 16.6 -
Deferred income taxes (BeNefit) ......ccoeviieiiiriiveiriieeessr e enennees 42.9) 39.3) (37.0)
INCrease in reCeiVables ........cccoovivieenire s e (48.1) {5.3) (54.0)
Deferred policy acquisition costs {(increase) deCrease.......oovervvereererererinnes (206.4) (76.2) 183.2
(Increase) decrease in policy liabilities and accruals..........ccvvevverereicccrirnene. 473.4 469.1 472.8
Other assets and other liabilities net change.........ccocoevenvnnivciarieinnnn (74.3) (23.5) 45.4
Cash from continuing OPerations ........ec.eevereerievrecurorerenseeraesescrisreesessnasesenss 283.7 444.1 3751
Discontinued Operations, NEL........covcrrvreiiririsieirconemeereenassrrisseseecseoreneses v (43.7) (75.1) (264.6)
Cash from operating aCHVIEIES ......ocvevvv v v e e 240.0 369.6 118.5
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
INVESTMENT PUICHASES..c.eeviiriiiiitiiictirie sttt ettt st e s aeene (4,857.5) (3,822.0) (2,110.2)
Investment sales, repayments and mMaturities.......ocveriverreeereii e 3,418.6 2,284.8 2,154.4
SUbSIAIArY PUICNASES .1ivciviciiiriievieserreeescae s aieseeerentaeeestersreneeeaeeeseecremsesenssens (136.1) (373.7) (59.3)
SUbSIAIATY SAIES ....o.veviveiriiieerirs et era s -- - 14.1
Premises and equipment aQdifiONS..........coveeeevicevenriecnsinneiioniesersessessesenreseess (15.7) (16.6) (21.5)
Premises and equipment diSPOSIHIONS ........iveveeereecrrerierieriersneeneseseerererererenees - -- 20.6
Discontinued Operations, NEt ...........ccuviceiirercreirrientenieesreresessreneeseseereseene 43.7 77.5 259.5
Cash (for) from investing actiVIEEs .........ccoceveeveviccrn e (1,647.0) {1,850.6) 257.6
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Policyholder deposit fund receipts, Net .....o..ovceevecereerecinereniemseneernsensnens 1,649.6 689.8 140.2
Stock purchase CONTACts PrOCEEAS .......coeeeververreerueriirrerieenrenaeserseeeesaessensene 133.9 -- --
Equity UNIt PrOCEEEAS . ... ceuireieeeeie ittt sttt s be s e se e e e sesoaes 149.1 -~ --
Other indebtedness Pproceeds .........coveoreviiirieeini e e -- 479.5 50.0
Indebtedness rEPAYMENLS ........cccovrrrirrirmiesirirriereiroreenrsriaceresessessesssesssssssence (125.1) (324.7) (152.4)
CommOon StOCK ISSUANCE ..e.cvevrerrererrireiererieerieserreesessseseresertosasesasseserenenas -- 831.0 --
Common 5tock TePUIChases .........coeoieninniiiiic e (131.1) (64.6) -
Payments to policyholders in demutualization ...........co.coccevreeverieniernnnnenns -- (28.7) -
Common stock dividends paid ... (15.8) - =
Minority interest diStributions...........oooeecovreeeiiececrecrccscens (10.6) 5.8 5.8
Other financing aCtiVIties, NEL ......cvvcivervecivireereerernnneessessreesrereseressessanas -- -- 3.2
Cash from financing aCtivIHES ... 1,650.0 £,576.5 35.2
Change in cash and cash equivalents..............n, 243.0 95.5 403.3
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of Year........cccuveoniersinicnsnveninnnnns 815.5 720.0 316.7
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year.........ovvvvicininineencn, $1,058.5 $ 8155 $ 720.6

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE PROENIX COMPANIES, INC,

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity
($ amourits in millions, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2660

COMMON STOCK AND ADDITIONAL PATD-IN CAPITAL:
Transfer from retained earnings for common shares

issued in demutualization (56,178,610 shares)
Common shares issued in initial public offering

(50,195,900 ShATeS).....cvvieveririreieeee et et
Restricted stock units awarded
Income tax DENefit.........coeeoviciivrinriie et
Present value of future contract adjustment

PAYMENtS ON EQUILY UNITS ..oueovrivirieireveriierersneseesceresesreesensenessessenesesneneees

RETAINED EARNINGS (ACCUMULATED DEFICIT):

Net inCOmME (L0SS)...covvreririrrieerinrir e s en e e nenes
Common stock dividends declared ($0.16 per share) ......ccocvevvecinennen.
Transfer to common stock and additional paid-in capital

for common shares issued in demutualization

Policyholder cash payments and policy credits
Equity adjustment for policyholder dividend obligation, net ..................
Other equity adjuStments .............eeoiiirenerr e e

ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:
Other comprehensive income (10SS) ....vvevvieiiiie e,

TREASURY STOCK:
Common shares acquired (7,871,500 and 4,458,500 shares)...................
Change in stoCkhoIAers’ eQUILY .......ccoevvreeeerrrreeereries e sneesns s
Stockholders’ equity, beginning of year..........ccoecvvvimnenen e
Stockholders’ equity, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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2002 2001 2000
s - $ 1,580.4 $ -
- 831.0 -
8.0 -
5.9 - -
(2.8) - -
(246.0) (202.7) 83.3
(15.8) - -
- (1,580.4) -
(41.5)
- (30.3) -
- 34 59
16.4 60.9 43)
(129.7) (66.0) -
(364.0) 554.8 84.9
2,395.7 1,840.9 1,756.0
$ 2,031.7 $ 2,395.7 $ 1,840.9




THE PHOENIX COMPANIES, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
($ amounts in millions, except per share and per unit data)
Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2601 and 2040

1. Organization and Operations

Our consolidated financial statements include The Phoenix Companies, Inc. and its subsidiaries. The Phoenix
Companies, Inc. is a holding company and our operations are conducted through subsidiaries, the principal ones
of which are Phoenix Life Insurance Company (Phoenix Life) and Phoenix Investment Partners, Ltd. (PXP).
Significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidating these financial
statements. Also, we have reclassified amounts for 2001 and 2000 to conform with 2002 presentations.

We have prepared these financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP). In preparing these financial statements in conformity with GAAP, we are required to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at reporting dates and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results will differ from these estimates
and assumptions, We employ significant estimates and assumptions in the determination of deferred policy
acquisition costs; policyholder liabilities and accruals; the valuation of goodwill and other intangible assets,
investments in debt and equity securities, venture capital partnerships and affiliates; pension and other
postemployment benefits liabilities and accruals for contingent liabilities. Significant accounting policies are
presented throughout the notes in italicized type.

In December 1999, we began the process of recrganizing and demutualizing our then principal operating
company, Phoenix Home Life Mutual Insurance Company (Phoenix Home Life). We completed the process in
June 2001, when all policyholder membership interests in the mutual company were extinguished and eligible
policyholders of the mutual company received 56,178,610 shares of common stock, $28.8 of cash and $12.7 of
policy credits as compensation. Phoenix’s retained earnings immediately following the demutualization (net of
cash payments and policy credits that were charged directly to retained earnings) were reclassified to common
stock and additional paid-in capital valued at $1,580.4. To protect the future dividends of these policyhoiders, we
alsc established a closed block for their existing policies, which we describe in Note 7. Concurrent with the
demutualization conversion, we sold common stock of The Phoenix Companies, Inc. to the public and received
net proceeds of $831.0.

Accounting changes

At the beginning of 2002, we adopted a new accounting standard for goodwill and other intangible assets and
recorded the cumulative effect of the adoption as a charge to earnings. We describe the adoption of this standard
further in Note 4. At the beginning of 2001, we adopted a new accounting standard for derivative instruments and
recorded the cumulative effect of the adoption as a credit to both earnings and other comprehensive income. We
describe the adoption further in Note 14. Also at the beginning of 2001, we changed cur accounting for venture
capital partnerships to remove the lag in reporting their operating results and recorded the effect of this change as
a charge to earnings. Additionally, in the beginning of the second quarter of 2001, we adopted a new accounting
pronouncement for securitized financial instruments and recorded the cumulative effect of the adoption as a
charge to earnings. We describe these changes further in Note 5.

Unaudited pro forma information on income (loss) from continuing operations for the years 2001 and 2000
assuming retroactive application of the accounting changes for goodwill and other intangibles assets and venture
capital partnerships follows:




2001 2006

Pro forma Actual Pro forma Actual
Income (loss) from continuing operations................... § 8y $ (1373) $  (92.6) $ 94.8
Income (loss) from continuing operations
per share (basic and diluted) ...........cccooervecreniinnn. § (1.13) $  (1.31) $ (089 $ 0.91

At year-end 2002, there are newly issued accounting pronouncements that may affect our future accounting for
variable interest entities included in our consolidated financial statements (Note 8) and stock-based compensation
(Note 10). We describe these pending pronouncements within the notes to which they pertain.

Business combinations

In 2002, we acquired a majority interest in an investment management firm; in 2001, we acquired the minority
interest in PXP, and, majority interests in two other investment management firms. Additional information on
these acquisitions is included in Note 4. Had these acquisitions been completed at the beginning of 2000, our
operating results would have differed. Selected operating information on an unaudited pro forma and an actual
basis for the years 2002, 2001 and 2000 follows:

2002 2001 2000
Pro forma Actual Pro forma Actual Pro forma Actual

REVENUES...c.ieveeiiieenie e, $ 24529 $24529 § 24728 $ 24343 $3,0423 3 3,0089
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ (1157) $§ (1157) $ (1379) $ (1373) § 664 $ 948
Income (loss) from continuing operations

per share (basic and diluted)................ $ (1L18) $ ($1.18) $ (132) $ (13) $ 063 $ 091

2. Business Segments

We provide wealth management products and services through a variety of select advisors and financial services
firms to serve the accumulation, preservation and transfer needs of the affluent and high-net-worth market,
businesses and institutions. To serve our target market, we offer a broad range of solutions through a variety of
distributors. These products and services are managed within two operating segments - Life and Annuity and
Investment Management. We report our remaining activities in two non-operating segments - Venture Capital
and Corporate and Other. :

The Life and Annuity segment includes individual life insurance and annuity products including participating
whole life, universal life, variable life, term life and annuities. The Investment Management segment includes
private client and institutional investment management and distribution, including managed accounts, open-end
mutual funds and closed-end funds. We provide more information on these operating segments in Notes 3 and 4,
respectively.

The Venture Capital segment includes our equity share in the operating income and the realized and unrealized
investment gains of our venture capital partnership investments residing in the general account of Phoenix Life.
We provide more information on this segment in Note 5. The Corporate and Other segment includes all interest
expense, as well as several smaller subsidiaries and investment activities which do not meet the thresholds of
reportable segments. These include international operations and the run-off of our group pension and guaranteed
investment contract businesses.
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While revenues derived from outside of the United States are not material to our financial statements, we have
international investments, the principal ones of which are located in the United Kingdom (Aberdeen Asset
Management PLC, 21.8% owned, Notes 4 and 5) and Luxembourg (Lombard Insurance, 12% owned). OCther
international investments are in Argentina, Brazil, India, Japan and New Zealand. We have recorded cumulative
foreign currency translation gains of $9.8, related to the British pound, and losses of §10.8, related principally to
the Argentine peso, which are included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income at year-end
2002 (Note 11).

We evaluate segment performance on the basis of segment operating income. Realized investment gains and
some non-recurring items are excluded because we do not consider them when evaluating the financial
performance of the segments. The size and timing of realized investment gains are often subject to our discretion.
The non-recurring items are removed from segment after-tax operating income if, in our opinion, they are not
indicative of overall operating trends. While some of these items may be significant components of net income,
we believe that segment operating income is an appropriate measure that represents the earnings attributable to the
ongoing operations of the business.

The criteria used to identify a non-recurring item and to determine whether to exclude it from segment operating
income include: whether the item is infrequent and is material to the segment’s operating income; if it results
from a business restructuring, from a change in the regulatory environment, or relates to other unusual
circumstances (e.g., litigation). We include information on non-recurring items allocated to our operating
segments in their respective notes for information only. Non-recurring items excluded from segment operating
income may vary from period to period. Because these items are excluded based on our discretion,
inconsistencies in the application of our selection criteria may exist. Segment operating income is not a substitute
for net income determined in accordance with GAAP and may be different from similarly titled measures of other
companies.

We allocate indebtedness and related interest expense to our Corporate and Other segment. We allocate capital to
our Life and Annuity segment based on risk-based capital (RBC) for our insurance products. We used 300% of
RBC levels for 2002 and 250% of RBC prior thereto. Capital within our life insurance companies that is
unallocated is included in our Corporate and Other segment. We allocate capital to our Investment Management
segment on the basis of the historical capital within that segment. We allocate net investment income based on
the assets allocated to the segments. We allocate certain costs and expenses to the segments based on a review of
the nature of the costs, time studies and other methodologies.” Segment information on assets, revenues and
operating income (loss) follows:

2002 2901
Life and ARNUILY ..ot et $21,533.7 $19,061.6
Investment Management ............ccooiiniiiiiiii it et 1,027.9 1,168.5
Operaling SEZMEDE ASSEIS .....cooviviiriiriieiietrr ettt r sttt eeaearancn 22,561.6 20,230.1
Venture Capital......c.ooiveiiiriniii ettt ettt aa bbbt r b s 227.8 291.7
Corporate and OthEr ... et eres e 24355 1,993.3
TOta) SEBIMIEIE BSSELS ....ecvvevecieereireaeeeeiteoaesreetaesteeerirsssseateassasterateesreassessesssansesassessssseesssesnns 25,224.9 22,515.1
Net assets of discortinued operations (NOtE 13).....ccorverirnirriniiniiennrneercsree s sesesens 20.8 20.8
Total aSSets ...oovverrire v DO O PSSO $25,245.7 $22,535.9
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2002 2001 2000
Life and ANNUILY c.vvvveveieiiiiciiie sttt sa b s eneaeeveens $2,345.7 $ 23074 $2,241.5
Investment Management........c...coocvrirverrirenininneniceee e s 269.0 268.2 336.7
Elimination of inter-segment reVeNUES. .....ccooccririciricceccre s re e (16.2) (23.1) _(18.0)
Operating SeZMent FEVEIMUES.........ccovvrururrierirreaerraasesesiesesssasssssseaseasases 2.598.5 . 2,552.5 2,560.2
Venture Capital......ioeocoiirceeiiiirr st er e en b s (59.3) (84.5) 277.3
Corporate and Other ..........c.icvieeiieir e et 20.9 349 77.6
Total SeZMENt FEVEIIES ..c..ecovieirerrrireeeeiesnrereneesrreeeseecreerrecnseesrveennresenns 2,560.1 2,502.9 2,915.1
Net realized investment gains (10SSES)....ccovivivereeeiniiiieeriiee e (107.6) (72.4) 89.2
Other NON-recurring reVeNUE ItEIMS .........ovuiirievieeriereecerereer e aresaeaeresrestens 04 3.8 4.6
Total revenues.................. et ereoie et ere ettt et e e e ettt et ratenereestbenn S 2,452.9 S 2,434.3 $ 3,008.9
Life and ANNUILY .....ccovviiveieii ettt era e eae st sab e - % 787 $ 795 $ 204
Investment Management...........cccoovioviiiiiicceiirinnecese e . (60.0) 0.2) 71.0
Operating segment pre-tax operating Mesme .....oooovevvecieeccnecen, 18.7 79.3 ‘914
Venture Capital.........ccooviieiiieeiiiniinne ettt eas e ‘ (59.3) (84.5) - 277.3
Corporate and Other .........ccoc it e -(49.8) (43.2) - (70.4)
Total segment pre-tax operating income (I088) ...ccoovvveiiveicicinicrennn, {90.4) (48.4) 298.3
Applicable income tax expense (benefit).......co..vveevviienncviinciireneeeenn, {28.7) (20.0) 99.1
Total segment operating ineome (JOSS) ..o (61.7) (28.4) 199.2
Net realized investment gaing (10SSES).....cvveverirericriiiinireseneerireneeee v, (39.3) (43.0) 62.0
Other non-recurring (I0SSES) ..ouv.vevvcvieieeree et eet et e e (14.7) (65.9) (166.4)
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting changes.............. $ (1157 $ (137.3) $ 948
Significant components of Corporate and Cther segment pre-tax operating loss follow: -
2002 2001 2000
Interest eXpense (INOE 0] .......ovveeiiiiviireeeee e sr e se e e $ (314 $ (27.3) § (32.7)
Other expenses, Net..........c..o.ccuevreene. JEOU et {(18.4) (15.9) 37.7)
Corporate and Other segment pre-tax operating loss...........ccooeeeurnn, $ (49.8) $ (43.2) $ (70.4)
Other non-recurring gains (losses), after income taxes, by segment follow:
2002 2001 2600 .
Life and Annuity (NOE 3) cuoviviiieiiiee e $ 151 $ - $ (141.8)
Investment Management (NOLE 4) ...c.cviiiiriieriiniienn e &4 (50.4) 0.1)
Corporate and Other: ‘
Management restructuring charges, net of income taxes (Note 10}.......... (20.1) -- -
Early retirement, net of income taxes (Note 10).......cccocvvieererirerenrinennnes -- (15.5) --
Pension adjustment, net of income taxes (Note 10)........ rerreee s - 2.9 -
Demutualization expense, net of income taxes (NOte€ 7) coooevreveeererenineens . (1.3) (23.9) (14.1)
Mutual life insurance company equity tax (NOte 9) vo.oovvveverevevreirevenienanas _ - 21.0 (10.4)
NOR-TECUTTINE LOSSES .......ovovvoeererieiieeesies e e eeie s T S $ (4.7 $ (65.9) $ (166.4)

3. Life and Annuity Segment

The Life and Annuity segment includes individual life insurance and annuity producté, including universal life,
variable life, term life and fixed and variable annuities. It also includes the results of our closed block, which
consists primarily of participating whole life products. Segment information on financial position and results of

operations follows:
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2002 2001

Financial Position

TEIVESTITIENITS ...ttt e eese et emeete et eeb et eresasesbeseetbaseses et et be st enbaetesassesbassessedsesrn et enaeananessnane $14,480.0 $12,478.0
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENTS .........ccoveriiieicriinerencie e et st 924.0 392.1
RECEIVADIES ... ittt ettt et se et e aenr e e s b s sre e ab s seb e b sab e e sbaens 2364 80.6
Deferred policy aCqUISIHION COSES.....viiiimiriiiniiieiiii et s 1,234.1 1,123.7
Deferred INCOME TAXES ...vouvereriiieireiterreete st rbe et b sttt e st sb e s r ke s n et bt st sa st besbe e s b rens 328.2 103.2
Goodwill and other INtangIbIe ASSEIS ... c.ciiieriirrcrerieereierereenie e rees e e seeseets et aeseresreseesresresre s 6.8 7.1
Other general CCOUNE SSELS......icuieririirteieeteii ettt ettt ettt sb e st sae s b st s snsere s 192.5 107.3
SEPATALE ACCOUILS ...ecvviiriiereiiieeetiirie bt sttt s ebe s ea s s eae s es e be et ars e b eaaeseesae s bsanesbans 4,131.7 4,769.6
TOAL SEEIMENT ASSELS ..vvevvvtisrreerceret e ieecet ettt e erab bbbttt s bbb e 21,533.7 19,061.6
Policy liabilities and aCCIUALS .........cciriiiiiieee e 12,695.6 11,853.1
Policyholder deposit fUNAS ........covceiiiiin it 3,2379 1,351.8
Other general account HabHItIES ........ccvecirieieerireiee sttt s 171.0 247.7
SEPATALE ACCOUINLS 1.e.vereeeriiiiriieriiies et et e s e st sr s ss s e e s s abe s e st sbenae st sb e stb e e s aesenesenes 4,131.7 4,764.5
IMITIOTILY IIEETESE ..eeeiieieri ettt eite et sttt b et e e ss et secabe s rbese st b s b et s ne e sabessseaeensesesassai e 1.6 1.0
Total segment liabilities and MINOTILY INTETESt.......civiieerrriie et 20,237.8 - 18,218.1
SEEMEMT TEE BISELS 1.vveverriereeietiterecrerieser et siss s eeseseesebe s bebs st aresese s st nesbsre b b eb oo sssbersasnnenas $ 1,295.9 $ 8435
2002 2001 2000

Results of Operations

PLEIMIIUITIS 1. vttt seeereeereteeeeeseeeatse st serestenseereeneeasastsesestssrasssensersesesssssnerssrssrens $ 1,081.9 $ 1,112.7 $ 1,147.4
Insurance and investment product fees.........occoveiivicrie e 316.2 303.8 302.7
Net invVeStmEnt INCOIMIE ........viueceerreeteriere sttt sttt st sre e saas 947.6 890.9 791.4
Total SeGMENT FEVERBES ......c.orvivvererrerriiearinretiaiasreensnaresesesscaraaessasasssseneras 2,345.7 2,307.4 2,241.5
Policy benefits, including policyholder dividends..........ccccoceneincrninnnnne. 1,867.6 1,812.6 1,775.8
Policy acquisition COSt @MOITIZatION .......euerrrrrreereireerienniineseese s 88.5 122.5 148.5
Intangible asset amMOTtIZATION .....ccccovvirieiiiiiireie e -- 04 0.9
Other Operating EXPENSES. .....c.c.corviiieririernrierentriersererirorsesesesssesseresseeesnnns 3103 292.1 295.9
Total segment benefits and eXPEMSeS......cuovvviervririerirrieiiiiiieencereneiiica 2,266.4 2,227.6 2,221.1
Segment operating income before income taxes and minority interest ........ 79:3 79.8 204
Allocated INCOME LAXES ....cvviveirieeriiie ettt be e sbne e 27.7 279 7.2
Segment operating income before minority interest.........coocovvvceviciivennnnn. 51.6 519 13.2
Minority interest in segment Operating iNCOME ......c.covvvevvereriinrecrenineninnens 0.6 0.3 --
Segment OPErating MEOME .. .cooveviicerrircrrierrirnee e seererer e eeserenene $ 518 $ Sis $ 132

Premium and fee revenue and related expenses

We recognize life insurance premiums, other than premiums for universal life and certain annuity contracts, as
premium revenue pro rata over the related contract periods. We match benefits, losses and related expenses with
premiums over the related contract periods. Revenues for universal life products consist of net investment income
and mortality, administration and surrender charges assessed against the fund values during the period. Related
benefit expenses include universal life benefit claims in excess of fund values and net investment income credited
to universal life fund values.

Reimsuramnce

We use reinsurance agreements to provide for greater diversification of business, allow us to control exposure to
potential losses arising from large risks and provide additional capacity for growth.

We recognize assets and liabilities related to reinsurance ceded contracts on a gross basis. The cost of

reinsurance related to long-duration contracts is accounted for over the life of the underlying reinsured policies
using assumptions consistent with those used to account for the underlying policies.
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We remain liable to the extent that reinsuring companies may not be able to meet their obligations under
reinsurance agreements in effect. Failure of the reinsurers to honor their obligations could result in losses to us;
consequently, estimates are established for amounts deemed or estimated to be uncollectible. To minimize our
exposure to significant losses from reinsurance insolvencies, we evaluate the financial condition of our reinsurers
and monitor concentration of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions, activities, or economic
characteristics of the reinsurers. -

Our reinsurance program varies based on the type of risk, for example:

e On direct policies, the maximum of individual life insurance retained by us on any one life is $10 for
single life and joint first-to-die policies and $12 for joint last-to-die policies, with excess amounts ceded
to reinsurers.

e We reinsure 80% of the mortality risk on the in-force block of the Confederation Life business we
acquired in December 1997.

e We entered into two separate reinsurance agreements in October 1998 and July 1999 to reinsure 80% of
the mortality risk on a substantial portion of our otherwise retained individual life insurance business.

e  We reinsure 80% to 90% of the mortality risk on certain new issues of term, universal life, variable
universal life and whole life products.

e We assume and cede business related to the group accident and health block in run-off. While we are not
writing any new contracts, we are contractually obligated to assume and cede premiums related to
existing contracts.

Additional information on direct business written and reinsurance assumed and ceded for continuing operations
for the years 2002, 2001 and 2000 follows:

2002 2001 2000
Direct premiums ......o.eeeverereerieennne e rer et e et b ettt eer e st earere st s re et ranes $ 1,1374 $ 1,176.3 $ 1,1896
Premiums assumed from reinsureds ......... et eereeeereebesreetaaresreebe st e e nraene 16.9 0.6 26.7
Premiums ceded £0 FEINSUIELS........ocvoieciiiiiiniiiii s (72.4) (64.2) (68.9)
PrEMITEITILS ....ovovvcviaiieiereeencoiereereasies ettt se st cesaen e e e rsbesae b nbn s nesebeas $ 1,081.9 $ 1,112.7 $ 1,147.4
Percentage of amount assumed to net premiums.......c.cociveverncesroreecerernnens 1.6% 0.1% 2.3%
Direct policy benefits inCUITed .......o..coceerrnreriecrninene e $ 4209 $ 3857 $ 3736
Policy benefits assumed from reinsureds...........ccooveeeriiiinnniiennncinnnns 21.2 20.9 14.7
Policy benefits ceded to IeinSUrers .......coocoveveiiiccniiiieriie e, (50.7) (55.2) 27.7)
Policy Bemeflts ..o $ 3914 $§ 3514 $ 360.6
Direct life InSUrance in-force ........ccouvvirmreiiecrrnesieeienresesseessesersesvessresnnes $112,842.8 $105,517.9 $100,086.1
Life insurance in-force assumed from reinsureds............... et 4409 28.1 1,562.9
Life insurance in-force ceded to reinsurers...........cccooviveconiiiicncccniccnns e (74,265.8) (69,127.0) (64,354.3)
Life insurance MM-TOrCE . ..oovveiee it eerre e s s eneee s $ 39.017.9 $ 36,419.0 $ 37,294.7
Percentage of amount assumed to net insurance in-force............coevveecenen. 1.1% 0.1% 4.2%

Irrevocable letters of credit aggregating $40.6 at year-end 2002 have been arranged with commercial banks in
favor of us to collateralize the ceded reserves.

Valley Forge Life Insurance

On July 23, 2002, we acquired the variable life and variable annuity business of Valley Forge Life Insurance
Company (a subsidiary of CNA Financial Corporation), effective July 1, 2002. The business acquired had a total
account value of $557.0 at June 30, 2002. This transaction was effected through a combination of coinsurance
and modified coinsurance. The business acquired generated a loss of $17.2 ($11.2 after income taxes) for the year
2002.




Deferred policy acquisition costs

The costs of acquiring new business, principally commissions, underwriting, distribution and policy issue
expenses, all of which vary with and are primarily related to production of new business, are deferred. In
connection with the 1997 acquisition of the Confederation Life business, we recognized an asset for the present
value of future profits (PVFP) representing the present value of estimated net cash flows embedded in the existing
contracts acquired. This asset is included in deferred acquisition costs (DAC).

We amortize DAC and PVFP based on the related policy’s classification. For individual participating life
insurance policies, DAC and PVFP are amortized in proportion to estimated gross margins. For universal life,
variable universal life and accumulation annuities, DAC and PVFP are amortized in proportion to estimated
gross profits. Policies may be surrendered for value or exchanged for a different one of our products (internal
replacement); the DAC balance associated with the replaced or surrendered policies is amortized to reflect these
surrenders.

The amortization process requires the use of various assumptions, estimates and judgments about the future. The
primary assumptions are expenses, investment performance, mortality and contract cancellations (i.e., lapses,
withdrawals and surrenders). These assumptions are reviewed on a regular basis and are generally based on our
past experience, industry studies, regulatory requirements and judgments about the future. Changes in estimated
gross margins and gross profits based on actual experiences are reflected as an adjustment to total amortization
to date resulting in a charge or credit to earnings. Finally, analyses are performed periodically to assess whether
there are sufficient gross margins or gross profits to amortize the remaining DAC balances.

In the first quarter of 2002, we revised the mortality assumptions used in the development of estimated gross
margins for the traditional participating block of business to reflect favorable experience. This revision resulted
in a non-recurring decrease in deferred policy acquisition cost amortization of $22.1 ($14.4 after income taxes).
In the third quarter of 2002, we revised the long-term market return assumption for the variable annuity block of
business from 8% to 7%. In addition, at the quarter-end we recorded an impairment charge related to the
recoverability of our deferred acquisition cost asset related to the variable annuity business. The revision in long-
term market return assumption and the impairment charge resulted in a $13.5 pre-tax ($8.8 after income taxes)
increase in policy acquisition cost amortization expense in the third quarter of 2002. '

In the fourth quarter of 20600, we reallocated assets supporting our participating life policies. This asset
reallocation resulted from the execution of our wealth management strategy and the resuiting significant change in
the composition of new life insurance annualized premiums and a review of assets appropriate for the closed
block that would be established if we recrganized from a mutual life insurance company to a stock life insurance
company in 2001. This reallocation affected the estimated future gross margins used to determine the
amortization of DAC for participating policies. Accordingly, the revisions to estimated future gross margins
resulted in a non-recurring charge to earnings of $218.2 (§141.8 after income taxes).




The activity in deferred policy acquisition costs for the years 2002, 2001 and 2000 follows:

2002 2001 2000

Direct acquisition costs deferred excluding acquisitions............cccveeeeencen $ 2170 $ 206.1 $ 1728
Acquisition costs recognized in Valley Forge Life acquisition .................. 48.5 - -
Costs amortized to expenses:

Recurring costs related t0 OPerations..............ove.veeereereveveeeeereesenssrseseraens (88.5) (122.5) (148.5)
{Cost) credit related to realized investment gains or 10sses.........ccccoceeneene. 7.2 (10.5) 10.7

Non-recurring (cost) or credit for change in actuarial assumptions.......... 22.1 -- (218.2)
(Cost) or credit offsets to net unrealized investment gains or losses

included in other comprehensive INCOME ........c.vcvecernirvrreriernirenrnseerennens (95.9) 28.5 (116.6)
Equity adjustment for policyholder dividend obligation ..............ccocvvueenene. -- 3.1 --
Change in deferred policy acquisition COSES ......cocvrrecrneniereerrnereeceriens 110.4 104.7 {299.8)
Deferred policy acquisition costs, beginning of year.........cc.coeeververerneniens 1,123.7 1,019.0 1,318.8
Deferred policy acquisition costs, end of Year...........cvvevcrrinnveennnnee. $1,234.1 $1,123.7 $1,019.0

Policy liabilities and accruals

Future policy benefits are liabilities for life and annuity products. We establish liabilities in amounts adequate to
meet the estimated future obligations of policies in-force. Future policy benefits for traditional life insurance are
computed using the net level premium method on the basis of actuarial assumptions as to contractual guaranteed
rates of interest, mortality rates guaranteed in calculating the cash surrender values described in such contracts
and morbidity. Future policy benefits for variable universal life, universal life and annuities in the accumulation
phase are computed using the deposit-method which is the sum of the account balance, unearned revenue liability
and liability for minimum policy benefits. Future policy benefits for term and annuities in the payout phase that
have significant mortality risk are computed using the net premium method on the basis of actuarial assumptions
at the issue date of these contracts for rates of interest, contract administrative expenses, mortality and
surrenders. We establish liabilities for outstanding claims, losses and loss adjustment expenses based on
individual case estimates for reported losses and estimates of unreported losses based on past experience.

Policyholder deposit funds are primarily for universal life products and include deposits received from customers
and investment earnings on their fund balances which range from 3.0% to 6.5% at year-end 2002, less
administrative and mortality charges.

Policyhoider deposit funds

Policyholder deposit funds primarily consist of annuity deposits received from customers, dividend accumulations
and investment earnings on their fund balances, which range from 1.6% to 12.3%, less administrative charges.

Fair value of investment contracts

For purposes of fair value disclosures (Note 14), we determine the fair value of guaranteed interest contracts, by
assuming a discount rate equal to the appropriate U.S. Treasury rate plus 150 basis points to determine the
present value of projected contractual liability payments through final maturity. We valued the fair value of
deferred annuities and supplementary contracts without life contingencies with an interest guarantee of one year
or less at the amount of the policy reserve. In determining the fair value of deferred annuities and supplementary
contracts without life contingencies with interest guarantees greater than one year, a discount rate equal to the
appropriate U.S. Treasury rate plus 150 basis points to determine the present value of the projected account
value of the policy at the end of the current guarantee period.

Deposit type funds, including pension deposit administration contracts, dividend accumulations, and other funds
left on deposit not involving life contingencies, have interest guarantees of less than one year for which interest
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credited is closely tied to rates earned on owned assets. For these liabilities, we assume fair value to be equal to
the stated liability balances.

Participating life insurance

Participating life insurance in-force was 45.5% and 50.4% of the face value of total individual life insurance in-
force at year-end 2002 and 2001, respectively. The premiums on participating life insurance policies were 70.4%,
73.5% and 76.2% of total individual life insurance premiums in 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively.

Funds under management

Activity in annuity funds under management for the years 2002, 2001 and 2000:

2002 2001 2000
DDEPOSIES ¢ovvv ittt ettt es e se et b st es st eses st et bt renes $2,258.4 $1,492.9 $ 687.0
PErTOTMMANCE. ......ocvcvietice ettt ettt e s et erseseass et e sesteare bt esaeseersssrasesrens (338.0) (563.1) (415.2)
S o1t otetrireteie ettt ettt sttt b etk a e s et bbbt raten e e nens (58.8) (67.3) (78.2)
Benefits and SUITENAETS ........covcviinernmieicecctce e (7773 (516.6) (633.4)
Change in funds under management.............ccoeveveeirrenierernieniereseeinercerenenne 1,084.3 3459 (439.8)
Funds under management, beginning of Year........cccovvvirvirccrncenisiereniennnnens 4,749.1 4,403.2 4,843.0
Funds under management, end Of YEAT .....cccvveerinnecr e 8 5,833.4 $ 4,749.1 $ 4,403.2

4. Investment Management Segmemnt

We conduct activities in Investment Management largely through our subsidiary, PXP, comprising two lines of
business — private client and institutional. Through our private client line of business, we provide investment
management services principally on a discretionary basis, with products consisting of open-end mutual funds and
managed accounts. Managed accounts include intermediary programs sponsored and distributed by non-affiliated
broker-dealers and direct managed accounts which are sold and administered by us. Our private client business
also provides transfer agency, accounting and administrative services to most of our open-end mutual funds.

Through our institutional line of business, we provide discretionary and non-discretionary investment
management services primarily to corporations, multi-employer retirement funds and foundations, as well as to
endowment, insurance and other special purpose funds. In addition, our instituticnal line of business manages
alternative financial products, including structured finance products and closed-end funds. Structured finance
products include collateralized debt and bond obligations backed by portfolios of public high yield bonds,
emerging markets bonds, commercial mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities or bank loans.

We provide investment management services through our affiliated asset managers. We provide our affiliated
asset managers with a consolidated platform of distribution and administrative support. Each manager has
autonomy with its investment process while we monitor performance and ensure that each manager adheres to its
stated investment style. Assets under management were $53,956, $52,090 and $56,593, of which $14,497,
$13,823, and $13,072 at year-end 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, were life company assets.

We report within our Investment Management our minority investment in Aberdeen Asset Management PLC
(Aberdeen), a Scottish investment management company with institutional and retail clients in the United
Kingdom, as well as in continental Europe, Asia, Australia and the U.S. We acquired 21.8% of the common stock
of Aberdeen in a series of transactions from 1996 through May 2001. Aberdeen is a holding of the Phoenix Life
general account.




Segment information on financial position and results of operations follows:

2002 2001
Financial Position
Aberdeen equity and debt securities (NOE 5) . vt $ 1720 3 2051
OhEr INVESTMENLS ...ttt ettt ettt ettt r e e e e e s e s et be s aesre st se b e st e mseabeseataebeersansersasee 6.3 4.9
Cash and cash equivalents ........................ oSttt ettt a et et sen et er et et s e st ea s et s en et ans 55.7 62.5
RECEIVADIES ...ttt e ettt et b et b eraebs s neern e e 31.6 36.9
Goodwill and other intangible assets................ et er et e bR e e st eb et ea b en b ene e 740.5 832.3
OTRET ASSELS. .ottt ettt sttt s ea etk a st st s ma et e e et e Reeet s nae et enseannenenenr e 21.8 26.8
TOtal SEEIMENL ASSELS ...erureriieriieieciraieetr ettt st e et et e ra e st e et aeresbaesreassassasesreeessessesareassensensseres 1,027.9 1,168.5
Other Habilfies ....ovveeviieiiiriierr e bbb et e es 136.8 336.6
MINOTIEY IEETEST ...veviviiireeirtetert ettt s b e sres e b b esbe bbb et bete et st aasesaben e b asenessenies 9.0 7.6
Total segment liabilities and MINOFILY INTETEST.......ccoeceiriiirnreriirieeririeerietevteee et ee s e e e eveenes 145.8 344.2
SeGMENE MEE ASSEES .......o.oiiiiiiiiiire it ettt ettt sttt st er bbbt e b b renen $ 882.1 $ 8243
2002 2061 2000
Results of Operations
Investment product fEeS........ccvoieeieiiiees v $ 258.1 § 2581 $ 3244
Net iNVeStMENt INCOME ...ocvieiriirrririeieriierteseesnesnanseeasesessassssaessesessasens 10.9 10.1 12.3
Total SEZMENT FEVEIMUES ....ooveeivriiirnreierrierteneri it e e sere s erseesesseeeeseearnenseas 269.¢ 268.2 336.7
Intangible asset amOrtiZation ............covvereeeieiiviie et cr e rn e ereaas 325 49.0 31.8
Intangible asset IMPAITMENLS .......o.eervirrirereeeree e nae 66.3 - -
Other OPETatiNg EXPENSES....overuiirrrererrererrerreetrsreeserseerssintesassessesesssensorserens 218.3 212.5 2229
Total SegMENt EXPEIISES ...ooovvvriririvirrreiieerreeesreertresaesre e eesraesrbearsensraeeavean 317.1 261.5 254.7
Segment operating income (loss) before income taxes
AN MUNOTIEY INEETEST....ivitieiiititierireiieireeer ettt sbe e sbeesab e b es e (48.1) 6.7 82.0
Allocated income taxes (DENETIt) ... .c.cuuririririvcnreneseieseieseess e ieseseceeeeas (6.0) 5.6 354
Segment operating income before minority INETest.........ocecvvveerirrencriennen, (42.1) 1.1, 46.6
Minority interest in segment Operating inCOME ......c.o.ooveveriererrcerierereeriienn, 11.9 6.9 11.0
Segment operating income (J0SS) .....o..ooovv i $ (54.9) $ (5.8 $ 356

Investment management fees and mutual fund ancillary fees included in investment product fees are recorded as
income pro-rata during the period in which services are performed. Investment management fees are generally
computed and earned based upon a percentage of assets under management. Investment management fees are
paid pursuant to the terms of the respective investment management contracts, which generally require monthly
or quarterly payments. Management fees contingent upon achieving certain levels of performance are recorded
when earned.

Mutual fund ancillary fees consist of dealer concessions and underwriting fees, distribution fees, administrative
fees, stockholder services agent fees, and accounting fees. Dealer concessions and underwriting fees earned (net
of related expenses) from the distribution and sale of affiliated mutual fund shares and other securities are
recorded on a trade date basis.

In 2002, our Investment Management segment incurred non-recurring charges primarily in connection with
organizational and employment-related costs of $12.9 ($8.4 after income taxes). In 2001, the segment recorded
$86.1 ($52.8 after income taxes) related to our purchase of the PXP minority interest, including PXP's accrual of
non-recurring compensation expenses of $57.0 to cash out restricted stock, $5.5 of related compensation costs,
non-recurring retention costs of $19.7 and non-recurring transaction costs of $3.9. These expenses were partially
offset by non-recurring income from partnership gains of $2.4 after income taxes. In 2000, the segment incurred
a net non-recurring loss of $(0.1), including an insurance recovery on reimbursements made to two mutual funds
in a prior year, ($3.1), offset by a loss on a sublease ($0.7), and expenses associated with PXP, including a
litigation settlement ($1.8) and an expense related to the purchase of its minority interest ($0.7).
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Business combinations

We acquired a 60% interest in Kayne Anderson Rudnick Investment Management, LLC (Kayne Anderson and
Rudnick) for $102.4 on January 29, 2002; management of the company retained the remaining ownership interest.
In addition to the initial cost of the purchase, we may make a subsequent payment in 2004 based upon growth in
management fee revenue for the purchased business through 2003. We are obligated to purchase an additional
15% interest in the company by 2007. We allocated $0.3 of the purchase price to tangible net assets acquired and
$102.1 to intangible assets ($58.3 to investment management contracts and $43.8 to goodwill). Kayne Anderson
Rudnick’s results of operations for the period from January 30, 2002 through year-end 2002 are included in our
results of operations for the year 2002. Pro forma information for income and earnings as if Kayne Anderson
Rudnick had been owned at the beginning of 2000 is included in Note 1.

In January 2001, we acquired the 44.9% minority interest in PXP for $339.3. Prior to this acquisition, PXP had
been a publicly held company listed on the New York Stock Exchange in which we held a 55.1% interest. In
connection with this acquisition, PXP redeemed all of its outstanding convertible subordinated debentures at a
cost of $38.2 and recorded non-recurring costs of $86.1, consisting of $57.0 to cash out employee stock options
(Note 10), $5.5 of related compensation costs (Note 10), $19.7 for retention bonuses and $3.9 in transaction costs.

Our purchase price totaled $361.3, which consisted of the purchase of the minority interest for $339.3, the
premium paid by PXP to redeem its debentures of $18.8 and our transaction costs of $3.2. We allocated this price
to the fair value of the tangible net assets acquired ($137.2), investment management contracts ($179.1, before
applicable deferred income taxes of $73.4) and goodwill ($118.4). The weighted average useful life assigned to
the investment management contracts was 13.4 years; the useful life assigned to the goodwill was 40 years.

We acquired a 75% interest in Walnut Asset Management, LLC (Walnut) in January 2001 for $7.5. In addition,
we acquired a 65% interest in Capital West Asset Management, LLC (Capital West) in November 2001 for $5.5.
The pro forma effect of these acquisitions as if they both had been owned at the beginning of 2000 is not material
to our 2001 and 2000 revenues or results of operations. In addition to the initial cost of the Capital West
purchase, we may make a subsequent payment in 2005 based on growth in revenue through 2004. We will also
purchase an additional ownership interest in Capital West by 2007.

The minority interests in each of our less than wholly-owned investment management subsidiaries are subject to
put/call agreements pursuant to which either the minority interest holders or PXP may exercise their respective
rights to buy or sell the minority interests on specified future dates. Initial payments made under these put/call
agreements are recorded as additional purchase price. To the extent that any additional payments are required,
associated with the re-issuance and repurchase of the same interests, the increase in the underlying value of the
shares is recorded as compensation expense. We recorded $34.8 additional purchase price in 2002 related to a
put/call agreement that exists with one of cur majority-owned subsidiaries.

Goodwill and other intangible assets

At the beginning of 2002, we adopted the new accounting standard for goodwill and other intangible assets,
including amounts reflected in our carrying value of equity-method investments. Under this new standard, we
discontinued recording amortization expense on goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite lives, but we
continue recording amortization expense for those intangible assets with definite estimated lives. For goodwill
and indefinite-lived intangible assets, we perform impairment tests at the reporting-unit level at least annually.
For purposes of the impairment test, the fair value of the reporting units is based on the sum of: a multiple of
revenue, plus the fair value of the units tangible net fixed assets. Prior to 2002, we amortized goodwill
principally over forty years and investment management contracts and employment contracts over five to sixteen
years and three to seven years, respectively. All amortization expense has been and continues to be calculated on
a straight-line basis. : ‘ : - .
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Upon adoption of the new accounting standard, we recorded a before tax cumulative effect charge of $141.7 to
reduce the carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite lives to fair value, of which
$131.3 pertained to our Investment Management segment and $10.4 pertained to an international equity
investment in our Corporate and Other segment (Note 5). After applicable income tax benefits, the charge
reduced earnings by $130.3 or $1.33 per share. In the third quarter of 2002, we performed an impairment test at
the Investment Management segment reporting-unit level and recorded a charge of $66.3 to further reduce the
carrying value of goodwill and other intangible assets.

The gross and net carrying amounts of Investment Management segment goodwill and other intangible assets at
year-end 2002 and 2001 follow:

2002 2001

Gross Net Gross Net
Goodwill................ et er ettt b ne bttt § 4295 § 3755 $ 5624 § 5083
Investment management CONracts........ccceeeerrereereeeene 491.0 364.9 4189 320.5
Oher ... 1.5 0.1 43 3.5
Goodwill and other intangible assets ... S 922.0 $ 740.5 $ 985.6 $ 832.3

Estimated intangible asset amortization for the next five years totals $143.0 as follows: 2003, $32.2; 2004, $31.9;
2003, $30.4; 2006, $25.0 and 2007, $23.5. Of the $364.9 of net identified intangible assets related to investment

management contracts at year-end 2002 $291.7 relates to definite life contracts and $73.2 relates to indefinite life
contracts.

Aberdeen Asset Management

Our ownership of Aberdeen common stock includes 4% of their outstanding shares that we purchased in May 2001
for $46.8 and 18% of their outstanding shares that we purchased between 1996 and 1999 for $62.3. Our ownership
of Aberdeen convertible debt securities includes two issues: $37.5 in 7% convertible subordinated notes issued in
1996 and $19.0 in 5.875% convertible bonds issued in 2002. The notes mature on March 29, 2003, subject to four
six-month extensions at Aberdeen’s option with increasing interest rates for each extension. The bonds mature in
2007. The conversion prices for both the notes and the bonds are in excess of Aberdeen’s common stock price at
year-end 2002. The fair value of our investment in Aberdeen common stock, based on the London Stock
Exchange closing price at year-end 2002 and 2001, was $43.6 and $221.1, respectively. The carrying value of our
investment in Aberdeen on the equity method of accounting totaled $119.3 and $103.9 at year-end 2002 and
2001, respectively (Note 5). The difference between our investment and our percentage of Aberdeen’s net assets
represents goodwill resulting from our acquisition of Aberdeen common stock. '

A summary of Aberdeen’s financial position on a U.K. GAAP basis of accounting at September 30, 2002 and
2001 (its fiscal year-end, converted to U.S. dollars at 2002 and 2001 exchange rates) and results of its operations
and cash flows for each of the three years ending September 30, 2002 converted to U.S. dollars using the 2002,
2001 and 2000 average exchange rates follows:
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2002 2001

Financial Position

Cash and cash equIVaENts ...........ccciiiiiniic $ 525 § 926
OHET CUITENT ASSELS 1.ouviiviiuriitieitiesieeeerteenrrettrereesessbessaesraeseeesesabe et reateeaseenreasseneeeenensressnesnnes 95.8 102.0
Goodwill and other intangible aSSELS.......ccciririiiiiiiiririe ettt 657.8 599.0
Other general ACCOUNT ASSELS.....c..vererererererieterieteerieseste s eenerereetesteeeresestssrereseesaeseriessssnnn 86.5 71.0
SeParate ACCOUNT ASSELS..c..ivriiirieriiiiiiieir ettt e sa b e b s sae s sebe s 411.8 82.2
TOLAL ASSEIS «.uuvvrriieieesiiiriiie ettt e e e e e eeer bbb e eesesesebeateeeeeasastberaeaeaenbabessaeestbaaeaasaaesaasnnseeeaas 1,304.4 946.8
INAEDEEANESS .ottt sttt st e eb et s b et e seeae e e 429.8 3383
Cther general account Habilities ...c....vovereereiriciiininir e s 129.1 2047
Separate aCCOUnt LADIHEIES ......oioiiv ittt b s 411.8 82.2
Preferred stockholders’” eqUIty ......c.cvovireeieriiii et 333 47.0
Total liabilities and preferred stockholders” @qUILY .......cecvvververererieiririnieieeneeee e 1,004.0 672.2
Net assets applicable to common StOCKROIders.........covvv e $ 3004 $ 274.6
2002 2001 2000
Results of Operations
REVEIUES....cveuvvevitititeceeteeeeeteeeee et et s sesersetessesesese et etetsssesessssetesensasesetesnssna $ 2899 $ 2640 $ 1794
EXPEIISES -tttk e e e 262.8 2284 1267
Income DEfOre INCOME TAXES ..vvvviveereeereeneeiriiierrrateenreerresraeereseneseressececenneeas 27.1 35.6 52.7
INCOIME LAXES .ocivviririririsiresiie ettt et e sttt e e r e s eeneanneonesaneenns 16.8 13.9 15.2
INEL INICOME. ... vttt sttt ettt st st sbe st e e ctesae b e resae b s 103 21.7 37.5
Preferred stock dividends ........ccoococciiiiiiiiini e 1.7 1.8 -
Net income applicable to commen stockholders ......ooovvivireniniiriinnene $ 8.6 $ 19.9 $ 375
Cash Flows
Cash from 0perating aCtiVItIES .......cecveverierireeesiirreresreesisreeeereessesessennenes % 207 $ 355 § 656
Cash (for) from financing aCtVItIES .......ccvirvrrererineirieee e (6.4) 260.6 (16.6)
Cash for INVEStING ACLIVILIES...........oeeeririecieieieerere et (53.1) (293.6) (37.1)
CASI TLOWS e eeierere ettt ettt et et e et e e ereesa et ess et e ea ste e eeesen e enraseeteares $ (38.8) $ 25 $ 119

The U K. investment management industry and the split capital closed-end fund sector in particular have suffered
a significant decline in investor confidence and liquidity since September 2001. Aberdeen has acted as a manager
of certain of these funds and at its 2002 year-end the funds represented 5% of its assets under management. The
U K. Financial Services Authority has commenced a review of the split capital fund sector, including Aberdeen's
managed funds. The U.K. Financial Ombudsman Service has also commenced a related review of one of the
funds managed by Aberdeen.

Cn November 1, 2002, Aberdeen announced the resuits of a strategic review, which concluded that it should
focus on its core strength of active management of equity and fixed income securities. Consistent with the
review, Aberdeen subsequently announced its intentions to divest of a business segment that actively manages
property investments and a conditional agreement to dispose of its rights to manage certain retail funds for cash
consideration of $138.0.

5. Imvesting Activities
Debt and equity securities
We classify our debt and equity securities as available-for-sale and report them in our balance sheet at fair value.

Fair value is based on quoted market price, where available. When quoted market prices are not available, we
estimate fair value by discounting debt security cash flows to reflect interest rates currently being offered on
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similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality (private placement debt securities), by quoted market prices of
comparable instruments (untraded public debt securities) and by independent pricing sources or internally
developed pricing models (equity securities). Prior to 2001, we classified private placement debt securities as
held-to-maturity and reported them at amortized cost, less any impairment. In connection with our conversion to
a public company, in 2001 we reclassified these securities, when their carrying value was $2,338.8, to available-
for-sale and recorded a 8162.0 unrealized gain ($83.9 unrealized gain after offsets for applicable deferred policy
acquisition costs and deferred income taxes) in other comprehensive income.

Fair value and cost of our debt securities at year-end 2002 and 2001 follow:

2002 2001
Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost
U.S. government and agency .........oco.eceevrerneevnrrrnrenns § 4616 $ 4313 § 2692 $ 2560
State and political subdivision..........ccccceveevevirirennnnnns 534.7 481.9 531.6 508.6
Foreign gOVEIMMENt......c..cocererierecrererieemrirnenesresresnnnenes 183.9 168.4 326.7 293.7
COTPOTALe ...coviiiriniciirenieescerte e et 5,432.5 5,081.0 4,332.1 4,290.3
Mortgage-backed .......co.oovvieeiernriierieeeeenenee s 3,099.9 2,901.9 2,540.2 2,476.6
Other asset-backed...........ccoovveveiienicreirececeeeeen e 2,1288 2,122.1 1,607.9 1,648.4
Debt seCUrfties.....cvovvviiieieiieececeeee et $ 11,841.4 $ 11,186.6 $ 3,607.7 $ 94736
Amounts applicable to the closed block ........cccoueeaen. $ 6,418.0 $ 59398 $ 57395 $ 5,630.7

For mortgage-backed and other asset-backed debt securities, we recognize income using a constant effective yield
based on anticipated prepayments and the estimated economic lives of the securities. When actual prepayments
differ significantly from anticipated prepayments, the effective yield is recalculated to reflect actual payments to
date and any resulting adjustment is included in net investment income. For certain asset-backed securities,
changes in estimated yield are recorded on a prospective basis and specific valuation methods are applied to
these securities to determine if there has been an other-than-temporary decline in value.

We owned no non-income producing debt securities at year-end 2002 or 2001.

Fair value and cost of our equity securities at year-end 2002 and 2001 follow:

2002 2001
Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost
Hilb, Rogal and Hamilton common stock ...........cc.c...... $ 1393 $ 651 5 - 5 -
Other eqUIty SECUTIIES ....ccvvvvrerirerirecrieeenae e, 231.9 197.1 290.9 270.4
Equity SeCuFIHes...........oovvvverreereieeseereree e $ 391.2 $ 2622 $ 290.9 $§ 2704
Amounts applicable to the closed block ..........c.covevuene. 5 - 5 - 5 - $ -

Hilb, Rogal and Hamilton Company (HRH) is a Virginia-based property and casualty insurance and employee
benefit products distributor, traded on the New York Stock Exchange; we owned 6.4% of its common shares, as
well as convertible debt securities, and, prior to November 2002, we had a contractual right to designate two
nominees for election to its board of directors. In November 2002, we completed a transaction where it is no
longer appropriate to consider HRH as an affiliate for accounting and reporting purposes.

Our ownership of HRH included common stock and convertible notes, which we received when we sold our

property and casualty insurance distribution business to HRH in 1999. The common stock and the notes, if
converted, would have represented 16.8% of HRH’s common stock outstanding.
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On November 12, 2002, we converted our HRH note into shares of HRH common stock, when our total HRH
holdings had a total fair value of $167.1. On the following day, we sold shares of HRH common stock in a
secondary public offering for $23.5 and issued stock purchase contracts, which require us to deliver shares of
HRH common stock on November 13, 2005, for $133.9 (Note 6).

As a result of these transactions, we recorded a gross realized investment gain of $15.3 in 2002 and a gross
deferred investment gain of $91.8. Net of offsets for applicable deferred policy acquisition costs and deferred
income taxes, our realized gain was $6.4 and our deferred gain was $32.4. We calculated our gains using the
specific identification of the securities sold. The deferred gain will be realized on settlement of the stock purchase
contracts in the fourth quarter of 2005. At year-end 2002, we held 3,895,120 shares of HRH common stock, with
a fair value of $159.3, including 3,622,500 shares in support of the stock purchase contracts.

Gross and net unrealized gains and losses from debt and equity securities at year-end 2002 and 2001 follow:

2002 2001
Gains Losses Gains Losses

U.S. government and 8gency.........c.ccoueveeeereerienrenerrerernenen, § 305 $ (02 § 133 ¥ O
State and political subdivision...........cc.ccoovevviirerrecieiinns 33.1 0.3) 24.7 1.7
Foreign BOVEIMMENL..........c.ovveovicirierierenrecesresreenesernensenns 20.2 @.7n 34.1 (1.1)
COIPOTALE ..ottt etr e seree e ese e e s rabesaeareseeesnnevanenas 4428 (91.3) 145.5 (103.7)
Mortgage-backed...........ccocovvvirieiecee e, 198.5 0.5) 73.1 9.5)
Other asset-backed........ccc.ooevvrviovnieccniiirrrccieienanns 85.0 (78.3) 34.3 (74.8)
Debt securities gains and IOSSES ......ccovevvvecrirevrnreeranne, $ 830.1 $ (175.3y § 325.0 $ (190.9)
Equity securities gains and IosSes......ocveereeerecrecnrerennna ‘ $ 144.4 $ (15.9 S 52.4 5 (31.9)
Net BAMIS ...coveveieiic e e neen $ 783.8 § 154.6

Mortgage loans and real estate

We report mortgage loans at unpaid principal balances, net of valuation reserves on impaired mortgages. We
consider a mortgage loan to be impaired if we believe it is probable that we will be unable to collect all amounts
of contractual interest and principal as scheduled in the loan agreement. We do not accrue interest income on
impaired mortgage loans when the likelihood of collection is doubtful.

For purpose of fair value disclosures (Note 14), we estimated the fair value of mortgage loans by discounting the
present value of scheduled loan payments. We based the discount rate on the comparable U.S. Treasury rates for
loan durations plus spreads of 130 to 800 basis points, depending on our internal quality ratings of the loans.
For in-process-of-foreclosure or defaulted loans, we estimated fair value as the lower of the underlying collateral
value or the loan balance.

Our mortgage loans are diversified by property type, location and borrower. Mortgage loans are collateralized by
the related properties and are generally no greater than 75% of the properties' value at the time the loans are
originated. The fair values of our investments in mortgage loans and real estate by property type and geographic
region and the fair value of our mortgage loans at year-end 2002 and 2001 follow:
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Mortgage Loans . Real Estate

. 20802 2001 2002 2002
Property type:
Apartment buildings ........coovveveervinninrennnrn s $ 159.0 $ 1710 § 519 $ 504
Office buildings.......cocooeriecenrivcrrinicnercee e 131.5 1554 15.1 25.2
RELAIL STOTES ...vuvvrviverercieee ettt enaee 151.5 170.4 26 7.5
Industrial buildings......c.ccceveeviiciinnnenrecee e 42.2 52.0 -- --
OthET ... 0.1 2.0 -- --
SUBLOtAL....oceeceirrrcc et 4843 . 550.8 69.6 © 831
Less: valuation allowances .........ecccveevereerernsereernnnsnerenens 15.5 15.0 -- --
Mortgage loans and real estate........ococooevevecececrnnrnennns $ 468.8 $ 535.8 $ 69.6 $ 831
Amounts applicable to the closed block ............cevrvvnnn. $ 3732 $ 386.5 $ - 5 --
Gecographic region:
NOTHEASE......veeeiiiieie ettt s e eae e $ 868 $ 116.5 $ 501 $ 3544
SOUthEASL......coieeereierrceti e s ‘ 1233 130.5 -- --
North central.....cc.cocoviveicninniniccnnenceene [SRUTRTN 122.8 134.8 0.4 0.4
South CeNMral........c.covrecriireirnerceerrrre e rreen 96.5 101.7 13.5 13.0
WESE .ottt et 54.9 67.3 5.6 15.3
SUBLOLAL ..o ‘ 484.3 550.8 69.6 83.1
Less: valuation allowances ..........ccccccoevvinereenenneereennnees 15.5 15.0 -- --
Mortgage loans and real estate...............ccccccviivvininnnn, $ 468.8 $ 5358 $ 696 $ 831
Fair value of mortgage 10ans ..........ccoceecevrvrvnerneeecirnnnnns $ 488.2 $ 5541

The carrying values of delinquent and in-process-of-foreclosure mortgage loans at year-end 2002 and 2001 were
$5.6 and $5.6, respectively. The carrying values of mortgage loans on which the payment terms have been
restructured or modified were $29.5 and $31.1 at year-end 2002 and 2001, respectively. We have provided
valuation allowances for delinquent, in-process-of-foreclosure and restructured or modified mortgage loans.
Activity in valuation allowances, which have been deducted in arriving at mortgage loan and real estate carrying
values, for the years 2002, 2001 and 2000 follows:

Mortgage Loans Real Estate
2002 2001 2000 2001 2000
Valuation allowance, beginning of year ...... $ 150 $ o9t $ 143 $ 93 $ 32
Additions charged to income............c.......... 0.6 6.1 1.8 -- 6.1
Deductions for write-offs and disposals ...... 0.1 (0.2) (7.0) (9.3) -~
Valuation aliowance, end of year ............ $ 155 $ 150 $ 91 $ - $ 93

Interest income on restructured mortgage loans that would have been recorded in accordance with the original
terms of such loans amounted to $3.5, $3.6 and $3.9 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Actual interest income
on these loans included in net investment income was $2.7, $2.4 and $3.1 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
The amount of interest foregone by non-income producing mortgage loans was $0.6 for the year 2002. There
were no non-income producing mortgage loans during 2001.

Venture capital partnerships
We invest as a limited partner in venture capital limited partnerships. These partnerships focus on early-stage

ventures, primarily in the information technology and life science industries and leveraged buyout funds. We also
have direct equity investments in leveraged buyouts and corporate acquisitions.
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We record our equity in the earnings of venture capital partnerships in net investment income using the most
recent financial information received from the partnerships and estimating the earnings for any lag in reporting.
In the first quarter of 2001, we changed our accounting for venture capital partnership earnings to eliminate the
quarterly lag in information provided to us. We did this by estimating the change in our share of partnership
earnings for the quarter. This change resulted in a §75.1 charge ($48.8 charge after income taxes), representing
the cumulative effect of this accounting change on the fourth quarter of 2000.

To estimate the net equity in earnings of the venture capital partnerships for each quarter, we developed a
methodology to estimate the change in value of the underlying investee companies in the venture capital
partnerships. For public investee companies, we used quoted market prices at the end of each quarter, applying
liquidity discounts to these prices in instances where such discounts were applied in the underlying partnerships'
financial statements. For private investee companies, we applied a public industry sector index to roll the value
Jorward each quarter. We apply this methodology consistently each quarter with subsequent adjustments to
reflect market events reported by the partnerships (e.g., new rounds of financing, initial public offerings and
writedowns by the general partners). Our methodology recognizes both downward and upward change in value
of the underlying investee companies, but we do not exceed the last reported value by the partnerships. In
addition, we annually revise the valuations we have assigned to the investee companies to reflect the valuations in
the audited financial statements received from the venture capital partnerships.

Our venture capital earnings are subject to variability. The components of net investment income related to
venture capital partnerships for the years 2002, 2001 and 2000 follow:

2002 2001 2000
Net realized gains (losses) on partnership cash and stock distributions ....... $ @n § 178 $ 2233
Partnership OPerating EXPenSeS......cccvereeerirrrrvererinereeieneereeeeureneriassnsesssssesees (7.4) 6.4) 1.7
Net unrealized gains (losses) on partnership investments .........c..cocoveevevene. (47.2) (95.9) 61.7
Venture capital partnership net investmment income {(ISs).......covveveeeenens $ (59.3) $ (84.5) $ 2773

Our investments in venture capital partnerships at year-end 2002 and 2001 by typé of investment foliow:

2002 2001
TECRNOIOZY ...vvvviiiirrr ettt st ea bt $ 250 $ 413
TeleCOMIMUNICALIONS. ... c.ccoierereeire sttt sttt s e et i0.2 19.1
BIOtECHNOIOZY .. ettt s r et sttt e a sttt s s rs e be st antaeses e sn st senas 11.1 14.1
Health Care......coorvviiiiiiieccrnec e res ettt s sa st s ens e 9.2 10.7
Consumer and business progucts and SETVICES ........vvurvervrereiereriareisrerenrrreseeesssssessnsssses 45.9 46.6
FINANCIAL SETVICES .eevoveveiiiiirriieiiierectreetie et st tererb e st s e et eres e sesbe e sbas b sees e sesbsaresesbeneans 28.1 303
OHNET ..ttt bbbt et R 50.6 57.8
Private NOLGINES ...ecveeerviiiiiiiriiii ettt et et b e sbes e se et s e e e e s e ene 180.1 219.9
PUbLIC hOIAINES ..ovviiciiee ittt st s et rreseas 23.0 39.8
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENES .........ccverieiiiiiniirec bbb 224 22.5
OHIEE ..ottt st et a e ettt aa st a e e st R e s st R s b b e n et e s e bans 3.1 9.5
Venture capital partRershiPs ..o e $ 2286 $ 291.7
Unfunded COMMILIMENS .......cccveveiireirrerieieiieeiitece e st esess et ie e st esssasnsssseess s ensneassnsnes $ 1547 3 166.8
Amounts applicable to the closed block:
Venture capital Partnerships ........ccccccciieiieieroeiniesinsesssinsiesesissnssns s sesssssesessesesssesesens $ 08 5 -
Unfunded COMMITMENLS .........cccvururureiririreseietet e teara s ssss e e as st sssassseneneens $§ 34 S -

The unfunded commitments can be drawn down by the various venture capital partnerships as necessary to fund
their portfolio investments.
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Investment activity in venture capital partnerships for the years 2002, 2001 and 2000 follows:

2002 2081 2060

Capital INVESTEd .....vvviviereereerericriee et b s $ 430 $ 470 $ 969
Equity in partnership earnings (10SS€5)....c.ccecvvivrerinieiiiirieieceserreneeeeneens (59.3) (84.5) 2773
Cumulative effect of accounting change ..........cccccoviiiniriiicniee e, -- 5.1 --
Realized loss on partnerships being s01d.........occceeviiiveceiiccirevnire e (5.1) -- --
Distributions of earnings reCeived .........ccvvierireciniinerenieiiccreee e (14.2) (30.5) (222.4)
Distributions of capital 1eCeivVed.......coccieviniiinviirieinciiee e (27.5) (32.5) (22.6)
Change in venture capital partnerships.......c.cccoovveeiviiiniicesese e (63.1) (175.6) 129.2
Venture capital partnership investments, beginning of year...........cc..coooen... 291.7 467.3 338.1
Venture capital partnership investments, end of year.........ccceoeevivnenns $ 2286 $ 291.7 $ 467.3

In February 2003, we reached an agreement to sell a 50% interest in certain of our venture capital partnerships to
an outside party and transfer the remaining 50% interest to our closed block. The carrying value of the
partnerships being sold and transferred totaled $53.5 after realizing a loss of $5.1 in year 2002 to reflect the
proceeds being received. The unfunded commitments of the partnerships being sold and transferred totaled $28.1;
the outside party and the closed block will each fund half of these commitments.

Affiliate equity and debt securities

Our investments in affiliate equity and debt securities represent investments in operating entities in which we own
less than a majority of the outstanding common stock and where we exercise significant influence over the
operating and financial policies of the companies. We use the equity method of accounting for our investments in
common stock of these affiliates; we use fair value to report our investments in these affiliates’ debt securities.
For years prior to 2001, we considered our investments in Aberdeen and HRH debt securities as being held-to-
maturity and reported them at amortized cost. In 2001, we transferred these securities to the available-for-sale
category and recorded a $110.6 unrealized gain (871.9 unrealized gain after income taxes).

Carrying value and cost of investments in affiliates at year-end 2002 and 2001 follow:

2002 2001
Carrying Carrying

Value Cost Yalue Cost
Aberdeen common StOCK ......coevvveviiveceis e $ 1193 $ 109.1 $ 103.9 $ 109.1
Aberdeen 7% convertible notes...........cc.cceeeiiiiiieeiiin, 37.5 37.5 101.2 37.5
Aberdeen 5.875% convertible bonds...........oocoeev e 15.2 21.2 -- --
HRH common StOCK ....cceiviveerviiiiiiiienieisre e sre e -- -- 18.7 15.9
HRH 5.25% convertible notes .........coooovieeeeeeieciieeeeeee. -- -- 78.9 32.0
OhET .ottt ettt 15.4 26.5 27.9 13.4
Affiliate debt and equity securities...........cc.covenrvnenencan, S 187.4 $ 1%4.3 $ 330.6 $ 2079

The fair value based on quoted market price of our equity investment in Aberdeen was $43.6 and $221.1 at year-
end 2002 and 2001. See Note 4 for further information on Aberdeen.

We evaluate our equity method investments for an other than temporary impairment at each balance sheet date
considering quantitative and qualitative factors including quoted market price of underlying equity securities, the
duration the carrying value is in excess of fair value and historical and projected earnings and cash flow
capacity.

Sources of equity in earnings of and interest earned from investments in affiliates for the years 2002, 2001 and
2000 follow:
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2002 2001 2000

Aberdeen common stock dividends.......ccovevireiiieiiciceceeee e $ 3.8 $ 6.3 $5.0
Equity in Aberdeen undistributed income (loSS) ......cceveevveninimieneniernsrerenn 23 (0.5) 2.0
Aberdeen 7% cONVEItIDIE NOES ...o.vvvveveceieieeeee ettt et s 2.6 2.6 2.6
Aberdeen 5.875% convertible bonds.........occovviiiii e 1.2 - --
HRH common StocK dividends..........oooovveiireieeieniee ettt eeenessrnen 0.5 0.6 0.6
Equity in HRH undistributed inCome ............cocovvevvirecreinceiionescriennennnns 2.5 1.9 0.6
HRH 5.25% cOnVertible NOES .....ooovviiieiiiiiie e eeeeeeerree s reves e e e 1.3 1.7 1.7
OBRET . ettt et (3.2) 0.1) (0.8)
Affiliate INVEStMENME IRCOIIE ..ooovvvveeeeeee e eer e e e e ssreesseneneas $ 110 $ 125 $ 117

In connection with the adoption of a new accounting standard for goodwill and other intangible assets (Note 4),
we recorded a charge of $10.4 (§10.4 after income taxes) as the cumulative effect adjustment to reduce the
carrying value of goodwill to its fair value for our equity investment in an Argentine financial services company
in which we have a 50% interest that is reflected in the other category above.

Policy foans and other invested assets

Policy loans are carried at their unpaid principal balances and are collateralized by the cash values of the
related policies. For purposes of fair value disclosures (Note 14), we estimate the fair value of fixed rate policy
loans by discounting the present value of loan interest and loan repayments. We base the discount rate on the 10-
vear U.S. Treasury rate. We assume that loan interest payments are made at the fixed rate less 17.5 basis points
and that loan repayments only occur as a result of anticipated policy lapses. For variable rate policy loans, we
consider the unpaid loan balance as fair value, as interest rates on these loans are reset annually based on
market rates.

Other investments primarily include leveraged lease investments and other partnership and joint venture
interests. Leveraged lease investments represent the net amount of the estimated residual value of the lease
assets, rental receivables and unearned and deferred income to be allocated over the lease term. Investment
income is calculated using the interest method and is recognized only in periods in which the net investment is
positive. Other partnership and joint venture interests in which we do not have control or a majority ownership
interest are recorded using the equity method of accounting. These investments include affordable housing,
mezzanine and other partnership interests.

Our derivative instruments primarily include interest rate swap agreements. We report these contracts at fair
values, which are based on current settlement values. These values are determined by brokerage quotes that

utilize pricing models or formulas based on current assumptions for the respective agreements.

Other invested assets at year-end 2002 and 2001 follow:

2002 2001
Transportation and other equipment 1€aSES.........c.cocevevrerriinieneice e § 660 $ 850
Separate account eqUItY IMVESTTIENTS .....c.oovrireerireirnreresereeratesisie e seststeseseesetsebesssesasessanas 36.0 54.6
Mezzaning ParterSIIPS ........cccervriereriiieerecee ettt et sttt svebese et 454 371
Affordable housing partnerships.......c.cccvieeiiricn e e b 25.7 28.2
Derivative instruments (NOte 14) ...cciiiriiiiniiirierine et 52.7 20.6
Other affiliate IMVESIMENLS ..ottt ssens e 20.1 9.6
Equity investments in collateralized obligations ..........ccccoceviiririevererirneinnneeres e 17.8 18.8
Other partnership IEEIESLS .. ....ccviiireirercacririeese st eestert oo st stesbeseebestateseesesre e sbesraseeseeresbeseneans 75.2 39.0

T EIIVESTRI BSSELS .oeeviiiiieiiiiie ittt eeeer et e s et e s e st e s raeeeeeeeteastreeesenneeesranesesaasreeeeneas $ 338.9 $ 2929
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Net investment income

Sources of net investment income for the years 2002, 2001 and 2000 follow:

2002 2001 2000
DIEbDE SECUTTLIES ..vevivieiierercec ettt er bbb ese bt re et s et nne $ 7273 $ 672.8 $ 601.2
EQUILY SECUTIEIES ..v.ioieeciieire e eee et ettt sttt b s e 4.2 52 133
Mortgage loans 40.4 45.0 54.6
REAL BSLALE.......ceeveieeiireereie ettt sttt ettt nb b 13.9 16.1 9.2
Venture capital partnerships ............ocoeiroviriiecieceecieiec et eeeene (59.3) (84.5) 277.3
Affiliate debt and equity SECUIILIES ..ccceovviuicviiiiciici et 11.0 12.5 11.7
Other INVESTEd @SSELS ..c.evuiririeiiiirieiereire e et et r et st er e saeererbe e 32 7.1 34
POlicy 10aNS .o 171.8 168.6 157.4
Cash and cash equIvalents .........cc.ooeeoeriic e 11.9 15.2 27.5
Total INVESTMENE INCOME 1o iviiiiiiiniiitiiie it e s etsteeeereesbaeeeeeernns s eereesbseeenes 924 4 858.0 1,155.6
Less: INVESIMENT EXPENSES ...eoveeueeerrrereriierieerieaarrieestessaaeesrrsreessessesseenssensonns 9.2 10.4 14.3
Net investment IICOIME .......cooeeeivivereeriertiereecrre e eere et eere b ees et sre s eereeteas $ 915.2 $ 847.6 $1,141.3

Net realized investment gains {losses)

We recognize realized investment gains and losses on asset dispositions, when declines in fair value of debt and
equity securities whose value, in our judgment, is considered to be other-than-temporarily impaired are written
down to fair value as a charge to realized losses included in net income. The cost basis of these written down
investments is adjusted to fair value at the date the determination of impairment is made. The new cost basis is
not changed for subsequent recoveries in value. The closed block policyholder dividend obligation, applicable
deferred policy acquisition costs, and applicable income taxes are reported separately as components of net
income.

Effective April 1, 2001, we adopted a new accounting pronouncement for securitized financial instruments. This
pronouncement requires investors in certain asset-backed securities to record changes in their estimated yield on
a prospective basis and to apply specific valuation methods to these securities to determine if there has been an
other-than-temporary decline in value. Upon adoption of this pronouncement, we recorded a $31.6 charge
(820.5 charge after income taxes) as the cumulative effect of an accounting change.
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Sources and types of net realized investment gains (losses) for the years 2002, 2001 and 2000 follow:

2002 2061 2000
DDt SECUTITIES 1-uvveeeverereneteieririncre e scsiebsaeeesessae e bsa st e bbb e st et ersanseeetarens $ (122.9) $ (72.6) § (75
EQUILY SECUTTEIES ...vrveiiieciiiriteercti e eec sttt eseb et ncaes (9.8) -- --
IMOTEZAZE LOBNS ..ottt (0.6) (6.1) (1.8)
Real estate -- -- (6.1)
Venture capital partnerships 5.1 -- --
Other INVESIE ASSELS....eviviiireieretirneetrni et seeresesese st seaseee e (22.0) (3.7 --
Impairmemt IOSSES ...coiviriiiirierr ittt et (160.4) (82.4) (15.4)
Debt SECUTILIES GRS ..oiveveiirie ettt reb e 94.3 532 9.6
Debt SECUTTHIES LOSSES .. uuiiiiiiiecetiir ettt ettt se e saae s (45.9) (31.5) (56.5)
EQUILY SECUTILIES BAINS ....cuvceiircrereeicmreeeneeesenseeseeseescissesesessesraeesessnsessesnessonassens 24.5 12.2 178.2
EqQUity SECUTItIES L0SSES ...overiiiereriitiiierier ettt reeisie sttt nbe e (22.4) (21.0) (31.4)
MOTEZAZE L0ANS ...ttt 0.2 7.1 4.8
Real estate.......cc.cuee.... 4.0 (2.5) 1.8
Other invested assets 1.9 (1.5 (1.9)
Net transaction aims . ... 52.8 10.9 104.6
Net realized investment gains (JOSSES) ......ccocveiiceiriniereces s $ (107.6) $ (724 $ 892
Closed block applicable policyholder dividend obligation (reduction) ........ (40.3) (15.4) --
Applicable deferred acquisition costs (benefit) .......ooooevvevviicicrnnerercnnnne (7.2) 10.5 (10.7)
Applicable deferred income taxes (benefit) .....coococccrorerinecnencnennens (20.8) (24.5) 329
Offsets to realized investment gains (I0SSES) ...cvocveevirrierieneierrinrereneeninnene (68.3) (29.4) 22.2
Net realized investment gains (losses) included in net income................. $ (39.3) $ (43.9) $ €70

Unrealized investment gains {losses)

We recognize unrealized investment gains and losses on investments in debt and equity securities that we classify
as available-for-sale. These gains and losses are reported as a component of other comprehensive income, net of
the closed block policyholder dividend obligation, applicable deferred policy acquisition costs and applicable
deferred income taxes.

Sources of net unrealized investment gains (losses) for the years 2002, 2001 and 2000 follow:

2002 2001 2000
DEDE SECUTITEIES vvevivirreieereiiiie ettt ettt se st se et sre st ba e $ 5207 $ 897 $ 2138
EQUILY SECUITLIES 1.veveiveieiriieeiiiceieeic ettt s e s 108.5 (23.8) (98.6)
Affiliate debt SECUTILIES.....evvivieiieriiieie ettt v ser et a e s et ereees (116.5) 110.6 --
Other INVESLIMENS ..oo.oiiiiriiiiitieri ettt st et steeb e et et s e ee st esaarnan (2.4) 3.6 (0.6)
Net unrealized investment GAIMS ........cocovereiierieieiertseeere st nree e seseeenne § 5183 $ 180.1 $§ 1146
Net unrealized INVeSIMENt ZAINS ........ccooveevieeriiereee et enne e $ 5103 $ 180.1 $§ 1146
Applicable policyholder dividend obligation.............ccccovveeviivenienerecinennennns 369.4 108.8 --
Applicable deferred policy acquisition COStS ..........covveervereeenne. s 95.9 (28.5) 116.6
Applicable deferred income taxes (benefit)..........ccovrvevimnenirennccerin 15.8 339 (0.7)
Offsets to net unrealized iNvestment Eains .......ccooeveerererernreeereseeseeeeeaeneens 481.1 114.2 115.9
Net unrealized investment gains (fosses)

included in other comprehensive income (Note 11) wocovvivvercrnivvennninnn, $ 292 $ 659 $ (1.3
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Cash flows

Investment purchases, sales, repayments and maturities for the years 2002, 2001 and 2000 follow:

2002 2008 2000
Debt Security PUrChases ......coccveeiriererieirriceneri s s s $ (4,730.0) $ (3,531.3) $(1,775.4)
Equity SECUItY PUICHASES ......cvvvieireiciereiire ettt eren e eienenennas (59.8) (72.8) (130.5)
Venture capital partnership investments..........coooevvvirvnrnencniennecnennns (43.0) (47.0) (96.9)
Affiliate equity and debt security purchases...........ccoceeeernrreecrieronnnnnne (28.0) (46.8) --
Other invested asset purchases ......covecvvvcirenec s (73.0) (57.1) (44.7)
Policy 10an advances, Net.........cccovrvirrireeceeenrieeeeeeeicrininreneierenenenes (23.7) (67.0) (62.7)
Investment PUECHASES . ......ccooocviiiiinc s $ (4,957.5) 5 (3,822.0) $(2,118.2)
Debt securities SALES.....oiviiiiieririire et $ 18076 $ 1,2194 $ 9219
Debt securities maturities and repayments ..........cocovevererrereerecrenierenenss 1,305.6 824.6 526.0
Equity SECUTItY SAlES ......cvcvceiiiiceiiiiir e 139.3 114.6 5154
Mortgage loan maturities and principal repayments...........cococovvrececennnn 67.7 58.7 126.6
Venture capital partnership capital distributions ..........ccccocoevvencereniennn 28.5 30.7 379
Real estate and other invested assets sales.........cccoevvrromvvniveeiinninenirennns 69.9 36.8 26.6
Investment sales, repayments and maturities ... $ 3,418.6 $ 2,284.8 $ 2,1544

The maturities of debt securities and mortgage loans, by contractual sinking fund payment and maturity, at year-
end 2002 are summarized in the following table. Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because
borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties, we may
have the right to put or sell the obligations back to the issuers and mortgage loans may be refinanced. We did not
refinance any mortgage loans during 2002 or 2001.

Affiliate
Debt Mortgage Debt
Securities Loans Securities Tetal
Due in one year or 1e8S .......coveevrveeeiceiieieeerererereerenes $ 1,045.7 $ 84.9 $ 375 $ 1,168.1
Due after one year through five years.......c...cccevvvnene 3,6164 240.5 21.2 3,878.1
Due after five years through ten years.........cccecervrenee. 2,663.6 73.5 -- 2,737.1
Due after ten years.......c.cccecnneeericrcnicecnninesinens e 3,860.9 69.9 -- 3,930.8
TOLAR ..ot et $14,186.6 $ 468.8 $ 58.7 $11,714.1

6. Financing Activities
Stock purchase contracts

We have recorded our stock purchase contract obligation as a liability on our balance sheet at estimated
settlement amount. This liability includes a premium representing the fair value of a net purchased option
contained in the purchase contract. The fair value of the premium on the net purchased option is being amortized
over the life of the purchase contract. Contract adjustment payments on the purchase contracts are recorded in
other expenses in our statement of income.

In November 2002, we issued 3,622,500 stock purchase contracts in a public offering at $38.10 per contract
($138.0 aggregate) and raised net proceeds of $133.9. The stock purchase contracts are prepaid forward contracts
issued by us that will be settled in shares of HRH common stock. Under each purchase contract, we will make
quarterly contract adjustment payments at the annual rate of 7.00% of the stated contract amount. In 2002, we
recognized $1.0 in other expenses for accrued contract adjustment payments.

F-27




We are obligated to deliver shares of HRH common stock to holders of the stock purchase contracts in November
2005. The number of HRH common shares that we are obligated to deliver will be based on the volume
weighted-average daily trading price of HRH common stock over the 20-trading day period ending on the third
trading day prior to November 13, 2005. The maximum number of HRH common shares that we are obligated to
deliver, subject to anti-dilution adjustments, is 3,622,500, or one share of HRH common stock per purchase
contract. The minimum number is 2,969,363 shares, or 0.8197 share of HRH common stock per purchase
contract. We have pledged 3,622,500 shares of HRH common stock as coilaterai for our obligations under the
purchase contracts (Note 5).

Indebtedmess

We have recorded indebtedness at unpaid principal balances of each instrument. In connection with our senior
unsecured bond offering, we entered into an interest rate swap agreement on half of the offering amount to reduce
market risks from changes in interest rates. We have recorded the interest rate swap at fair value based on the -
settlement value of the swap. For purposes of fair value disclosures (Note 14), we have determined the fair value
of indebtedness based on contractual cash flows discounted at market rates for surplus notes and on quoted
market prices for bonds and equity units.

Carrying value and fair value of indebtedness at year-end 2002 and 2001 follow:

2602 2001
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
VYalue Yalue Value Value
SUIPIUS NOLES ..ot senrere e $ 1750 $ 1825 $ 1750 $ 1834
BQUity UNIS....ooveeeeirereieirirenceeensieeseesvesesesessnecssssssanes 153.7 156.5 - -
Senior unsecured bonds.......oceevvrievrinieicniirecrre 300.0 259.8 300.0 301.2
Interest rate swap (INote 14).....cocoovevenvnvnecvninccnnnnne 15.6 15.6 (0.8) 0.8)
Bank credit facility .....cooooeeviieveeneneeee e -- -- 125.1 125.1
Total indebledmess .......cooveverieniirineseeenerree e $§ 644.3 $ 6144 $ 593.3 $ 6089

Our surpius notes are an obligation of Phoenix Life and are due December 1, 2006. Interest payments are at an
annual rate of 6.95%, require the prior approval of the Superintendent of Insurance of the State of New York
(Superintendent) and may be made only out of surplus funds which the Superintendent determines to be available
for such payments under New York insurance law. The notes have no early redemption provisions. New York -
insurance law provides that the notes are not part of the legal liabilities of Phoenix Life.

In December 2002, we issued 6,147,500 of 7.25% equity units in a public offering at $25 per unit for gross
proceeds of $153.7 (net proceeds of $149.1). Each equity unit is composed of an unsecured, subordinated note
and a purchase contract (equity forward on cur common stock collateralized by the note). The notes bear interest
at an annual rate of 6.6% and $25 principal amount per note is initially due in February 2008. On or after
November 2005 the notes will be remarketed as senior unsecured obligations and the interest rate will be reset at
that time. The holders of the purchase contracts will be paid a contract adjustment payment at a rate of 0.65% per
year and have agreed to purchase a minimum 2.8343 shares (17,423,859 shares aggregate) and a maximum of
3.4578 shares (21,256,826 shares aggregate) of our common stock, depending on its guoted market price, in
February 2006. The present value of the future contract adjustment payments of $2.8 has been recorded as a
charge to paid-in capital.

The senior unsecured bonds were issued in December 2001 for gross proceeds of $300.0 (net proceeds of $290.6)
and mature in January 2032. We pay interest at an annual rate of 7.45%. We may redeem any or all of the bonds
from January 2007 at a redemption price equal to 100% of principal plus accrued and unpaid interest to the
redemption date. We also have the right to redeem the bonds in whole in certain circumstances if we are unable
to deduct interest paid on the bonds.
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In December 2002, we closed on a new $100, 364-day unfunded unsecured senior revolving credit facility. This
facility replaced our $375.0 credit facility, which was terminated upon the pay-down of a $125.0 outstanding
balance. We unconditionally guarantee any loans under the new facility to Phoenix Life and PXP. Base rate
loans would bear interest at the greater of our lead bank's prime commercial rate or effective funds rate plus 0.5%.
Eurodollar rate loans would bear interest at LIBOR plus an applicable margin. Credit facility covenants require
us to maintain a minimum consolidated stockholders’ equity of $1,700, a maximum consolidated debt-to-capital
ratio of 30% and, for Phoenix Life, a minimum risk-based capital ratio of 225%. We were in compliance with all
credit facility covenants at year-end 2002. There were no borrowings on this credit line in 2002.

Future minimum annual principal payments on indebtedness at year-end 2002 follow: 2006, $175.0; 2008,
$153.7; and 2032, $300.0.

At year-end 2002, we had $10.6 of standby letters of credit primarily to cover any potential losses on certain
reinsurance.

Interest expense, on our indebtedness including amortization of debt issuance costs, for the years 2002, 2001 and
2000 follows:

2062 2001 2069
SUIPIUS NOLES .ovevceeeiciiice ettt ere et e erereere s $ 122 $ 122 $ 122
EQUIEY URIES ..ottt e et bbb 0.3 -- --
Senior unsecured BONAS .........cocvvveiiiiiiniiiine e 15.5 0.3 --
Bank credit facility and other indebtedness..........c..ooooevevieieiiiencccvisnnennes 34 14.8 20.5
Total INterest EXPEIISE ....c.eerrreirieierireeeerititereeeeenstesebe s sens s esesseseeesnesreeasenas $ 314 § 273 $ 327
Interest expense PAid...........cccoeeviiiveciiiee s $ 326 $ 323 5 341

Common stock and stock repurchase program

We have authorization for the issuance of 1,000,000,000 shares of our common stock. In connection with our
demutualization and initial public offering, we issued 106,376,510 common shares (56,178,610 shares to our
policyholders in exchange for their interests in the mutual company and 50,195,900 shares in sales to the public).
After the repurchase of 12,330,000 common shares as treasury stock, we had 94,044,510 shares outstanding at
year-end 2002. We also had 28,130,305 common shares reserved for issuance at that date under the purchase
contracts included with our equity units (21,256,826 shares), our stock option plans (6,300,000 shares) and our
restricted stock units (573,477 shares).

We have authorization from our board of directors to repurchase an additional 670,000 shares of our common
stock. At year-end 2002, we had repurchased 12,330,000 shares of our common stock at an average price of
$15.83 per share, including 7,871,500 shares in 2002 at an average price of $16.44 per share.

State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Company currently owns of record more than five percent of our

outstanding common stock. In 2002, our subsidiaries paid $10.7 as compensation for the sale of their insurance
and annuity products to entities that were either subsidiaries of State Farm or owned by State Farm employees.
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7. Demutualization and Closed Block

Phoenix Home Life Mutual Insurance Company demutualized on June 25, 2001 by converting from a mutual life
insurance company to a stock life insurance company, became a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Phoenix
Companies, Inc. and changed its name to Phoenix Life Insurance Company (Phoenix Life).

Effective June 30, 2001, we adopted a new accounting pronouncement, which provided guidance on accounting
by insurance enterprises for demutualization, including the emergence of earnings from and the financial
presentation of the closed block established in connection with the demutualization. The pronouncement specifies
that closed block assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses should be displayed with all other assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses of the insurance enterprise based on the nature of the particuiar item, with appropriate
disclosures relating to the closed block. We recorded a charge on adoption of $30.3 tc equity representing the
establishment of the policyholder dividend obligation along with the corresponding effect on deferred policy
acquisition costs and deferred income taxes.

As specified in the plan of reorganization, Phoenix Life established a closed block as of December 31, 1999 to
preserve over time the reasonable dividend expectations of individual life and annuity policyholders for which
dividends were currently being paid or were expected to be paid under the then-current dividend scale. The
closed block comprises a defined limited group of policies and a defined set of assets, is governed by a set of
operating rules and it will continue in effect as long as any policy in the closed block remains in effect.

Phoenix Life allocated assets to the closed block in an amount we believed sufficient to produce cash flows

" which, together with anticipated premiums and other revenues from the policies inciuded in the closed block, we
expect to support payment of obligations relating to these policies. These obligations include the payment of
claims, certain expenses, taxes and policyholder dividends, which we estimated to continue at rates in effect for
2600.

We use the same accounting principles to account for the participating policies included in the closed block as we
used prior to the date of demutualization. The only accounting policy difference is the establishment of the
policyholder dividend obligation, described below.

The closed block assets, including future assets from cash flows generated by the assets and premiums and other
revenues from the policies in the closed block, will benefit only holders of the policies in the closed block. The
principal cash flow items that affect the amount of closed block assets and liabilities are premiums, net investment
income, investment purchases and sales, policyholder benefits, policyholder dividends, premium taxes and income
taxes. The principal income and expense items excluded from the closed block are management and maintenance
expenses, commissions, investment income and realized investment gains and losses on investments held outside
the closed block that support the closed block business. All of these excluded income and expense items enter into
the determination of total gross margins of closed block policies for the purpose of amortization of deferred
policy acquisition costs.

In our financial statements, we present closed block assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses together with all
other assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Within closed block liabilities, we have established a
policyholder dividend obligation to record an additional liability to closed block policyholders for cumulative
. closed block earnings in excess of expected amounts calculated at the date of demutualization. These closed
block earnings will not inure to stockholders, but will result in additional future dividends to closed block
policyholders unless otherwise offset by future performance of the closed block that is less favorable than
expected.

As closed block liabilities exceed closed block assets, we have a net closed block liability at each period-end.
This net liability represents the maximum future earning contribution to be recognized from the closed block and
the change in this net liability each period is in the earnings contribution recognized from the closed block for the
period. To the extent that actual cash flows differ from amounts anticipated, we may adjust policyhoider
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dividends. If the closed block has excess funds, those funds will be available only to the closed block
policyholders. However, if the closed block has insufficient funds to make policy benefit payments that are
guaranteed, the payments will be made from assets outside of the closed block.

Summarized information on closed block assets and liabilities at year-end 2002 and 2001 and inception
(December 31, 1999) and closed block revenues and expenses, changes in the policyholder dividend obligation
and cash flows, all for the cumulative period from inception to year-end 2002, the year 2002 and from the date of
demutualization (June 25, 2001) to year-end 2001, follow:

2002 2001 Inception
DEbt SECUTTEIES ..oivvireriieieeie et e et ete e e sraesseereasaesveeeaeersesseereesesans $ 6,418.0 $ 5,739.5 $ 4,773.1
POLICY LOANS ...oveiieciicete et et 1,399.0 1,407.1 1,380.0
MOItZAGE 108NS ..ottt e 373.2 386.5 399.0
Venture capital partnerships .......cccocoveereenecrinie e 0.8 -- --
Total closed block INVESTMENES....cc.viiivieeiirie it s s 8,191.0 7,533.1 6,552.1
Cash and cash equivalents .........ocvrieeeieeerni e 200.2 176.6 --
Accrued INVeStMENt INCOME ....ccvevevierirrrireiieeerrereeteeeresresnssreesreseeeavesenns 110.9 125.6 106.8
Premiums 1eceivable....oooviiiiii s 421 41.1 352
Deferred INCOME taXES ....eovviiveerieirireeeesireere et ste e e etbe e eee e 402.7 392.8 3894
Other closed bloCK aSSELS.........ccvvvevieriiiririeeniiereecise et 452 18.0 6.2
Total closed BIOCK ASSELS.......ccceiiiiiiieririiiie e 8,992.1 8,287.2 7,089.7
Policy liabilities and aceruals .......cooovvveecviniiiiciniieic e 9,449.0 9,150.2 8,301.7
Policyholder dividends payable...........coovvveveniiienieineiirieceeieeee e 363.4 3573 3251
Policyholder dividend obligation..........ccoevveccnnniriverniciecceeec e 5473 167.2 -
Other closed block Habilities ......coveeviiiiieieiiiiiereecc e 24.2 48.8 12.3
Total closed block Habilities...........cooceerviniieec e 16,383.9 9,723.5 8.639.1
Excess of closed block Habilities over closed block assets................... $ 1,391.8 $ 1,436.3 $ 1,5494
Cumulative 2002 2001
PLOIMIIUMIS 1. eve ettt ettt ettt e e sttt s s b s ee et et et erseseeresen b eneenenreans $ 3,238.0 $ 1,043.2 $§ 5657
Net INVESIMENT INCOIMIE .ovvvviiecieeeeiieeeeiieeeerrrie e et e reereeererestessereessseeesas 1,638.1 562.0 281.1
Net realized investment 10SSES. .....cccccivrireiiiiienccrenice e, (79.7) (49.3) (18.4)
TOLAl FEVEMUES .....ueeiveitieieieiee ettt s etr e et esberaeeeaes s e ebeeeneeens 4,796.4 1,555.9 828.4
Policy benefits, excluding dividends ...............ccoevviniveecninnienicecceens 3,302.5 1,079.4 580.0
Policyholder dividends ..........ccccocevivvrninneeiiicnicin e 1,153.0 390.0 190.8
Additional policyholder dividend obligation provision.........ccecccecnvnenee 239 10.7 13.2
Other OPETAtING EXPENSES.....eiviererririreeriearearentirarerteterearesieaseseesssnesesssaneas 39.0 10.3 6.1
Total benefits and eXPenSeSs...........c.eeevriiiiieieireree et . 4,518.4 1,490.4 790.1
Closed block contribution to income before income taxes..........c.c..c..... 278.0 65.5 383
ApplIcable INCOME TAXES......vecerierereiiriee ettt 97.7 22.6 13.4
Closed block contribution t0 IRCOME........c..cocoeevivreir e $ 1806.3 $ 42.9 $ 24.9
Unrealized inVeStMENt ZaINS.......covvivererimiensiiiioienisiesreseeeeseesesessssnsnens § 4782 $ 3694 § 38.5
Revenue in excess of benefits and eXpenses........coaneecneninaenees 69.1 10.7 13.2
Revenue in excess of benefits and expenses ($45.2) and
unrealized investment gains ($70.3) charges to retained earnings......... -- -- 115.5
Policyholder dividend obligation, beginning of period .......ccoevenrrevennn. -- 167.2 --
Policyholder dividend obligation, end of period .............cccccceveinnne. § 5473 § 5473 § 167.2

In addition to the closed block assets, we hold assets outside the closed block in support of closed block liabilities.
We recognize investment earnings on these invested assets, less deferred policy acquisition cost amortization and
allocated expenses, as an additional source of earnings to our stockholders.
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8. Separate Accounts and Investment Trusts

Separate account products are those for which a separate investment and liability account is maintained on behalf
of the policyholder. Investment objectives for these separate accounts vary by fund account type, as outlined in
the applicable fund prospectus or separate account plan of operations. Our separate account products include
variable annuities and variable life insurance contracts.

Separate account assets and liabilities are primarily carried at market value. Deposits, net investment income
and realized investment gains and losses for these accounts are excluded from revenues, and the related liability
increases are excluded from benefits and expenses. Fees assessed to the contractholders for management
services are included in revenues when services are rendered.

Investment trusts are assets held for the benefit of institutional clients which have investments in structured
finance products offered by PXP. Structured finance products include collateralized debt and bond obligations
backed by portfolios of public high yield bonds, emerging market bonds, commercial mortgage-backed and asset-
backed securities and bank loans.

Investment trusts for which PXP is the sponsor and actively manages the assets, and for which there is not a
substantive amount of outside third party equity investment in the trust, are consolidated in the financial
statements. Our financial exposure is limited to our sharve of equity and bond investments in these vehicles and
there are no financial guarantees from us, or recourse to us, for these investment trusts. Asset valuation changes
are directly offset by changes in the corresponding liabilities. Fees are recorded when management services
provided to the trusts are earned and are included in revenues.

2002 2001
Life and Annuity segment SEParate aCCOUNTS........ovrveerurieveriiriererereerererereereese st seneseseseneeens $ 4,131.7 $ 4,769.6
Corporate and Other segment SeParate aCCOUNTS ......ocvvveeriiireeereiririnienesrneseereeresresesnenene 239.5 255.6
TOtal SEPArate ACCOUNLS......co.vviieri ettt ettt n et ne e sanens 4,371.2 5,025.2
PHOETIX CDO T oottt ettt et sttt st et b re s 150.4 160.1
PROENIX CDO T ittt ettt ettt saae bt sttt ebe bbb e e e ennas 377.2 384.7
Phoenix-Mistic 2002-1 CBO ...ociviveiiiiiietiiriitrreet et es e s es s 894.3 -
TOta] INVESIITIENT LIUSTS....viiiviiiirieiiee st iseeeeie i ebeeste e e taesese e areeeraeenbaessbessssesseeesrseennsessssenasneses 1,421.9 544.8
Total separate account assets and Investment trUSES .......covvceeivveerieieiien e $ 5,793.1 $ 5,570.%

Variable interest entities

A new accounting standard was issued in January 2003 that interprets the existing standards on consolidation. It
clarifies the application of standards of consolidation to certain entities in which equity investors do not have the
characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its
activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties (variable interest entities). Variable
interest entities are required to be consolidated by their primary beneficiaries if they do not effectively disperse
risks among all parties involved. The primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity is the party that absorbs a
majority of the entity’s expected losses, receives a majority of its expected residual returns, or both, as a result of
holding variable interests. As required, on February 1, 2003, we adopted the new standard for variable interest
entities created after January 31, 2003 and for variable interest entities in which we obtain an interest after
January 31, 2003. We will adopt the new standard on July 1, 2003 for variable interest entities in which we hold a
variable interest that we acquired before February 1, 2003. We are currently evaluating the effect of the adoption
on our consolidated financial statements.

We are involved with various entities in the normal course of business that may be deemed to be variable interest
entities and, as a result, we may hold interests in those entities. We serve as the investment advisor to eight
collateralized bond obligations (CBOs) that were motivated by bond market arbitrage opportunities, including the
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three in the table above. The eight CBOs have aggregate assets of $3 billion that are invested in a variety of fixed
income securities and purchased from third parties. The CBOs reside in bankruptcy remote special purpose
entities in which we neither provide recourse or guarantees. Our exposure under the new standard stems from our
debt and equity investments in these CBOs in which affiliates earn advisory fees to manage the CBO portfolios.
Our maximum exposure to loss with respect to the CBOs is $86.1 at year-end.

9. Income Taxes

We recognize income tax expense or benefit based upon amounts reported in the financial statements and the
provisions of currently enacted tax laws. We allocate income taxes to income, other comprehensive income and
additional paid-in capital, as applicable.

We recognize current income lax assets and liabilities for estimated income taxes refundable or payable based on
the current year’s income tax returns. We recognize deferred income tax assets and liabilities for the estimated
future income tax effects of temporary differences and carryforwards. Temporary differences are the differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases, as well as the
timing of income or expense recognized for financial reporting and tax purposes of items not related to assets or
liabilities. If necessary, we establish valuation allowances to reduce the carrying amount of deferred income tax
assets to amounts that are more likely than not to be realized. We periodically review the adequacy of these
valuation allowances and record any rveduction in allowances through earnings.

The allocation of income taxes to elements of comprehensive income (loss) and between current and deferred for
- the years 2002, 2001 and 2000 follows:

2002 2001 2000
Income taxes (benefit) applicable to: A
Continuing OPerationS......cocooviiiiieniicni e e $ (56.8) $ (106.1) $ 603
Discontinued OPErations ........e.ccvveevererirmsieeieeriereeseeser e a s seesnees -- - (5.9
Cumulative effect of accounting changes........c.coocevvvveccencnnriinirnenn, (11.4) (35.2) -
Net income (I08S) .......coovirririieeiiei et sr e e (68.2) $ (141.3) $ 544
Other comprehensive IMCOME ........ccvcviirvieeveirineene et e seene e 14.2 31.2 (2.3)
Comprehensive income (1088)...........covviiiiiiicrencine e 3  (54.0) $ (110.1) $ 521
CUITENL ..o er ettt sb s et e bbb s e as $ (14.4) $ (582) $ 1232
DEfEITed . ....cviieieireie ettt (39.6) (51.9) (71.1)
Income taxes (benefit) applicable to comprehensive income. ............. $ (54.09) $ (110.1) 52.1
Income taxes paid (received) $ (12.3) § 72.0) $ 1358

For the years 2002, 2001 and 2000, the effective federal income tax rates applicable to income from continuing
operations differ from the 35.0% statutory tax rate. Items giving rise to the differences and the effects are as
follow:
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2002 2001 2060
Income taxes (benefit) at statutory rate................ vt ettt § (56.0) $ (82.7) § 592
Tax advantaged INVESIMENt INCOME.....c...ovveerereeierererrecirsereeererennrereens (12.6) (7.2) 6.7)
Non-deductible intangible asset amortization and impairments.............. 19.5 32 2.7
Minority interest in income of subsidiaries ........ccccovevivvrinicneiireinns 4.1 (2.5) (2.0)
Demutualization EXPENSES .....c.cocvvvereereriiriii et 0.2 7.1 --
OHhET, MO .. e va et et ca e e see s s e reennes 3.8) 3.0) 3.3
Differential earnings (mutual life insurance company equity tax}........... -- (21.0) 10.4
Income taxes (benefit) applicable to continuing operations............... $ (56.8) $ (106.1) $ 603
Effective income tax (benefit) rates........ooceeevriiiinneinne e (35.5)% (44.9% 35.6%

Deferred income tax assets (liabilities) attributable to temporary differences at year-end 2002 and 2001 follow:

Deferred income tax assets:

Future policyholder DENefIts .. ...coovvoiriiiiiieiiiie ettt caa e
Unearned premiums / deferred TeVENUES ......c.vovvieieriiceniiciiiiie s
Policyholder dividend 0bligation..........ccocuveveerriniinenciicniee et sesesere e
EmPployee Denefits ..o.ooi i s e
INTANGIDIE ASSELS. ...iitiiiieiiiieiiei ettt e ettt et e e er e bbb
IVESTIMCIIS vo.eoeoeeeeeoeveareossesiosseresesesarcanssesss s saee e ssesesseeseaseaesaessssaesesresssassssensaessassnsrenas
Net operating 10ss Carryover DENEILS ....c...covvvveiviriiirierie e
Foreign tax credits CarryoVer BENETILS .. ...ovviiiieieiiiie et nieeieeae s sa e b e ecee b seen e seans

Gross deferred InCOME T3X ASSEES .. vvvivvrveerrrcirrirmriurorirorerrrrcrerreinrisesssssesssirsnnmssrssosssriceses
Deferred tax liabilities:

Deferred policy aCqUISITION COBES...uueriiirutriiierteeririrrererccterietsteresrasre st stesesre et e seerenessserene
LR £ 1115 11 TR O T OO SO PO SR URU PR OTURTUPPU
Investment management CONMTACES.....c.cccvvviierviericriiiiien e e
611111 U U U U TOUU U PP TSN
Gross deferred income tax Babilties. ...
- Deferred IMCOTIE TBX ASSEL ..viiiiiiiiieeiie e sttt s e eee e e stresscenne s sabeanreeeersasneressaneseseerns

2002 2601
$ 190.3 $ 207.8
129.3 133.6
113.3 16.3
100.6 84.6
20.5 5.2
93.3 68.7
347 -
7.0 6.9
406 30.5
(6.9) (6.9)
722.7 546.7
(282.1) (234.1)
(283.4) (194.7)
(100.0) (109.6)
(15.8) (6.5)
(681.3) (584.9)
$ 414 $ 18

We have elected to file a consolidated federal income tax return for 2002 and prior years. Within the consolidated
tax return, we are required by Internal Revenue Service regulations to segregate the entities into two groups: life
insurance companies and non-life insurance companies. We are limited as to the amount of any operating losses
from one group that can be offset against taxable income of the other group. These limitations affect the amount

of any operating loss carryforwards that we have now or in the future.

At year-end 2002, we had net operating losses of $99.1 for federal income tax purposes of which $1.3 expires in
2011, $1.3 expires in 2012, $24.6 expires in 2015, $15.6 expires in 2016 and $56.2 expires in 2017. The
operating losses are primarily attributable to the life insurance group of subsidiaries. We believe that the tax

benefits of these losses will be fully realized before their expiration. As a result, no valuation allowance has been

recorded against the deferred income tax asset resulting from the net operating losses.

At year-end 2002, we had foreign tax credit carryover totaling $7.0, of which $6.9 is scheduled to expire in 2003
and $0.1 expires in 2006. We have recorded a valuation allowance against the deferred tax assets related to the
foreign tax credits schedule to expire in 2003. We expect to realize the benefits of the remaining foreign tax
credits.
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With the exception of certain foreign tax credits, we have determined, based on our earnings and projected future
taxable income, that it is more likely than not that deferred income tax assets at year-end 2002 and 2001 will be
realized.

10. Employee Benefit Plans and Employment Agreeﬁﬁenﬁs

Stock options

We have stock option plans under which we grant options for a fixed number of common shares to employees,
non-employee directors and certain insurance agents. As a public company prior to January 2001, PXP also had
similar plans. Our options have an exercise price equal to the market value of the shares at the date of grant.

The current accounting standard establishes a fair value based method of accounting for stock-based
compensation plans; however, it permits us to continue to apply the accounting provisions of a previous standard
if we provide certain disclosures. These disclosures are pro forma net income and earnings per share as if we
had applied the fair value method. We account for share option grants in accordance with the previous standard,
as did PXP, and we have included below the pro forma disclosure required by the current standard.

In June 2002, we granted options to employees and non-employee directors. The employee options vest over a
three-year period while the directors’ options vested immediately. No options may be exercised until after June
26, 2003, the second anniversary of our initial public offering. All options terminate ten years from date of grant.
The employee option plan authorized the issuance of options up to 5.0% of the total number of common stock
shares outstanding immediately after the initial public offering in June 2001 (5,250,000) plus an additional 1%, or
1,050,000 shares, for PXP officers and employees, less the number of share options issued under the directors’
plan. The directors’ option plan authorized the issuance of options up to 0.5% (525,000) of the total number of
common stock shares outstanding immediately after the initial public offering in June 2001, plus 500,000 shares.
PXP granted options to its employees and directors to purchase shares of its common stock at an option price of
not less than 85% of the fair value of the common stock at the time of grant. Options granted under the PXP plan
also vested over a three-year period.

Stock option activity by number of common shares and weighted-average exercise price for the years 2002
(Phoenix) and 2001 and 2000 (PXP) follows:

Phoenix PXP
2002 2001 2000
Number Price Number Price Nuymber Price
Outstanding, beginning of year....... - $ - 7,007,577 $§ 775 7,927,875 $ 775
Granted ........cocovveverennneenieeinirnnes 4,456,906 16.20 -- -- 665,193 7.54
Exercised .....ccoovevvverrievniiieenseenns -- L -- -- (893,758) 7.42
Canceled .......ccooovvvenniinnicennerenis - - (7,007.444) 7.75 (100) 7.75
Forfeited ....coccovvveerenvniiee e (47,348) 16.20 (133) 7.75 (691,633) 7.89
Qutstanding, end of year.............. 4,409,558 $ 16.20 - 5 - 7,007,577 $ 7.75

In connection with our purchase of the minority interest in PXP (Note 4), PXP recognized compensation expense
of $57.0 in January 2001 related to PXP’s payment for the cancellation of all outstanding options; holders of
options were paid an amount equal to the difference between the converted value of the options ($111.9) and their
exercise price ($54.9).

Unaudited pro forma earnings and earnings per share as if we and PXP had applied the fair value method of
accounting for stock-based compensation for the years 2002 (Phoenix) and 2001 and 2000 (PXP):
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2002 2001 20608

Income (loss) from continuing operations, as 1ePOTtEd.........vucceevrereereererreeerenns $ (1157 $ (137.3) $ 948
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in

reported net income, net of applicable income faxes.........ccocoevevinniiinnnnn -- -- --
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined

under fair value method for all awards, net of applicable income taxes......... 6.5 2.6 0.8
Unaudited pro forma income (loss) from continuing operations................ $ (122.2) $ (139.9) $ 54.0
Basic and diluted earnings per share; as 1eported ......cooovveeereverrnrerennrcsnvnnnens {1.18) § (13D $ 091
Pro forma basic and diluted earnings per share .........cocooovoveerevecirnnnesceenens $ (1.25) $§ (1.33) $ 090

The fair values 'of options granted during 2002 and 2000 were $8.18 and $2.50 per share, respectively; both
estimated using the Black-Scholes option valuation model with the parameters stated below.” Of the 2002 pro
forma expense, $4.2 relates to options that were fully earned at year-end 2002; there will be no additional pro
forma expense recognition for those cptions.

The pro forma adjustments relating to options granted are based on a fair value method using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model. Valuation and related assumption information used for the Phoenix options granted in
2002 include key variables: expected volatility of 34.9%, risk-free interest rate of 5.5% and common share
dividend yield of 0.9%. Valuation and related assumption information used for the PXP options granted in 2000
include key variables: expected volatility of 27.7%, risk-free interest rate of 6.7% and common share dividend
yield of 2.66%. ’

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of options that have
no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the input of highly
subjective assumptions including the expected share price volatility. Because our share options have
characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and because changes in the subjective input
assumptions can materiaily affect the fair value estimate, especiaily in a security traded for only a short time, in
our opinion the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable measure of the fair value of our share
options. Despite these concerns, the Black-Scholes model was used to develop the pro forma amounts presented
above. '

A new standard was issued which amends an existing standard on accounting for stock-based compensation. The
new standard provides methods of transition for a voluntary change to fair value accounting for stock-based
compensation. It also requires annual and quarterly disciosures about the method of accounting for stock-based
compensaticn and tabular information about the effect of the method of accounting for stock-based compensation.
We will adopt fair value accounting for stock-based compensation in 2003 using the prospective method of
transition provided by the new standard, which will result in expense recognition for the award of stock options
after December 31, 2002,

Restricted stock units and restricted stock
We record deferred compensation for the fair value of restricted common share awards and present deferred

compensation as a separate, offsetting component of stockholders’ equity. We recognized compensation expense
over the vesting period of the restricted common shares.

During the third quarter of 2002, we awarded 573,477 restricted stock umits valued at $13.95 per share. The
expense of $8.0 associated with the award was recognized in 2002 with a corresponding credit to additional paid-
in capital. The restriction period for this award ends June 25, 2006, at which time shares of our common stock
will be issued to settle the restricted stock units obligations.

Prior to 2001, PXP issued restricted shares of its common stock to certain of its officers. An expense of $2.4
associated with these awards was recognized in 2000. In connection with our purchase of the minority interest in
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PXP, all PXP restricted stock shares at year-end 2000 became fully vested in January 2001. PXP recognized non-
recurring compensation expense of $1.5 in January 2001 as a result of the change in the restricted stock vesting
provisions.

Restricted stock and stock units activity by number of units or common shares and average market price for the
years 2002 (Phoenix) and 2001 and 2000 (PXP) follow:

Phoenix PXP
2002 2001 2000
Unmits Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding, beginning of year -- $ - 605,040 $ 671 291,237 $ 8.08
Awarded ......ooovvvereeiiiree e 573,477 13.95 -- - 467,382 6.31
Vested ..o -- -- (604,473) 6.71 (127,612) 8.10
Forfeited ......oooveveiviivieiiiirececereeee - -- (567) - 7.63 (25,967) 8.02
QOutstanding, end of year..................... 573,477 $ 1395 -- $ - 605,040 $ 6.71

Management restructuring expense and employment agreements

We have entered into agreements with certain key executives of both Phoenix Life and PXP that will, in certain
circumstances, provide separation benefits upon the termination of the executive’s employment by the company
for reasons other than death, disability, cause or retirement, or by the executive for “good reason,” as defined in
the agreements. For most of these executives, the agreements provide this protection only if the termination
occurs following (or is effectively connected with) the occurrence of a change of control, as defined in the
agreements.

We recorded a non-recurring expense of $39.1 ($25.4 after income taxes) in 2002 primarily in connection with
organizational and employment-related costs of which $12.0 ($7.8 after income taxes) related to our Investment
Management segment. In the fourth quarter of 2002, we recorded an additional non-recurring expense of $4.3
($3.1 after income taxes) primarily associated with a work force reduction commitment of which $0 9 ($0.6 after
income taxes) related to our Investment Management segment.

Pension and other post-empioyment benefits
We provide our employees with post-employment benefits that include retirement benefits, through pension and

savings plans, and other benefits, including health care and life insurance. The cost of post-employment benefits
recognized and the underlying principal rates and assumptions used for the years 2002, 2001 and 2000 follow:

2002 2001 2009

Cost components:

Recurring pension benefit cost (credit)......coceevnvvivrrirvninncirsecens $ 152 $ @1 $ (5.0
Recurring other post-retirement benefit COStS.......cooovviiieennccnircccnn 4.2 39 43
SaVINGS PIANS COS.....cciriiiiiriiiiriieeee i et 4.9 3.5 38
Other post-employment benefit cost (credit) .......coevrericicerirenencane e -- 0.4 0.7
Total continuing operations reCurring COSt ........oveverecrerrirreirieneionaennes 24.3 57 24
Total non-recurring and discontinued operations cost.........c.cccccvnrevnnces 0.6 19.4 (1.2)
Total pension and other post-employment benefit cost..........c......... $ 249 $ 251 $ 12
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2002 2001 2640

Projected benefit obligation disCOUNt TatE .......coveeevererecnecriersennennene 6.5% 7.0% 7.5%
Future compensation iNCrease Tate.........oovvereerrrrecnenveresninieesenenenene 3.5% 4.0% 4.5%
Pension plan assets long-term rate of return.............ccooeeiicnineiennn, 8.5% 9.0% 8.0%
Deferred investment gain/loss amortization corridor ........ccccocivviviernrenens 5.0% 5.0% 10.0%
Future health care cost increase rate, age 64 and younger............cc.co.e... 10.0% 5.5% 7.5%
Future health care cost increase rate, age 65 and older.................ccovee. 12.0% 5.5% 7.5%

We recognize pension and other post-retirement benefit costs and obligations over the employees’ expected
service periods by discounting an estimate of aggregate benefits. We estimate aggregate benefits by using
assumptions for employee turnover, future compensation increases, rates of return on pension plan assets and
Sfuture health care costs. We recognize an expense for differences between actual experience and estimates over
the average future service period of participants. We recognize an expense for our contributions to employee and
agent savings plans at the time employees and agents make contributions to the plans. We also recognize the
costs and obligations of severance, disability and related life insurance and health care benefits to be paid to
inactive or former employees after employment but before retirement.

In 2002, 2001 and 2000, we offered special retirement programs under which qualified participants’ benefits
under the employee pension plan were enhanced by adding five years to both the participants’ age and years of
service. As a result of participants’ acceptance of the offers, we recognized non-recurring pension and other post-
retirement benefit costs of $0.6, $23.2 and $4.5 for the years 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively ($0.4, $15.1, and
$2.5, respectively after income taxes). In connection with the relocation of our annuity servicing operations in
2001 and the sale of our group life and health operations in 2000 (Note 13), we recognized a non-recurring
pension cost of $0.6 in 2001 and a discontinued operations pension and other post-retirement benefit credit of
$5.7 (83.7 after income taxes) in 2000. In 2001, we changed the corridor used to amortize deferred actuarial gains
and losses and recognized a non-recurring pension benefit credit for the year 2001 of $4.4 ($2.9 after income
taxes). ‘

Pemsion plams. We have two defined benefit pension plans covering our employees. The employee pension plan,
covering substantially all of our employees, provides benefits up to the amount allowed under the Internal
Revenue Code. The supplemental plan provides benefits in excess of the primary plan. Retirement benefits under
both plans are a function of years of service and compensation.

Components of pension benefit cost for the years 2002, 2001 and 2000 follow:

2002 2001 2800
SIVICE COSEuvrvieraiiriiiritiiiitiieisrereeresesesreebere s sesess e b bessesarbe st et eransaasanesbessesesenes $ 140 $ 121 § 97
TIEETESE COSE..veenrerreirmirii ittt ettt et re e b et ees e 345 324 28.6
Plan assets eXpected TEIUIM ......ccovvverervreeii ettt e s s raeseas (34.5) (39.2) (34.5)
Net (gain) 10SS aMOItiZAtION. ........covivirreriririieeierireie e steneteares e sbesens 1.7 (7.5) (7.6)
Prior service COSt aMOTtIZAION ......cccevverveaiirrreceeeieiesieeieeteeneetrnaesaeteeeanseneees 2.0 2.6 1.3
Net transition asset AMOMtZAtION ......cccuiiivieerniiicsioriniiesinee e reeeeese e (2.5) (2.5 (2.5)
Recurring pension benefit cost (Credit)........ccvvrviininrireercneiininnisienreeeee 15.2 2.1) (5.0)
Special retirement Programs COSt.......ccecvevriivierieerrerrererseretiersessesseesseesseones 0.6 16.5 33
Facility cloSINg COSt.....cooiiiiiiiiirieciener ettt e -- 0.6 --
COTTIAOT AN ..ttt sttt ettt as e e e e eanae -- 4.4) --
Discontinued operations Credit ......cocverieiierieeriecieierieeseeseeinie et sees e -- - (2.8)
Non-recurring and discontinued Operations COSt .......ccccvvvererreeeecreneniene 0.6 12.7 0.5
Pension bemnefit cost (Cre@it).......covcvviiiiininiiiieeee e $ 15.8 S 10.6 $ 4.5

The employee pension plan is funded with assets held in a trust. The assets within the plan include corporate and
government debt securities, equity securities, real estate and venture capital partnerships. The supplemental plan
1s unfunded. Changes in the plans’ assets and projected benefit obligations for the years 2002 and 2001 follow:
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Employee Plan Supplemental Plan

2002 2001 2002 2001
Assets:
Plan assets’ actual TEtUN ........ccooveeverviviecreiceee e $ (43.2) $ (284 $8 - 3} -
Employer contributions ..........cocecvvieeenninnenn oo -- -- 4.2 5.2
Participant benefit payments.......coccececriniie e 242y (21.3) 4.2) (5.2)
Change in plan @SSELS.....c..ecivirviriecrnieneninreeet et (67.4) (49.7) -- --
Plan assets, be@inning of Year........coc.cccoovvvicvveieiceniieer i 395.1 4448 -- --
Plan assets, end of year ... $ 3277 $ 395.1 § - § -
Projected benefit obligation:
Service and interest oSt CCIUAL .......cvivevivireereiiinieeresneerese s $ (36.35) § (335 $ (12.0) § (11.0)
Actuarial gain (l0SS)........cvvireeiiiiennnre st (23.2) 0.2 (17.8) (23.7)
Plan amendments.....c.ocooeecveiiieririeieercees et (11.8) 4.3) 19.1 (14.5)
CUTTAILMENTS c.vviveviririirie ettt seeb e srenas - (12.2) (0.6) (2.2)
Participant benefit payments.........cccovevreeercererineneseccnerneenns 24.2 21.3 4.2 5.2
Change in projected benefit obligation........cccocvovcivininnennnee 47.3) (28.5) 7.1 (46.2)
Projected benefit obligation, beginning of year............cccocuennn. (362.8) (334.3) (119.8) (73.6)
Projected benefit obligation, end of year...............cooeevvvenes $ (410.1) $ (362.8) $ (126.9) $ (119.8)

In addition to the liability for the excess of accrued pension cost of each plan over the amount contributed to the
plan, we also recognize an additional liability for any excess of the accumulated benefit obligation of each plan
over the fair value of plan assets. The offset to this additional liability is first recognized as an intangible assel,
which is limited to unrecognized prior service, including any unrecognized net transition obligation. Any
additional offsets are then recognized as an adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income.

The funded status of the plans at year-end 2002 and 2001 follows:

Employee Plan Supplemental Plan
2002 2001 2002 2001
Excess of accrued pension benefit cost
over amount contributed t0 plan .....c.coveevvenveer e $§ 257 § (26.6) $ (73.6) $ (60.9)
Excess of accumulated benefit obligation over plan assets ..... (25.3) -- (37.9) (40.8)
Accrued benefit obligation in other liabilities ...........cc.ccevene. (51.0) (26.6) (111.5) (101.7)
Intangible @sSet ....ooveeiiicniier e 14.2 -- -- 18.6
Minimum pension liability adjustment in
accumulated other comprehensive InCOMe ........ccvvevrnnnenn. 11.1 -= 37.9 22.2
Funding status recognized in balance sheet .........ccc.coovncnins (25.7) (26.6) (73.6) (60.9)
Net unamortized gain (10SS) ....cco.ioeeeriieieirivececriieere s (47.4) 55.4 (54.4) (40.3)
Unamortized prior service (cost) credit .......occceevivrineiennnnn (14.2) (3.9 11 (18.6)
Net unamortized transition @sSet .........coccoeveereeccrneenenicecnennens 4.9 7.4 -- --
Funding status unrecognized in balance sheet ...........c.c.cccc.... (56.7) 58.9 (53.3) (58.9)
Plan assets greater (less) than
projected benefit obligations, end of year .............cocceeenn. $ (82.4) $ 323 $ (126.9) $ (119.8)

At year-end 2002, we estimate minimum funding requirements for the employee pension plan of $138.0 through
2007, including $1.7 in 2003 and $8.6 in 2004.
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Other post-employment benefits. The components of post-retirement health care benefit cost for the years
2002, 2001 and 2000 follow:

2082 2001 2000
SEIVICE COST.vrniirtreiieiii st et ettt sr et onens s st st nebe e $ 20 § 109 $ 22
IIEETESE COSE..ovitiiiiiceie ittt st e ses et et enesees 4.9 4.5 43
Net gain aMOTtIZATION .o.eveveviriririeirirrcic e ne e (2.5) (2.7) (2.2)
Prior service cost AMOTtZAtION .......ccocviivrrciiiinine e e (0.2) 0.2 -
Recurring other post-retirement benefit Cost ......coovivveriinieninrrniine e 4.2 3.9 4.3
Special retirement Program COSE.......covveiiiieiirereerieneerneareresesrenesresaseereone -- 6.7 1.2
Discontinued operations Credit ........cvceverererevieririennienn oo neeresreseeeeiens -- -- 2.9
Non-recurring and discontinued operations cost (credit).........cocccocerernnnns - 6.7 (1.7)
Other post-retirement DeRefit COSt. ... $ 42 $ 10.6 $ 26

Our other post-retirement plans are unfunded and participant benefit payments are represented by employer
contributions. Changes in the plans’ projected benefit obligation for the years 2002 and 2001 follow:

2002 2001
Service and INterest COSt ACCTURH .........covieireiiiirere ettt $ (6.9 $ (64
Actuarial GAIN (J0SS)..cc.iveeuirieetiiir et ettt ettt bt ek bbb e anene (21.3) 3.7
Plan amendiments.......covereoieirieienecee ettt e 16.2 24
CUTLAIIMIENLS 1uveveiviiete ittt et st eb et sb s s e s -- (6.6)
Participant benefit PAYMENLS. .......cocvverriir ittt ettt e e 6.6 5.5
Change in projected benefit obligation........c.covereirriiiiicniircncrr s (5.4) (6.2)
Projected benefit obligations, beginning of Year .........cccovvrvieriinicniiiece v (68.8) (62.6)
Projected benefit obligations, end 0f YEAr..........cccviiiiiiiinn e $ (74.2) $ (68.8)
The funded status of the other post-retirement plans at year-end 2002 and 2001 follows:

2002 2001
Accrued benefit obligation included in other Habilities.........ococvvivvvnnniice e § (106.4) $ (108.7)
Net unamortiZed GAIN........coeeierieerie ettt et a e e e 18.3 42.0
Unamortized prior service (COSS) CIEAItS ..c.vuiirreriririiiiniiiicce ettt s 13.9 2.1)
Funding status unrecognized in balance sheet...........cccooiiiniiiii 32.2 39.9
Plan assets less than projected benefit obligations, end ef year..........ccocooviiveiinnnncne, $ (74.2) $ (68.8)

The health care cost trend rate has a significant effect on the amounts reported. For example, increasing the
assumed health care cost trend rates by one percentage point in each year would increase the accumulated post-
retirement benefit obligation by $3.1 and the annual service and interest cost by $0.4. Decreasing the assumed
health care cost trend rates by one percentage point in each year would decrease the accumulated post-retirement
benefit obligation by $3.0 and the annual service and interest cost by $0.4.

Savings plans. We also sponsor savings plans for our qualified employees and agents. Employees and agents
may contribute a portion of their compensation, subject to certain limitations, to the plans. We contribute an
additional amount, subject to limitation, based on the employee or agent contribution. Our contributions may be
in the form of either our common stock or cash.

11. Other Comprehensive Income

We record unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities, minimum pension liability adjustments in
excess of unrecognized prior service cost, foreign currency translation gains and losses and effective portions of
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the gains or losses on derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges in accumulated other comprehensive
income. Unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities are recorded in other comprehensive
income until the related securities are sold, reclassified or deemed to be impaired. Minimum pension liability
adjustments in excess of unrecognized prior service cost are adjusted or eliminated in subsequent periods to the
extent that plan assets exceed accumulated benefits. Foreign currency translation gains and losses are recorded
in accumulated other comprehensive income until the foreign entity is sold or liquidated or the functional
currency of that entity is deemed to be highly inflationary. The effective portions of the gains or losses on
derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges are reclassified into earnings in the same period in which
the hedged transaction affects earnings. If it is probable that a hedged forecasted transaction will no longer
occur, the effective portions of the gains or losses on derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges are
reclassified into earnings immediately.

Sources of other comprehensive income for the years 2002, 2001 and 2000 follow:

2002 2001 2000
Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net

Gains (losses) on investments................... $ 6773 $ 1377 $ 865 $ 069 $ 2052 $ 576
Gains (losses) on affiliate debt securities . (116.5) (75.7) 110.6 71.9 -- --
Net realized investment gains (losses)

on available-for-sale securities

included in net income........cc.eoevvrreencen. (50.5) (32.8) (17.0) (12.9) _(90.6) (58.9)
Net unrealized investment gains (losses).. 5103 29.2 180.1 65.9 114.6 (1.3)
Net unrealized derivative instruments

ZAINS.cevirereceire et 53 34 7.7 5.0 -- --
Net unrealized foreign currency

translation adjustment ...........cc.coveeenennn. 7.1 1.2 (2.6) (1.7) (7.1) (4.6)
Minimum pension liability adjustment..... (26.8) (17.4) (12.8) {8.3) 2.5 1.6
Other comprehensive income ................... 495.9 3 lo.4 172.4 $ 60.9 110.0 £ “43)
Applicable policyholder

dividend obligation.........cc.ccooeeevrcvennnnen. 369.4 108.8 --
Applicable deferred policy acquisition

COSt AMOTHZALION. ....cveeverirrieeieerereenne, 95.9 (28.5) 116.6
Applicable deferred income taxes (benefit) 14.2 31.2 (2.3)
Offsets to other comprehensive income.... 479.5 111.5 114.3
Other comprehensive income ................ $ 164 $ 609 $§ 43

Components of accumulated other comprehensive income at year-end 2002 and 2001 follows:

2002 2001
Gross Net Gross Net

Unrealized gains on inVESIMENTS .......cceoeiveeeiirenieneerecenieenie s eneeanenes $ 7759 $ 1253 $ 265.6 5 96.1
Unrealized gains on derivative inStruments.........cooceeovecnrerencssncnenenre 13.0 8.4 7.7 5.0
Unrealized currency translation adjustment...........cccoveveivinenecronnenennn, (1.6) (4.4) (8.7 (5.6)
Minimum pension liability adjustment (Note 10)......ccocccevevreviernrenencas (49.0) (31.8) (22.2) (14.4)
Accumulated other comprehensive iIncome...........ccocvvvnevecvorinncecnne. 7383 § 975 2424 $ 8l1.1
Applicable policyholder dividend obligation............cccccvvenreccninnenne. 478.2 108.8

Applicable deferred policy acquisition COStS ........cccvvvvcrrirnimnicnneenens 106.3 10.4

Applicable deferred iInCOmME tAXES........coceverririireiccccne e 56.3 42.1

Offsets to other comprehensive iNCOME.......ccocveeerierviiereceeriiereerrineens 640.8 161.3
Accumulated other comprehensive InCOMmMe ...........ccoovvricninnnnnnene. $ 975 $ 821
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12. Earnings Per Share

We calculate earnings per share (EPS) on two bases: basic and diluted. We calculate basic EPS by dividing
earnings available to common stockholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding
during the period. We calculate diluted EPS similarly except that, if applicable, we adjust earnings to reflect
earnings had the dilutive potential common shares been issued during the period, and we increase the weighted-
average number of shares to include the issuance of the dilutive potential common shares.

Common stock equivalents, including stock options, restricted stock units and equity units, have not been
included in the diluted earnings per share calculation because the effect would be anti-dilutive. If the effect had
been dilutive, there would have been 573,477 common stock equivalent shares from restricted stock units for the
year 2002. The weighted-average effect from the restricted stock units on the year would have been 143,369
common stock equivalent shares. Stock options and equity units were not included in the computation of diluted
earnings per share because the related stock options exercise prices of $15.90 and $16.20 and equity units
threshold appreciation price of $8.8206 were greater than the average market price of the common stock.

The 2001 and 2000 weighted-average shares outstanding is pro forma and is based on the weighted-average
shares outstanding for the period from the demutualization and initial public offering to year-end 2001.

13. Discontinued Operations

During 1999, we discontinued the operations of three of our business segments which in prior years had been
reflected as reportable business segments: reinsurance operations, group life and health operations and real estate
management operations. We sold several operations, had a signed agreement to sell one of the operations and we
implemented plans to withdraw from the remaining businesses. The operating results of discontinued operations
and the gain or loss on disposal are shown in the table below.

During 1999, we placed certain retained group accident and health reinsurance business into run-off. We adopted
a formal plan to stop writing new contracts covering these risks and end the existing contracts as soon as those
contracts would permit. However, we remain liable for claims under those contracts.

We established reserves and reinsurance recoverables for claims and related expenses that we expect to pay on
our discontinued group accident and health reinsurance business. These reserves and reinsurance recoverables are
a net present value amount that is based on currently known facts and estimates about, among other things, the
amount of insured losses and expenses that we believe we will pay, the period over which they will be paid, the
amount of reinsurance we believe we will collect under our finite reinsurance and other reinsurance to cover our
losses and the likely legal and administrative costs of winding down the business.

Total reserves were $35.0 and $60.0 and total reinsurance recoverables were $65.0 and $30.0 at year-end 2002
and 2001, respectively. In addition, in 1999 we purchased finite aggregate excess-of-loss reinsurance to further
protect us from unfavorable results from this discontinued business. The maximum coverage available from our
finite reinsurance coverage is currently $120.0. The amount of our total financial provisions at year-end 2002 was
therefore $90.0, consisting of reserves, less reinsurance recoverables, plus the amount currently available from our
finite aggregate excess-of-loss reinsurance. Based on the most recent information, we did not recognize any
additional reserve provisions during 2002 and 2001. In 2000, we increased reserves by $97.0 (before income
taxes) to reflect expected deteriorating trends in claim experience and higher expenses.

We expect the additional reserves and aggregate excess-of-loss reinsurance coverage to cover the run-off of the
business; however, the nature of the underlying risks is such that the claims may take years to reach the reinsurers
involved. Therefore, we expect to pay claims out of existing estimated reserves for up to ten years as the level of
business diminishes.
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A significant portion of the claims arising from our discontinued group accident and health reinsurance business
arises from the activities of Unicover Managers, Inc. (Unicover). Unicover organized and managed a group, or
pool, of insurance companies (Unicover pool) and certain other facilities, which reinsured the life and health
insurance components of workers' compensation insurance policies issued by various property and casualty
insurance companies. We were a member of the Unicover pool and we terminated our participation in the pool
effective March 1, 1999. Additional information on reinsurance disputes is included in Note 17.

In April 2000, we exited the group life and health business and sold all of the common stock of three subsidiaries
and 97% of the common stock of another subsidiary, which was renamed GE Group Life Assurance Company to
GE Financial Assurance Holdings, Inc. (GE). We retained the remaining 3.0% of that insurer. The sales proceeds
totaled $283.9, with $238.9 in cash and $45.0 in common stock, representing a 3.1% interest in GE Life and
Annuity Assurance Company, a subsidiary of GE. In October 2000, we also sold all of the common stock of two
other life and health subsidiaries to GE. The sales proceeds totaled $2.0. The net gain on the sales of $71.7 is
reported as gain on disposal of discontinued operations. We have the right to put these shares of GE Group Life
Assurance Company and GE Life and Annuity Assurances Company to GE beginning in 2005.

In May 2000, we sold our investment in 50% of the outstanding common stock of a real estate property
management firm, for $6.0. The transaction resulted in a loss of $0.6.

The operating results of discontinued operations and the loss on disposal for the year 2000 are presented below.
There were no additional operating results for the years ended 2002 and 2001. Earnings from discontinued
operations follow:

Group Life Real Estate
Reinsurance and Health Management Total

REVEBEE. ..ottt et S -- 5 1176 $ 8.4 ° $ 1180
Income from discontinued operations

before INCOME tAXES ...vvvveeicririrre e e $ - $ 148 $  (0.3) $ 143
Applicable income taxes (benefit) .......c.ccoceoiieernnniiinnn. -- 5.2 (0.1) 5.1
Inceme from discontinued operations...........coveerieennn $ -- $ 9.6 S {0.2) $ 54
Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operations.............. § (103.0) § 717 $ (0.6) § (319
Applicable income taxes (benefit) .......oooeceerceerririniienennn, (36.0) 25.2 (0.2) (11.0)
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations.................... .S (678 § 465 $ 8.4) 3 (20.9)

We have excluded assets and liabilities of the discontinued operations from the assets and liabilities of continuing
operations and separately identified them on our balance sheet.
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14. Fair Value of Financial Instruments and Derivative Instruments

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of financial instruments at year-end 2002 and 2001 follow:

2002 2061

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Value Value Value Value
Cash and cash equivalents .............coceceervvereeverrnennas ©$§ 1,058.5 $ 1,0585 $ 8155 $ 8155
Debt securities (NOt€ 5) ...cvevverienvrneiereeerenieen 11,841.4 11,8414 9,607.7 9,607.7
Equity securities (Note 5) ....oocvvvvereneennn, e 391.2 391.2 290.9 290.9
Mortgage loans (Note 5).......... ettt s ses e 468.8 488.2 535.8 554.1
Derivative financial instruments..........ccoocooecvcnnnnen 527 527 20.6 20.6
Policy 10ans (INOE 5) c..evveiviievnriereiiiee e eireeearenns 2,195.9 2,367.9 2,172.2 2,252.9
Financial assets .......cccvvvevevervrerernrnnnn, et er e rrreneis $ 16,008.5 $ 16,199.9 $ 13,442.7 $ 13,541.7
Investment contracts (Note 3).....ccoovevvericnvevieirenn.. $ 3,4285 $ 35147 $ 1,5487 $ 1,5494
Stock purchase contracts (NOte 6) .....ccooevevvvineernenens 147.2 147.2 -- --
Indebtedness (NOLE 6).....ccoovvvirnirirorirrieeieerceirnens 644.3 614.4 569.3 608.9
Derivative financial instruments (Note 14)............... 26.5 26.5 10.5 10.5
Fimancial Habiities.........ccoooveeiecniiceieciee e $ 4,246.5 $ 4,302.8 $ 2,I58.5 $ 2,168.8

Derivative instruments

We maintain an overall interest rate risk-management strategy that primarily incorporates the use of interest rate
swaps as hedges of our exposure to changes in interest rates. Our exposure to changes in interest rates primarily
results from our commitments to fund interest-sensitive insurance liabilities, as well as from our significant
holdings of fixed rate financial instruments.

All derivative instruments are recognized on the balance sheet at fair value. Generally, each derivative is
designated according to the associated exposure as either a fair value or cash flow hedge at its inception as we
do not enter into derivative contracts for trading or speculative purposes.

Except for the foreign currency swaps discussed below, all fair value hedges are accounted for under the shortcut
method with changes in the fair value of related interest rate swaps recorded on the balance sheet with an
offsetting amount recorded to the hedged item’s balance sheet carrying amount. Changes in the fair value of
Joreign currency swaps used as hedges of the fair value of foreign currency denominated assets are reported in
current period earnings with the change in value of the hedged asset attributable to the hedged risk.

Cash flow hedges are generally accounted for under the shortcut method with changes in the fair value of related
interest rate swaps recorded on the balance sheet with an offsetting amount recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive income. The effective portion of changes in fair values of derivatives hedging the variability of
cash flows related to forecasted transactions are reported in accumulated other comprehensive income and
reclassified into earnings in the periods during which earnings are affected by the variability of the cash flows of
the hedged item.

Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments not designated as hedging instruments and ineffective portions
of hedges are recognized in net investment income in the period incurred.

Fair value hedges
We currently hold interest rate swaps that convert a portion of our fixed rate debt portfolio to variable rate debt.

These hedges are accounted for under the shortcut method and, therefore, no hedge ineffectiveness is recorded in
current period earnings associated with these interest rate swaps.
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During 2001 and a portion of 2002, we held foreign currency swaps that hedged the fair value of foreign currency
denominated available-for-sale securities that backed U.S. dollar denominated liabilities. We recognized
ineffectiveness of $0.3 (after income taxes) and $0.8 (after income taxes) for the years 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

Cash flow hedges

We currently hold interest rates swaps that effectively convert variable rate bond cash flows to fixed cash flows in
order to better match the cash flows of associated liabilities. These hedges are accounted for under the shortcut
method and, therefore, no hedge ineffectiveness was recorded in earnings for 2002 and 2001. We do not expect to
reclassify any amounts reported in accumulated other comprehensive income into earnings over the next twelve
months with respect to these hedges. :

We recognized an after-tax gain of $1.8 and $3.0 for the years 2002 and 2001 in accumulated other
comprehensive income related to changes in fair value of interest rate forward swaps designated as cash flow
hedges of the forecasted purchase of assets. At year-end 2002 we expect to reclassify into earnings over the next
twelve months $0.6 of the deferred after tax gains on these derivative instruments. For the year 2001, we
reclassified an after-tax gain of $0.3 to net realized investment gains related to these same derivatives.

Non-hedging derivatives

We also hold interest rate swaps that were initially entered into as hedges of an anticipated purchase of assets
associated with an acquisition of a block of insurance liabilities. Subsequently, offsetting swap positions were
taken to lock in a stream of income to supplement the income on the assets purchased.

Cn January 1, 2001, we recorded a net-of-tax cumulative effect adjustment of $1.3 (gain) in earnings to recognize
at fair value all derivatives that are designated as fair-value hedging instruments. We recorded an offsetting net-
of-tax cumulative effect adjustment of $1.3 (loss) in earnings to recognize the difference attributable to the
hedged risks between the carrying values and fair values of the related hedged assets and liabilities. We also
recorded a net-of-tax cumulative effect adjustment of $1.1 (gain) in accumulated other comprehensive income to
recognize, at fair value, all derivatives that are designated as cash-flow hedging instruments. For derivative
instruments that were not designated as hedges, we also recorded a cumulative effect adjustment of $6.9 in
earnings, ($3.9 after income taxes) in earnings to recognize these instruments at fair value.

We held the following positions in derivative instruments at year-end 2002 and 2001 at fair value:

2002 ‘ 2001

Notional
Amount  Maturity Asset Liability Asset Liability

Interest rate swaps:

Fair value hedges .........ccooveeeevnnrnrnvinnn $ 150 2032 $ 156 § - $ 29 $ 08

Cash flow hedges.........ccoovvvvnncciicncnnne 30 2007 5.6 -- 3.1 0.5

Non hedges .....coceevererenieninncieeeeces 360 2007 30.7 26.5 13.8 9.2
Other e 135 2003-08 0.8 -- 0.8 --
Total derivative instrument pesitions ...... 5 675 $ 527 § 265 §$ 206 § 105

We are exposed to credit risk in the event of nonperformance by counterparties to these derivative instruments.
We do not expect that counterparties will fail to meet their financial obligation as we only enter into derivative
contracts with a number of highly rated financial institutions. The credit exposure of these instruments is the
positive fair value at the reporting date, or $52.7 and $20.6 at year-end 2002 and 2001, respectively. We consider
the likelihood of any material loss on these instruments to be remote.
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15. Phoenix Life Statutory Financial Information and Regulatory Matters

Our insurance subsidiaries are required to file annual statements with state regulatory authorities prepared on an
accounting basis prescribed or permitted by such authorities.

As of January 1, 2001 the New York Insurance Department adopted the National Association of Insurance
Commissioner’s (NAIC) Codification of Statutory Accounting Principles guidance, with the exception for
accounting for deferred income taxes. Codification guidance replaced the accounting practices and procedures
manual as the NAIC’s primary guidance on statutory accounting; it also provides guidance for areas where
statutory accounting has been silent and changed current statutory accounting in other areas. The effect of
adoption decreased the statutory surplus of our insurance subsidiaries by $66.4, primarily as a result of non-
admitting certain assets and recording increased investment reserves. As of year-end 2002, the New York
Insurance Department adopted the NAIC codification guidance for accounting for deferred income taxes.

At year-end 2002, statutory surplus differs from equity reported in accordance with GAAP for life insurance
companies primarily as follows:

policy acquisition costs are expensed when incurred;

investment reserves are based on different assumptions;

surplus notes are included in surplus rather than debt;

post-retirement benefit expense allocated to Phoenix Life relate only to vested participants and
expense is based on different assumptions and reflect a different method of adoption;

life insurance reserves are based on different assumptions; and

o net deferred income tax assets in excess of 10% of previously filed statutory capital and surplus are
not recorded.

e 0 © o

(]

Statutory financial data for Phoenix Life at year-end 2001 and 2002 and for the years 2002, 2001 and 2000 are as
follows:

2002 2001 2000
Statutory capital and surplus, and asset valuation reserve..........ccovevererinnnne $1,008.0 $1,371.3 $1,882.5
Statutory gain from OPErAHONS .......ccoevrirerrreceercemreeecec s enenenes $ 445 $ 1199 266.4
Statutory net income (loss).......... b $ 7.5 $ (134 $ 266.1

New York Insurance Law requires that New York life insurers report their risk based capital (RBC). RBC is
based on a formula calculated by applying factors to various assets, premium and statutory reserve items. The
formula takes into account the risk characteristics of the insurer, including asset risk, insurance risk, interest rate
risk and business risk. New York insurance law gives the New York Superintendent of Insurance explicit
regulatory authority to require various actions by, or take various actions against, insurers whose total adjusted
capital does not exceed certain RBC levels. Each of the U.S. insurance subsidiaries of Phoenix Life is also
subject to these same RBC requirements. Phoenix Life and each of its insurance subsidiaries’ RBC was in excess
of 300% of Company Action Level (the level where a life insurance enterprise must submit a comprehensive plan
to state insurance regulators) at year-end 2002 and 2001.

Under New York Insurance Law, Phoenix Life can pay stockholder dividends to us in any calendar year without
prior approval in the amount of the lesser of 10% of Phoenix Life's capital and surplus as of the immediately
preceding calendar year or Phoenix Life's statutory net gain from operations for the immediately preceding
calendar year, not including realized capital gains. Phoenix Life paid dividends of $113.8 and $132.3 in 2002 and
2001, respectively, and will be able to pay dividends of $44.5 in 2003 without prior approval from the New York
Insurance Department. Any additional dividend payments in 2003 are subject to the discretion of the New York
Superintendent of Insurance.
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16. Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment, consisting primarily of office buildings occupied by us, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation. We depreciate real estate on the straight-line method over 10 to 45 years. We
depreciate equipment primarily on the modified accelerated method over 3 to 10 years. We depreciate leasehold
improvements over the terms of the related leases.

Premises and equipment are included in other general account assets in our balance sheet. Cost and carrying
value at year-end 2002 and 2001 follow:

2002 2001
Carrying Carrying
Cost Value Cost Value
Real @SLaLe. ....cviviriririieicircrn et e $ 1555 § 721 § 157.1 § 791
EQUIPMENL.....ouiiririiiiiirinnr ettt 171.7 30.6 157.6 314
Leasehold improvements...........cocvveevrervsienecinvn e 10.5 7.3 9.7 7.3
Premises and equipment ............cccccvvininicieneen e $ 337.7 $ 116.0 $ 324.4 $ 117.8

Rental expenses for operating leases for continuing operations, principally with respect to buildings, amounted to
$12.1, $13.4 and $14.1 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Future minimum rental payments under non-
cancelable operating leases for continuing operations were $54.8 at year-end 2002, payable as follows: 2003,
$15.3; 2004, $11.0; 2005, $9.0; 2006, $6.3; 2007, $5.4; and $7.8 thereafter.

17. Contingent Liabilities

As described in Note 13, a significant portion of the claims arising from our discontinued group accident and
health reinsurance business arises from the activities of Unicover Managers, Inc. (Unicover). We are involved in
disputes relating to the activities of Unicover. Under Unicover's underwriting authority, the Unicover pool and
Unicover facilities wrote a dollar amount of reinsurance coverage that was many times greater than originally
estimated. As a member of the Unicover pool, we are involved in several proceedings in which the pool members

assert that they can deny coverage to certain insurers that claim that they purchased reinsurance coverage from the
pool.

Further, we were, along with Sun Life Assurance of Canada (Sun Life) and Cologne Life Reinsurance Company
(Cologne Life), a retrocessionaire (meaning a reinsurer of other reinsurers) of the Unicover pool and two other
Unicover facilities, providing the pool and facility members with reinsurance of the risks that the pool and facility
members had assumed. In September 1999, we joined an arbitration proceeding that Sun Life had begun against
the members of the Unicover pool and the Unicover facilities. In this arbitration, we and Sun Life sought to
cancel our retrocession agreements on the grounds that material misstatements and nondisclosures were made to
us about, among other things, the amount of risks we would be reinsuring. The arbitration proceeded only with
respect to the Unicover pool because we, Sun Life and Cologne Life reached settlement with the two Unicover
facilities in the first quarter of 2000. On October 8, 2002, the arbitration panel issued its decision. The financial
implications of the decision are consistent with our current financial provisions.

In our capacity as a retrocessionaire of the Unicover business, we had an extensive program of our own
reinsurance in place to protect us from financial exposure to the risks we had assumed. Currently, we are
involved in separate arbitration proceedings with certain of our own retrocessionaires which are seeking on
various grounds to avoid paying any amounts to us. Because the same retrocession program that covers our
Unicover business covers a significant portion of our other remaining group accident and health reinsurance
business, we could have additional material losses if one or more of our retrocessionaires successfully avoids its
obligations.
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During 2000, we reached settlements with several of the companies involved in Unicover. In January 2000, we
and the other member companies of the Unicover pool settled with EBI Indemnity Company and affiliates of the
Orion Group (EBI/Orion), by which all pool members were released from their obligations as reinsurers of
EBI/Orion. Also in January 2000, we settled with Reliance Insurance Company (Reliance) and its parent
Reliance Group Holdings, Inc. and were released from our obligations as a reinsurer of the so-called Reliance
facility. In March 2000, we settled with Reliance, Lincoln National Life Insurance Company and Lincoln
National Health and Casualty Company, releasing us from our obligation as a reinsurer of the so-called Lincoln
facility. In May 2000, we reached an agreement with one of our retrocessionaires, and recovered a substantial
portion of its settlement cost on the Reliance settlement. Financial terms of these settlements were consistent with
the provisions we established in 1999. There was no effect on net income resulting from these settlements for
year-end 2000.

A second set of disputes involves personal accident business that was reinsured in the London reinsurance market
in the mid-1990s in which we participated. The disputes involve multiple layers of reinsurance, and allegations
that the reinsurance program created by the brokers involved in placing those layers was interrelated and devised
to disproportionately pass losses to a top layer of reinsurers. Many companies who participated in this business
are involved in arbitrations in which those top layer companies are attempting to avoid their obligations on the
basis of misrepresentation. Because of the complexity of the disputes and the reinsurance arrangements, many of
these companies are currently participating in negotiations of the disputes for certain contract years, and we
believe that similar discussions will follow for the remaining years. Although we are vigorously defending our
contractual rights, we are actively involved in the attempt to reach negotiated business solutions.

Given the uncertainty associated with litigation and other dispute resolution proceedings, and the expected long-
term development of net claims payments, the estimated amount of the loss on disposal of reinsurance
discontinued operations may differ from actual results. However, it is our opinion, after consideration of the
provisions made in these financial statements, as described above, that future developments wiil not have a
material effect on our financial position.

18. Condensed Financial Information of The Phoenix Companies, Inc.

A summary of The Phoenix Companies, Inc. (parent company only) financial information at year-end 2002 and
2001 and for the year 2002 and the period from inception (June 25, 2001) through December 31, 2001 follows:

2002 2001
Financial Position
Investments in and advances t0 SUBSIAIATIES. .......ccoievviiiicrieeie et $2,663.3 $2,693.7
Hilb, Rogal and Hamilton common stock, at fair value (INOte 5) ....ccovvevviveiiereeceeere e 148.2 --
Cash and cash eqUIVALENTS .........ccooiviiiii e a e ren 30.4 205.0
Intangible assets (INOTE 10) ..c..orviieiiriirieiiriccrrtr ettt e sttt et s 14.2 18.6
OO SSBES .. eirei et et ettt ettt et e sttt e et besae e eaa e et b e e e e e et eabe et ae e reeaaeanrasaennes 87.6 17.2
T OtA] BSSEEUS oottt ettt ettt e s et e ettt e e et e e a e et e e et bt e e eate e anrr et e ann e enneas $2,543.7 $2,934.5
Stock purchase CONtTACtS (NOE 6) ....cveviveurivieieeeeeiereee ettt sttt st e et tere s ame s esete e snnnnas $ 1472 5 -
INdebtedness (INOLE 6) .......iiviiiiriniiciereicr e et et b et ab e er e e saeebe e e ebe et ebeeseatessaanesbeenaseas 469.3 299.2
Accrued pension and post-employment benefits (Note 10)........ocoveiveciiiriierenniniciiiens 268.9 237.0
Other liabilities (INOtE 10) . .ccoiiiiiiiieieei ettt ettt re s e era e ateans 26.6 2.6
Total HABIHTEES ...ocoovoieei ittt ettt st e et staete e eae st s bess s sesansenbeseebnaseaeanaeas 912.¢ 538.8
Total StOCKhOIAETS” QUILY ...eviiriiiriiieieriiteri sttt et bbb s rnes 2,031.7 2,395.7
Total labilities and stockholders’ equity ........ccooocvviiiiiiiii e $2,943.7 $2,934.5
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Results of Operations

Dividends received from SubSIGIAIIES .....cvvve e e
Investment income, principally from subsidiaries.......cccocovvriniicnninniin e
Net realized INVESMENt ZAINS.....coviieruiriiieeiereeiee ettt ettt eab et es et ta e b s e etreneans
TOtAl FEVEMUES. ....oeiiiiiiit ettt et st aesrrene s
TERTESE EXPBIISE 1.vveeiet ettt ettt sttt e e teeas e b e et eeaeetaesue e e e et e e b eabaes e e e re et bentee e e eebenraans
DemutualiZation EXPENSE .........covvevveiieitieiterieeerie st e e ae vt eteetbessessbeereensaabeessesbeerneeraesneesaeereanas
Other OPErating EXPEIISES ....eocviviririicriireiertiet st ettt et s e see s b e st e b e e as et essansereassaseesbebesennes
TOtAE EXPETISES ...ooviiviciiiccee et
Income before income taxes and equity in undistributed losses of subsidiaries .....................
Income taxes (DENEIt) . ..occoiiiiri ettt ettt re e e naba e
Income before equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries

Equity in undistributed losses Of SUDSIAIAIIES ........covcvrviieiriiiinrne s
INCELOSS oo ettt as ettt sene s e e e e eanenieteans

Parent Company Cash Flows
Cash dividends received from SUbSIAIArY .....ccccoveiirecrniniice e,
Investment INCOME TECEIVEA ...cvorvriiriiiieerriicieriet ettt sttt s
Interest, income taxes and other expenses paid, net
Cash from operating aCtivities.........co.ooieviiirieeiiec et
Advances to subsidiaries and capital contributed to subsidiaries ........cocucveriiiccnniiincenena
PUrchase Of SUDSIQIAIIES. .........ccvveviiiireiiiereeis et as st 6o e e sses bk e ssntameebenetnan s
EqQuity SECUIItY PUICHASES ...oiciiii ettt
Debt and equity SECUIILY SAIES «..veiviiiiiiii ettt ettt bt et
Cash for investing actvities ...
Stock purchase contract and indebtedness proceeds.........coevviiniiiiiiiiccniii
Common SEOCK TSSUAIICE ....ooiriiieiiii ettt et et
Common StOCK FEPUICRASE . ......cveeioivieeitce ettt e st ebe s senena
Common stock dividend paid.........ooeeviinirinicie e
Payments to subsidiary to reimburse policyholder

credits and payments in et Of STOCK ......cccoeriiiiiineinni e

Cash from financing GCHIVITIES .....cccoviviieeiieiiire ettt e rar s et enen e
Change in cash and cash eguivalents ...
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$ 1138 $ 1323
15.2 1.8
1.7 -

130.7 134.1
158 03
1.8 42.6
7.2 2.0
24.8 44.9
105.9 89.2
(2.2) (8.0)
108.1 972
(354.1) (125.9)
$ (246.0) $ (28.7)
2002 2001

$  67.0 $ 1323

11.7 0.1
(17.4) (42.1)
61.3 90.3
(287.4) (240.6)
- (659.8)
(157.4) -
72.8 -
(372.0) (900.4)
283.0 290.1
~ 831.0
(131.1) (64.6)
(15.8) -
- (41.4)
136.1 1,015.1
$ (174.6) S 205.0




19. Supplemental Unaudited Financial Information

Summarized selected quarterly financial data for the years 2002 and 2001 follows:

2002 2001

Quarter Amount Per Share Amount Per Share

Revenues March 31 $ 593.9 $ 35656

June 30 5924 628.3

September 30 654.8 611.1

December 31 611.8 629.3
Income (loss) before March 31 § 289 $§ 29 $ (112.6) $ (1.08)

cumulative effect June 30 (37.2) (37) 4.0 .04

of accounting changes September 30 (93.0) (.96) (21.2) (.20)
December 31 (14.4) (.15) (7.5) (.07)
Net income (loss) March 31 $ (101.4) § (1.00) $ (157.5) $ (1.5
June 30 (37.2) (37 (16.5) (.16)
September 30 (93.0) (.96) (21.2) (.20)
December 31 (14.4) (.15) (1.5) (.07)
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Shareholder’s Agreement, dated as of June 19, 2001, between The Phoenix Companies, Inc. and State
Farm Mutual Insurance Company (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.56 to The Phoenix
Companies, Inc. Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-73896), filed on November
21, 2001, as amended)

Acquisition Agreement, dated as of November 12, 2001, by and among Kayne Anderson Rudnick
Investment Management, LLC, the equity holders named therein and Phoenix Investment Partners, Ltd.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.57 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-73896), filed on November 21, 2001, as amended)

Subordination Agreement, dated as of December 27, 2001 between The Phoenix Companies, Inc. and
Phoenix Investment Partners, Ltd. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.64 to The Phoenix
Companies, Inc. annual report of Form 10-K filed March 27, 2001)

Subordination Agreement, dated as of January 29, 2002 between The Phoenix Companies, Inc. and
Phoenix Investment Partners, Ltd. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.65 to The Phoenix
Companies, Inc. annual report of Form 10-K filed March 27, 2001)

Supplemental Retirement Plan Agreement, dated as of December 18, 2001, between The Phoenix
Companies, Inc. and Simon Y. Tan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.68 to The Phoenix
Companies, Inc. annual report of Form 10-X filed March 27, 2001)

Executive Employment Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2003, between The Phoenix Companies, Inc.
and Dona D. Young (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc.
current report on Form 8-K dated January 1, 2003)

Employment Continuation Agreement, dated January 1, 2003, between The Phoenix Companies, Inc.
and Dona D. Young (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc.
current report on Form 8-X dated january 1, 2003) :

Change of Control Agreement, dated February 1, 2001, with Philip R. McLoughlin (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. Registration Statement on Form S-1
(Registration No. 333-73896), filed on November 21, 2001, as amended)

Employment-Related Agreement, dated as of February 1, 2001, between Phoenix Home Life Mutual
Insurance Company and Philip R. McLoughlin (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.61 to The
Phoenix Companies, Inc. Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-55268), filed on
February 9, 2001, as amended)

Statement of Clarification and Intent, dated September 4, 2002, between Philip R. McLoughlin and The
Phoenix Companies, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.7 to The Phoenix Companies,
Inc. current report on Form 8-K dated September 30, 2002)
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10.46

General Release, dated September 4, 2002, between Philip R. McLoughlin and The Phoenix Companies,
Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.7 to The Phoenix Companies, Inc. current report on
Form 8-K dated September 30, 2002)

10.47 Consultant’s Agreement dated December 18, 2002, between Philip R. McLoughlin and Phoenix
Investment Partners, Ltd. *
10.48 Retirement and Transition Agreement, dated September 27, 2002, between Robert W. Fiondella and The
Phoenix Companies, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to The Phoenix Companies,
Inc. current report on Form 8-K dated September 30, 2002)
10.49 Amendment dated February 10, 2003 to Retirement and Transition Agreement between The Phoenix
Companies, Inc. and Robert W. Fiondella *
10.50 Change in Control Agreement dated as of November 6, 2000 between Phoenix Home Life Mutual
Insurance Company and Michael J. Gilotti *
10.51 Severance Agreement dated December 20, 2000 between Phoenix Home Life Mutual Insurance
Company and Michael J. Gilotti *
10.52 Change in Control Agreement dated as of January 1, 2003, between The Phoenix Companies, Inc. and
Michael J. Gilotti *
10.53 2002 Incentive Plan for Michael J. Gilotti *
10.54 Change in Control Agreement dated as of February 1, 2001 between Phoenix Investment Partners, Ltd.
and Michael E. Haylon *
10.55 Severance Agreement dated as of February 1, 2001 between Phoenix Investment Partners, Ltd. and
Michael E. Haylon *
10.56 Change in Control Agreement dated as of January 1, 2003, between The Phoenix Companies, Inc. and
Michael E. Haylon *
10.57 2002 Incentive Plan for Simon Y. Tan *
10.58 Retirement and Transition Agreement dated February 19, 2003, between The Phoenix Companies, Inc.
and Simon Y. Tan *
10.59 General Release, dated February 19, 2003, between Simon Y. Tan and The Phoenix Companies, Inc. *
12 Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges*
21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant *
23 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP*
99.1 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C.§1350 of Dona D. Young, Chief Executive Officer *
99.2 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C.§1350 of Coleman D. Ross, Chief Financial
Officer *
* Filed herewith
) Portions subject to confidential treatment request.

Phoenix will furnish any exhibit upon the payment of a reasonable fee, which fee shall be limited to Phoenix’s reasonable
expenses in furnishing such exhibit.
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Board of Directors

Sal H. Alfiero
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Protective Industries, LLC

J. Carter Bacot'

Director (Retired Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)

The Bank of New York

Peter C. Browning

Dean

The McColl Graduate School of Business
Queens University of Charlotte

Arthur P. Byrne
Operating Partner
JW Childs Associates

Sanford Cloud Jr.

President and Chief Executive Officer

The National Conference for Community
and Justice

Richard N. Cooper, Ph.D.
Maurits C. Boas Professor of
International Economics

Harvard University

Gordon J. Davis, Esq.
Partner
LeBoeuf, Lamb, Greene & MacRae, L.L.P.

Robert W. Ficndella®
Chairman of the Board
The Phoenix Companies, Inc.

Ann Maynard Gray

Former President

Diversified Publishing Group of
Capital Cities/ABC, Inc.

John E. Haire
Executive Vice President
Time, Inc.

Jerry J. Jasinowski
President
National Association of Manufacturers

Thomas 8. Johnson
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
GreenPoint Financial Corporation

Shareholder Information

John W. Johnstone Jr."!
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (Retired)
Qlin Corporation

Marilyn E. LaMarche
Limited Managing Director
Lazard Freres & Co., LLC

Robert F. Vizza, Ph.D.’

President and Chief Executive Officer (Retired)
St. Francis Hospital

President

The Dolan Foundations

Robert G. Wilson
Former General Partner
Goldman Sachs & Co.

Dona D. Young

President, Chief Executive Officer
and Chairman-elect

The Phoenix Companies, Inc.

Senicr Officers®

. Robert W. Fiondella®

Chairman of the Board

Dona D. Young
President, Chief Executive Officer
and Chairman-elect

Michael J. Gilotti
Executive Vice President
Wholesaling Distribution and Marketing

Michael E. Haylon
Executive Vice President and
Chief Investment Officer

Tracy L. Rich
Executive Vice President and General Counsel

Coleman D. Ross
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Simon Y. Tan
Executive Vice President

Michele U. Farley
Senior Vice President
Corporate Communications

Joseph E. Kelleher

Senior Vice President

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
WS Griffith Advisors, Inc.

Robert G. Lautensack Jr.
Senior Vice President
Corporate Initiatives

Louis J. Lombardi
Senior Vice President
Actuarial Financial

Bonnie J. Malley
Senior Vice President
Human Resources and Administration

Sherry A. Manetta
Senior Vice President
Information Technology

Gina Collopy O’Connell
Senior Vice President
Life and Annuity Operations

Charles L. Olson

Senior Vice President

Chief Executive Officer and President
Phoenix National Trust Co.

Robert E. Primmer
Senior Vice President
Life Distribution and Sales

John F. Sharry
President, Private Client Group
Phoenix Investment Pariners, Ltd.

Mark R. Tully
Senior Vice President
Annuity Distribution and Sales

Christopher M. Wilkos
Senior Vice President
Corporate Partfolio Management

Denise M. Winchar
President
PXP Institutional Markets Group, Ltd.

Walter H. Zultowski
Senior Vice President
Marketing and Market Research

1 Retired as of April 28, 2003
2 Retired as of March 31, 2003
3As of February 24, 2003

Annual Meeting

The annual meeting of shareholders of The Phoenix Companies, Inc.
will be held on April 28, 2003 at 11:00 a.m. Eastern time at
One American Row, Hartford, Connecticut.

Security Listings

The common stock of The Phoenix Companies, Inc. is traded on the New
York Stock Exchange (NYSE) under the symbol “PNX.” Our 7.25 percent
equity units are traded on the NYSE under the symbol “PNX PrA." Qur

For More Information
To receive additional information, including financial supplements and
Securities and Exchange Commission filings along with access to other

shareholder services, visit the Investor Relations Section on our Web site
at PhoenixWealthManagement.com or contact our Investor Relations

Department at:

7.45 percent bond is traded on the NYSE under the symbol "PFX."

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Investor Relations, The Phoenix Companies, Inc., One American Row,
P.O. Box 50586, Hartford, CT 06102-5056

Phone: 1-860-403-7100

Fax: 1-860-403-7880, e-mail: pnx.ir@phoenixwm.com

For information or assistance regarding your account, please contact our

transfer agent and registrar:

For more information on our products and services, call your Phoenix
representative or visit our Web site at PhoenixWealthManagement.com.

EquiServe Trust Company, N.A. at: Phoenix Shareholder Services, C/O
EquiServe Trust Company, P.O. Box 430786, Providence, Rl 02940-3076

Toll-free: 1-800-480-4258, TTY 1-800-336-8449

Fax: 1-781-575-3583, e-mail: phoenix@equiserve.com

Web: phoenix.equiserve.com
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